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l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld ]̂*sf] 
gjf}}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;ef ;DaGwL ;'rgf 

o; sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt 2082 ;fn d+l;/ 26 ut] z"qmjf/ ;DkGg 126cf}+ a}&ssf] 
lg)f{ofg";f/ sDkgLsf] gjf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;ef lgDglnlvt ldlt, :yfg / ;dodf b]xfosf ljifox? 
pk/ %nkmn u/L lg)f{o ug{ a:g] ePsf] x"+bf sDkgL P]g, 2063 sf] bkmf 67 cg";f/ ;Dk')f{ z]o/wgL 
dxfg"efjx?sf] hfgsf/L tyf pkl:ytLsf] nflu of] ;'rgf k|sflzt ul/Psf] % . 

;ef x"g] ldlt, :yfg / ;doM 

ldltM 2082÷09÷18 -tb\g";f/ 02÷01÷2026_, z"qmaf/ 
:yfgM cfd|kfnL Aof°j]^, ef^e^]gL, gS;fn, sf&df)*f} . 
;doM laxfg 9M30 ah] . 

%nkmnsf ljifox?M 

-s_ ;dfGo k|:tfjM 

1. cWoIfHo'sf] dGtJo ;lxt ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cfly{s jif{ 2081÷082 sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg 
pk/ %nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ ;DaGwdf . 

2. n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxtsf] cfly{s jif{ 2081÷082 sf] jf;nft, gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa, 
OlSj^Ldf ePsf] kl/jt{g tyf gub k|jfx ljj/)f / ;f] ;+u ;DalGwt cg";'rLx? ;lxtsf] 
ljQLo ljj/)f %nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ ;DaGwdf . 

3. sDkgL P]g, 2063 sf] bkmf 111 adf]lhd cfly{s jif{ 2082÷083 sf] nflu n]vfk/LIf)f 
;ldltaf^ l;kmfl/; eO{ cfP adf]lhd afx\o n]vfk/LIfs lgo"QmL ug]{ tyf lghsf] kfl/>lds 
lgwf{/)f ug]{ ;DaGwdf . -jt{dfg n]vfk/LIfs >L P;=P=cf/= Pzf]lzo^\;, rf^{*{ PsfpG^]G^\;, 
k"gM lgo"lQmsf nflu of]Uo /xg" ePsf]_ . 

4. ;~rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj u/] adf]lhd sDkgLsf] xfn sfod /x]sf] r"Qmf k'+hL ?= 
5,00,00,00,000÷- sf] 20 -aL;_ k|ltztn] x"g] ?= 1,00,00,00,000÷- -cIf?kL Ps cj{ 
?k}+of_ gub nfef+z -nfef+zdf nfUg] s/ ;d]t_ ljt/)f ug]{ k|:tfj kfl/t ug]{ ;DaGwdf . 

5. :jtGq ;~rfnssf] lgo"QmL af/]df aLdf P]g, 2079 adf]lhd ;fwf/)f ;efdf hfgsf/L 
;DaGwdf . 

6. ;~rfns ;ldlt ;b:ox?sf] ;]jf ;"ljwf ;DaGwdf . 

-v_ ljz]if k|:tfjM 

1. sDkgLaf^ ul/Psf] rGbf tyf ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj cGtu{tsf vr{x? cg"df]bg 
ug]{ ;DaGwdf . 

 

-u_ ljljw .           

;~rfns ;ldltsf] cf!fn]  
sDkgL ;lrj 
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;fwf/)f ;ef ;DaGwL hfgsf/L 

1. sDkgLsf] gjf}}}}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;ef k|of]hgsf nflu ldlt 2082÷09÷08 ut] sDkgLsf] z]o/wgL 
btf{ lstfa aGb /xg]% . ;fy} g]kfn :^s PS;r]Gh lnld^]*df ldlt 2082÷09÷07 ut] ;Dd 
sf/f]af/ eO{ k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd o; sDkgLsf] z]o/ /lhi^«f/ PgcfOPdla P; Soflk^n 
lnld^]*, nflhDkf^, sf&df)*f}+df k|FKt z]o/ gfd;f/L lnvtsf] cfwf/df z]o/wgL btf{ lstfadf 
sfod z]o/wgLx?n] dfq pQm ;efdf efu lng kfpg] %g . 

2. ;efdf efu lng OR%"s z]o/wgL dxfg"efjx?n] cfkm\gf] lxtu|fxL vftf gDa/ -BOID_ / cfkm\gf] 
kl/ro v"Ng] sfuhft tyf ;fwf/)f ;ef k|of]hgfy{ hf/L k|j]zkq lnO{ cfpg" x"g cg"/f]w ul/G% 
. 

3. ;efdf efu lngsf nflu k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo"Qm ug{ rfxg] z]o/wgL dxfg"efjx?n] k|ltlglw -
k|f]S;L_ kmf/fd ldlt 2082÷09÷16 ut] ljxfg 11M00 ah] leq sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf 
btf{ u/fO{ ;Sg"kg]{% . Ps eGbf a(L k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo"Qm ug{ ;lsg] %}g . Ps eGbf a(L 
k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo"Qm ePsf] kfOPdf ;a} eGbf klxnf sDkgLdf btf{ ePsf] k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ 
dfq dfGo x"g]% . k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo"Qm ul/;s] kl% k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ ab/ gu/L s"g} 
z]o/wgLn] ;efdf efu lng rfx]df efu lng ;Sg" x"g]% .  

4. k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo"Qm ul/;Sg"ePsf z]o/wgL cfkm}+ ;efdf pkl:yt ePdf To:tf] k|ltlglw -
k|f]S;L_ :jtM /@ x"g]% . 

5. gfafns jf ljlIfKt z]o/wgLsf] tkm{af^ o; sDkgLsf] z]o/ nut lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] ?kdf 
gfd btf{ ePsf] JolQmn] ;efdf efu lng jf k|ltlglw tf]Sg ;Sg" x"g]% . 

6. ;+o"Qm ?kdf /x]sf] z]o/wgLsf] xsdf z]o/wgLsf] nut lstfadf klxnf] gfd pNn]v ePsf] 
JolQmn] cyjf ;j{;Ddltaf^ k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo"Qm ul/Psf] Pshgf JolQmn] dfq ;efdf efu 
lng kfpg" x"g]% . 

7. %nkmnsf] ljifo cGtu{t ljljw lzif{s ;DaGwdf z]o/wgL dxfg"efjx?n] %nkmn ug{ rfxg" 
ePsf] ljifo af/] 2082 ;fn kf}if 16 ut] ;Dddf sDkgL ;lrj dfkm{t ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 
cWoIfnfO{ lnlvt hfgsf/L lbg" kg]{% . To:tf] ljifo ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfnfO{ plrt nfu]df 
dfq %nkmnsf nflu ;dfj]z ul/g]% . 

8. ;efsf] lbg ;ef z"? x"g" eGbf cufj} ;ef sIfdf pkl:yt eO{ lbg"x"g ;Dk')f{ z]o/wgL 
dxfg"efjx?nfO{ cg"/f]w ul/G% . 

9. z]o/wgLx?n] JoQm u/]sf dGtJo jf k|Zgx?sf] ;DaGwdf ;efsf cWoIf cfkm}+n] jf ;efsf 
cWoIfaf^ cfb]z kfPsf JolQmaf^ hjfkm lbOg]% . 

10. ;efdf efu lng] k|To]s z]o/wgL dxfg"efjn] ;ef x"g] :yfgdf pkl:yt eO{ Toxf+ /x]sf] xflh/L 
k"l:tsfdf b:tvt ug"{ kg]{% . xflh/L k"l:tsf laxfg 9M00 ah] b]lv v"nf /xg]% . 

11. ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg tyf n]vfk/LIf)f ePsf] ljQLo ljj/)fx? sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf 
;Dks{ u/L jf sDkgLsf] j]j;fO^ www.citizenlifenepal.com af^ *fpgnf]* u/L k|fKt ug{ 
;lsg]% .  

12. ;ef ;DaGwL cGo hfgsf/Lsf nflu sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, Pn=P; sDKn]S;, yfkfynL, 
sf&df)*f}df sfof{no ;do leq ;Dks{ /fVg cg"/f]w ul/G% .   
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l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld ]̂* 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg 

 
cfb/)fLo z]o/wgL dxfg"efjx?, 

l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld^]*sf] o; gjf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf pkl:yt z]o/wgL tyf 
cfdlGqt dxfg"efjx?nfO{ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tk{maf^ xflb{s :jfut tyf clejfbg JoQm ub{%f}+ . o; 
sDkgLn] ljlwjt ?kdf cfk\mgf] Joj;flos sf/f]af/ z"ef/De u/] b]lv ;dLIff cjlw 2081÷082 
;Ddsf] cf& jif{sf] cjlwdf sDkgL;+u k|ToIf tyf k/f]If ?kdf cfj$ ;/f]sf/jfnfx?sf] ;fy / 
;xof]uaf^ Joj;fosf ljleGg cfofdx?df pNn]vgLo k|ultx? xfl;n ug{ ;kmn ePsf]df ;a}df xflb{s 
wGojfb tyf awfO{ !fkg ub{%f}+ . k|:t"t jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf cfly{s jif{ 2081÷082 df sDkgLn] 
xfl;n u/]sf k|d"v pknAwL tyf sfo{k|ult ljj/)f, ;~rfngdf b]lvPsf ;d:of tyf r"gf}tLx? Pjd\ 
sDkgLn] cfufdL lbgx?df cjnDag ug]{ cNksfnLg tyf bL#{sfnLg /)fg}lts of]hgfx? / ;du| hLjg 
aLdf If]qsf] ;dLIff tyf k"g/fjnf]sg ;lxt sDkgL P]g, 2063 adf]lhd tof/ kfl/Psf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af^ o; ul/dfdo ;ef ;dIf k|:t"t u/]sf %f+} . 

1. ljut jif{sf] sf/f]af/sf] l;+xfjnf]sgM 

l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld^]* sDkgL P]g, 2063 adf]lhd 2064 cfiff( 12 ut] 
g]kfn ;/sf/, sDkgL /lhi «̂f/sf] sfof{nodf klAns sDkgLsf] ?kdf btf{ ePsf] / aLdf P]g, 
2079 tyf aLdf ljlgodfjnL, 2081 cg";f/ 2074 efb| 7 ut] g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ 
hLjg aLdf ;DaGwL sf/f]af/ ug{ Ohfht kq k|fKt u/L hLjg aLdf sDkgLsf] x}l;otn] 2074 
sflt{s 2 ut] b]lv hLjg aLdf Joj;fo ;~rfng ub}{ cfO/x]sf] / o; sDkgLsf] ;+:yfksx?df 
a}+lse tyf ljQLo, aLdf, hnljB"t, ko{^g, s[lif, z}lIfs, ;/sf/L tyf u}x| ;/sf/L, pBf]u tyf 
Jofkf/ Pjd\ Joj:yfkg If]qdf nfdf] ;do cg"ej k|fKt k|ltli&t JolQmTjx? /xg" ePsf] % . 

o; sDkgLn] /fli^«o tyf cGt/f{li^«o :t/df b]lvPsf ljleGg cf/f]x cj/f]x kf/ ub}{ 
;dLIff cjlw;Dd cfO{ k"Ubf cfkm\gf] Joj;flos ofqfsf] cf&f}+ cfly{s jif{ k"/f u/]sf] % . o; 
cjlwdf b]vfk/]sf ljleGg ptf/r(fjsf afah"b ;+:yfut ;"zf;gsf] ;kmn sfof{Gjogsf ;fy 
sDkgLn] cjnDag u/]sf] s"zn Joj;flos /)fgLlt,  kf/bzL{ Pjd\ u")f:t/Lo k|ljlwo"Qm u|fxsd"vL 
;]jfaf^ sDkgLn] xfl;n u/]sf pknAwL tyf ljQLo kl/;'rf°x? ;sf/fTds Pjd\ pT;fxhgs 
/x]sf %g\ . hLjg aLdf If]qdf cfkm\gf] ;zQm pkl:ylt sfod ug{ k'j{ d]rL b]lv klZrd 
dxfsfnL / lxdfn b]lv t/fO{ ;Dd 135 j^f zfvf tyf pkzfvf sfof{nox?af^ ;fdflhs 
kl/j]z ;"xfpbf] ljleGg 10 j^f hLjg aLdf of]hgfx? dfkm{t ;]jf k|bfg u/L k|yd aLdfz"Nsdf 
5=48 k|ltzt ahf/ lx:;f sfod ug{ ;kmn ePsf] % . b]zdf ljBdfg cl:y/ /fhg}lts tyf 
ljQLo cj:yfsf afah"b sDkgLn] ;dLIff cjlwdf ut jif{sf] t"ngfdf aLdfz"Ns cfDbfgLdf 21 
k|ltzt / nufgL tyf cGo cfDbfgLdf 19 k|ltztsf] j[l$ xfl;n ug"{sf ;fy} ;f]xL cjlwdf 
hLjg aLdfsf]ifdf 38 k|ltztn] j[l$ u/L ?= 19 ca{ 86 s/f]* 30 nfv k"¥ofpg ;kmn ePsf] 
% . 

hLjg aLdf Joj;fosf] bL#{sfnLg bfloTjnfO{ Joj:yfkg ug{ nufgLnfO{ ljljlws/)f u/L 
bL#{sfnLg ;DklQdf nufgL ug{ ckl/xfo{ ePsf] kl/k|]Iodf o; sDkgLn] bL#{sfnLg nufgLnfO{ 
ljz]if k|fyldstfdf /fv]sf] % . ;dLIff cjlwdf b]lvPsf] cl:y/ k'+hLahf/, j}slNks bL#{sfnLg 
nufgLsf If]qsf] cefjsf afah"b sDkgLsf] s"n nufgL ?= 24 ca{ 4 s/f]* dWo] sl/a 75 
k|ltzt cyf{t ?= 18 ca{ 9 s/f]* ljleGg a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] bL#{sfnLg d"$tL lgIf]k, 
C)fkq, z]o/ Pjd\ Do'r"cn km)*x?df nufgL ul/Psf] % eg]] sl/a 25 k|ltzt cyf{t ?= 5 
ca{ 96 s/f]* cNksfnLg nufgLdf /x]sf] % . o;} u/L ut cfly{s jif{sf] t"ngfdf ;dLIff 
cjlwdf nufgL tyf shf{df sl/a 26 k|ltztn] j[l$ x"g uO{ ?= 25 ca{ 9 s/f]* k"Ug uPsf] 
a]xf]/f ;Ddflgt ;efdf cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 
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;dLIff jif{df sDkgLn] aLldtx?nfO{ d[To" bfaL, aLdf cjlw kl/kSjtf bfaL, ±;dk{)f d'No 
nufot aLdf bfaL jfkt ?= 1 ca{ 91 s/f]* e"QmfgL u/]sf] % . h; dWo] d[To" bfaL jfkt 
sl/a ?= 67 s/f]*, ;dk{)f bfaL jfkt sl/a ?= 30 s/f]*, clu|d e"QmfgL aLdf of]hgfsf] 
cf+lzs cjlw ;dfKtL bfaL jfkt sl/a ?= 83 s/f]*, cjlw ;dfKtL bfaL jfkt sl/a ?= 4 
s/f]* / cGo bfaL jfkt sl/a ?= 7 s/f]* e"QmfgL ePsf] % . aLdf bfaL e"QmfgLdf k|lqmofut 
;/ntf tyf ;xhtfn] sDkgL k|lt aLldtsf] ljZj;gLotf a[l$ x"g uO{ Joj;fo a[l$df ;d]t 
;sf/fTds k|efj kfg]{ x"gfn] aLdf bfaL km%\{of}^nfO{ pRr k|fyldstfdf /flvPsf] a]xf]/f ul/dfdo 
;efnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ . 

cfly{s jif{ 2080÷081 df Joj:yfkg vr{ tyf aLdfz"Ns cfDbfgLsf] cg"kft 11=73 
k|ltzt /x]sf]df ;dLIff cjlwdf yk ldtJolotf ckgfO{ ;f] cg"kft 10=89 k|ltzt sfod ug{ 
o; sDkgL ;kmn ePsf] % . o;/L Psftkm{ sDkgLsf] cfDbfgLsf] j[l$b/ cAan u/fpg ;kmn 
ePsf %f}+ eg] csf]{tkm{ ;~rfng vr{ t"ngfTds ?kdf lgoGq)f ub}{ cfPsf %f}+ . o;sf ;fy} 
o; sDkgL cGo s"g} sDkgL;+u dh{/ gu/L cfGtl/s >f]taf^ g} cfly{s jif{ 2080÷081 df 
5 k|ltzt / cfly{s jif{ 2081÷082 df 26=98 k|ltzt af]g; z]o/ hf/L u/L sDkgLsf] 
r"Qmf k'+hL kf+r ca{ sfod ug"{kg]{ lgodfsLo Joj:yf kfngf ug{ ;kmn ePsf] a]xf]/f ;Ddflgt 
;efdf cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

o; sDkgLsf] ;dLIff cjlwsf] cfly{s tyf Joj;flos kl/b[Zo t"ngfTds ?kdf b]xfo 
adf]lhd /x]sf] a]xf]/f o; ;fwf/)f ;efdf cjut u/fp+b%f+} . 

      ¿= xhf/df 

ljj/)f  cf=j= 2080÷081  cf=j= 2081÷082 j[l$ -sdL_ 

hLjg aLdfsf]if 14,422,684 19,863,001 38% 

s"n nufgL tyf shf{ 19,890,319 25,093,176 26% 

bL#{sfnLg nufgL 16,774,299 18,088,272 8% 

cNksfnLg nufgL 2,305,502 5,955,917 158% 

hu]*f tyf sf]if* 2,443,024 1,878,100 (23%) 

s"n aLdfz"Ns 6,215,339 7,548,190 21% 

nufgL tyf cGo cfDbfgL 1,734,360 2,066,571 19% 

s"n aLdf bfaL 1,828,060 1,912,312 5% 

clestf{ sldzg 645,546 725,410 12% 

Joj:yfkg tyf cGo vr{ 771,236 884,976 15% 

v"b d"gfkmf* 381,973 549,252 44% 

*:yug s/ hu]*f÷cfo afx]s    

2. /fli^«o tyf cGt/f{li^«o kl/l:ytLaf^ sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/df k/]sf] c;/M 

b]zsf] cfly{s, ljQLo / df}lb|s gLlt lar ;fd~h:otf sfod x"g g;Sbf cy{tGqdf dGbL, 
cf}Bf]lus pTkfbg tyf Joj;flos If]qdf x|f;, nufgL hf]lvd, ljQLo If]qdf t/ntf c;Gt"ng 
tyf Jofhb/df ptf/ r(fj, a(\bf] Jofkf/ #f^f, Go'g k'+hLut vr{, /fh:j ;+sngdf x|f;, k'+hL 
ahf/df ptf/r(fj tyf pRr d"b|fl:kmtL b/, b]znfO{ cf}Bf]uLs/)ftkm{ cu|;/ u/fpg] k|d"v 
tTjx? k'+hL, >d / pBdzLntfsf lar ;+of]hg gx"g"sf ;fy} xfn} ePsf] cfGbf]ngsf sf/)f 
>[lht /fhg}lts cj:yfn] cy{tGq hl^n cj:yfdf /x]sf] / o:tf] kl/l:ytLdf hLjg aLdfsf] 
cfjZostf / cf}lrTonfO{ cfd hgdfg;df ;";'lrt u/fpg] sfo{df yk sl&gfO pTkGg x"g ;Sg] 
kl/l:ylt xfd|f] ;fd" r"gf}tLsf] ?kdf /xL g} /x]sf] % . 
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ljZjJofkL /fhgLlts, cfly{s tyf ;fdflhs cf/f]x cj/f]x tyf ljljw ultljlwn] ljZjsf 
clesf+z d"n"ssf ;fy} g]kfndf ;d]t ;f] sf] k|ToIf tyf ck|ToIf k|efj kg{ uPsf] % . a}+s 
tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] shf{ k|jfxdf cfPsf] ;":ttf, b]zdf ljBdfg t/ntf c;Gt"ng, Go'g cfly{s 
ultljlw, k|ToIf j}b]lzs nufgLsf] cefj Pjd\ pTkfbgzLn If]qdf nufgL ;+s"rg, cf}Bf]lus tyf 
Joj;flos lqmofsnfkx?df cfPsf] lzlyntf h:tf sf/)fx?n] aLdf Joj;fo ;d]t o; jif{ 
k|efljt x"g uPsf] % . cy{tGqsf] o:tf] k|lts'n kl/l:yltdf hLjg aLdfsf] cfjZostf / 
cf}lrTonfO{ cfd hgtf ;dIf k"¥ofpg sl&gfO /x]sf] kl/k|]Iodf sDkgLn] k|jfx ug]{ ;]jfsf] 
u")f:t/df j[l$, ;'rgf k|ljlwsf] pRrtd k|of]u u/L aLdf ;]jfnfO{ l%^f], %l/tf] / e/kbf]{ 
dfWodaf^ ;xh ?kn] aLldt ;dIf k"¥ofpg" tyf k|efjsf/L Joj;flos gLltsf] ;kmn sfof{Gjogn] 
;dLIff cjlwdf o; sDkgL Joj;fo j[l$ ug{ ;kmn ePsf] a]xf]/f o; ;Ddflgt ;efdf hfgsf/L 
u/fp+b%f}+ . 

dxfdf/Lsf ?kdf km}lnPsf] sf]/f]gf efO/; ;ª\qmd)fsf] c;/af^ cy{tGq rnfodfg x"g 
gkfpb} nfdf] ;do b]lv rn]sf] zlQm /fi^«x? larsf] åGbn] cGt/f{li^«o If]q;+u} g]kfnsf] cy{tGq 
;d]t k|efljt x"g uO{ ;du|df a]/f]huf/L b/ Pjd\ j:t" tyf ;]jfsf] d'Nodf a[l$ x"g", cfd 
hgtfsf] qmozlQmdf x|f; cfpg", t/ntfdf c;Gt"ng, /fhg}lts cl:y/tfsf sf/)f >[lht 
cGof}ntfn] Jofkf/ Joj;fo lj:tf/df cfTdljZjf;sf] sld eO{ ;du| cfly{s If]qdf g} ;+s^ 
pTkGg ePsfn] aLdfn]v Joltt tyf ;dk{)f b/df j[l$;+u} aLdfz"Ns ;+sngdf ;d]t k|ToIf 
c;/ kg"{sf ;fy} aLdf If]qdf :j:y k|lt:kwL{ jftfj/)fsf] cefj /xg" Joj;fo lj:tf/df k|d"v 
r"gf}tLsf ?kdf b]vfk/]sf] o; ul/dfdo ;efnfO{ cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

3. k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt ;Dd rfn" jif{sf] pknlAw / eljiodf ug"{ kg]{ s"/fsf] ;DaGwdf 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/)ffM 

cfly{s jif{ 2081÷082 tyf rfn" cfly{s jif{ 2082÷083 sf] k|yd q}dfl;s cjlwsf] k|d"v 
cfly{s ;'’rf°x? b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] %g\M 

      ¿ xhf/df 

ljj/)f 2081 cflZjg d;fGt 2082 cfiff( d;fGt 2082 cflZjg d;fGt* 

s"n aLdfz"Ns 1,747,437 7,548,190 2,232,837 

hLjg aLdfsf]if 15,634,735 19,863,001 21,591,052 

s"n nufgL tyf shf{ 21,361,487 25,093,176 27,216,941 

hu]*f tyf sf]if** 2,521,466 1,878,100 1,764,878 

v"b d"gfkmf** 130,929 549,252 131,490 

* n]vfk/LIf)f gePsf]  **:yug s/ hu]*f÷cfo afx]s 

pNn]lvt ;'rf°sf cfwf/df ljljw k|lts"n cj:yfsf afah"b sDkgLsf] Joj;flos l:ylt 
Pjd\ ljQLo cj:yf pT;fxhgs /x]sf] a]xf]/f ;xif{ hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG%f}+ . 

o; sDkgLn] eljiodf ug{sf nflu nIo lnPsf sfdsf/afxLx? b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf %g\M 

-s_ dfgj ;+;fwg ljsf;M sDkgLnfO{ cfjZos hgzlQmsf] ljsf;, lj:tf/ tyf Joj:yfkg 
ug{ ;~rfns ;ldltsf cWoIfHo'sf] ;+of]hsTjdf rf/ ;b:oLo dfgj ;+;fwg ;ldlt u&g 
ul/Psf] % . o; sDkgLn] sd{rf/Lsf] lgo"lQm tyf j[lt ljsf;df ljljwtfdf Pstf / 
sfo{:yndf ;dfj]lztfsf] d'ndGqnfO{ cfTd;ft ul/cfPsf] % . ;dLIff cjlwdf sDkgLsf] 
hgzlQmsf] ?kdf 383 hgf sd{rf/Lx? sfo{/t /x]sf %g\ . hLjg aLdf Joj;fo Ps 
k|fljlws ljifo ;d]t ePsf]n] bIf hgzlQmsf] cefj v*\ls/x]sf] cj:yfdf sDkgLdf sfo{/t 
sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ cfGtl/s tyf afx\o tflnddf ;xefuL u/fO ;fk]lIfs ?kdf bIf agfpg] 
p$]Zon] hLjg aLdf Joj;fo;+u ;DalGwt ljifodf :jb]zL tyf ljb]zL tflnd k|bfos 
;+:yfx?;+usf] ;xsfo{df ahf/ Joj:yfkg, laqmL snf, hf]lvdf°g nufotsf If]q;+u 
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;DalGwt ljifodf sfo{ ;Dkfbg Ifdtf Pjd\ bIftf clej[l$ u/fpg] tflndx?df ;xefuL 
u/fpb} cfPsf %f}+ . o;} u/L hf]lvdf°g, sd{rf/L k|zf;g, ljQ Joj:yfkg, g]t[Tj ljsf;, 
;+:yfut ;"zf;g, ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)f, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf sDkgLsf] Joj;fo 
j[l$ ug{ cfjZos cfGtl/s tflndx? lbg] qmd lg/Gt/ ?kdf eO/x]sf] / cfufdL lbgx?df 
;d]t o;nfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbg ;~rfns ;ldlt k|lta$ /x]sf] a]xf]/f o; ;Ddflgt ;efnfO{ 
cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . sDkgLn] l;l^hg sn]hsf] cjwf/)ffnfO{ sfo{qmdsf] ?kdf cl# ;fb}{ 
ljleGg ljifosf lj!x?nfO{ cfdGq)f u/L sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ kflIfs ?kdf k|lzlIft ug"{sf ;fy} 
sDkgLsf] pRr Joj:yfkgaf^ Joj;flos bIftf ;DaGwdf xfl;n u/]sf cg"ejx? ljleGg 
sfo{qmdx?sf dfWodaf^ sd{rf/Lx?;Dd k"¥ofpg] ul/Psf] % . o;/L sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ 
sfo{;Dkfbg bIftf clej[l$ u/fpg] ljleGg sfo{qmdx?df ;lqmo ;xefuL u/fO{ j[lt ljsf;df 
^]jf k"¥ofpg lg/Gt/ ?kdf sfo{ ub}{ hfg] of]hgf ;d]t /x]sf] a]xf]/f ;efdf cjut 
u/fp+b%f}+ . 

o;} u/L g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)fn] sDkgLdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?sf] sfo{ ;Dkfbg 
Ifdtf Pjd\ bIftf clej[l$ ;DaGwL sfo{qmd ;~rfng ug{ k|To]s jif{ cl#Nnf] cfly{s 
jif{sf] s"n sd{rf/L vr{sf] sDtLdf b"O{ k|ltzt /sd tflnd tyf j[lt ljsf; zLif{sdf 
vr{ ug"{kg]{ Joj:yf u/]sf]df ;f] sf] k')f{ kfngf ul/cfPsf] / cfufdL lbgdf ;d]t 
kl/kfngf ug{ ;~rfns ;ldlt k|lta$ /x]sf] a]xf]/f ;efnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ . 

-v_ ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)fM sDkgLn] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf cft°jfbL lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo 
nufgL ;DaGwL hf]lvdx?nfO{ Go'gLs/)f tyf cg"udg ug{ ;DklQ z"$Ls/)F lgjf/)f ljefu 
v*f u/L ;f] ljefudf cfjZos bIf hgzlQmsf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] % . ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f 
/ cft°jfbL lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo nufgLsf] plrt klxrfg / ljZn]if)f ug{ ljBdfg gLlt 
tyf sfo{ljlwdf ;do;fk]If kl/dfh{g u/L ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf cftEjfbL lqmofsnfkdf 
ljQLo nufgL lgjf/)f gLlt, 2081 Pjd\ ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf cftEjfbL lqmofsnfkdf 
ljQLo nufgL lgjf/)f sfo{ljlw, 2081 nfu' ul/Psf] % . pNn]lvt gLlt tyf sfo{ljlwsf] 
cwLgdf /xL hf]lvdsf ljleGg sf/s tTjx?M u|fxs, k|f]*S^ / ;le{;, *]lne/L Rofgn 
tyf ef}uf]lns cj:yf cflbsf cfwf/df x"g ;Sg] ljljw hf]lvdx?sf] ljZn]if)f tyf cg"udg 
ug{ ;'rs tof/ u/L sfof{Gjog ug]{, UN Sanction List Pjd\ g]kfn ;/sf/, u[x dGqfnoaf^ 
hf/L k|ltaGwfTds ;'rL tyf pRr kb:y JolQmx?sf] klxrfg ug{ cfjZos *f^fj]; tof/ 
u/L ;km\̂ j]o/ k|)ffnLdf cBfjlws ug]{, ;Ldf sf/f]af/, z+sf:kb sf/f]af/ tyf z+sf:kb 
ultljlw ;DaGwL cfjZos k|ltj]bgx? k|rlnt P]g, lgod tyf lgb]{lzsfdf tf]lsPsf] 
;dofjlwdf lgodgsf/L lgsfodf k]z ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfO k|efjsf/L ?kdf hf]lvd 
Joj:yfkg ug]{ ul/Psf] a]xf]/f ;Ddflgt ;efnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ . 

o;} u/L sDkgLdf ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f ;DaGwL ;"zf;gsf] cj:yfnfO{ cg"udg ug{ 
tyf k|rlnt P]g, lgod, lgb]{lzsf tyf sDkgLsf] gLlt Pjd\ sfo{ljlwsf] ;kmn sfof{Gjog 
eP gePsf] ;"lglZrt ug{ ;~rfns ;ldlt ;b:osf] ;+of]hsTjdf rf/ ;b:oLo ;DklQ 
z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)f ;ldlt u&g ul/Psf] / ;f] ;ldltsf lg)f{ox? ;~rfns ;ldlt a}&sdf 
cBfjlws u/fpg] / ;f] nfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbg] Joj:yf ldnfOPsf] a]xf]/f ;efdf cjut 
u/fp+b%f}+ .  

-u_ sDkgLsf] qm]l*^ /]l^é: s"g} klg ;+:yfsf] bfloTj axg ug{] Ifdtf jf bfloTj ljd"v gx"g] 
;Defjgfsf] d'Nof°g g} qm]l*^ /]l^é xf] . o:tf] /]l^é g]kfn lwtf]kq af]*{af^ cg"dlt 
k|fKt qm]l*^ /]l^é Ph]G;Låf/f ul/G% . ;f] ;DaGwdf o; sDkgLn]] O{qmf g]kfn lnld^]*af^ 
ldlt 2082÷05÷05 df æ[ICRANP-IR] BBB+Æ (Pronounced ICRA NP Issuer Rating BBB 
Plus) /]l^é k|fKt u/]sf] % h;n] sDkgLsf] ljQLo bfloTj axg ug{] Ifdtfdf cf}ift 
hf]lvd /x]sf] (Moderate degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations) 
eGg] hgfp+b% . qm]l*^ /]l^én] sDkgL;+u k|ToIf k/f]If ?kdf ;/f]sf/ /fVg] ;a} 

;/f]sf/jfnfx? dfem sDkgLsf] ljZj;gLotf a(fpg ;xof]u k"¥ofpg] ePsfn] ;f]] sfo{nfO{ 
cfufdL jif{df ;d]t lg/Gt/tf lbg] of]hgf /x]sf] a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

-#_ zfvf sfof{no lj:tf/M sDkgLn] k|bfg ul//x]sf] aLdf ;]jfsf] kx"+r b]ze/L k"¥ofpg] p@]Zo 
cg"?k k|b]zut cjwf/)ff cjnDag u/L ;dLIff cjlwdf ;ft j }̂ k|b]zdf k|Fb]lzs 
sfof{no :yfkgf u/L lhDd]jf/L tyf bfloTjx? tf]lsPsf] % . xfn sDkgLn] cfkm\gf 135 
j^f zfvf tyf pkzfvf sfof{nox? dfkm{t :yfgLo :t/af^} hLjg aLdf ;]jf k|bfg 
ul//x]sf]df Joj;flos ;~hfn lj:tf/ ub}{ hfg] qmddf rfn" cfly{s jif{ 2082÷083 df 
Joj;flos ;DefJotfsf cfwf/df yk :yfgdf gof+ zfvf÷pkzfvf sfof{no :yfkgf u/L 
sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] ;]jfsf] kx"+rnfO{ :yfgLo :t/df k"¥ofO{ g]kfn /fHoe/ lxdfn b]lv t/fO{ 
tyf k'j{ d]rL b]lv klZrd dxfsfnL ;Dd l*lh^n k|ljlwsf] k|of]u u/L hLjg aLdf ;]jf 
k|bfg ug{] nIo lnOPsf] a]xf]/f ul/dfdo ;efdf cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

-ª_ aLdf clestf{ tflnd Pjd\ j[lQ ljsf;M hLjg aLdf Joj;fodf aLldt -u|fxs_ / sDkgLsf] 
;DaGw ;]t"sf] ?kdf /xg] aLdf clestf{x?sf] cxd e'ldsf /x]sf] x"G% . b]zdf ljBdfg 
hLjg aLdf ;DaGwL ;r]tgfsf] sdLsf afah"b o; sDkgLsf] Joj;fo j[l$df sDkgLdf 
sfo{/t sl/a k}lt; xhf/ aLdf clestf{ æl;l^hg ln*/Æ af^ Jofks ;xof]u k"u]sf] % 
. sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] Joj;flos nIo k|fKt ug{sf nflu a(L eGbf a(L aLdf clestf{x? 
pTkfbg ug{ lgofds lgsfosf] lgb]{zg adf]lhd lg/Gt/ ?kdf clestf{ cfwf/e't tflndx? 
;~rfng ul//x]sf] % . 

o; sDkgLsf] Joj;fo lj:tf/sf nflu d]?b)*sf ?kdf /x]sf bIf clestf{x? 
pTkfbg ug{ tyf sDkgLdf cfj$ clestf{x?sf] j[lQ ljsf; u/L Joj;flos clestf{x? 
-k|f]km];gn Ph]G;L_ sf] ;~hfn lj:tf/ ug{ hLjg aLdf Joj;fodf cg"ejL k|lzÔsx?af^ 
k|b]z, zfvf Pjd\ pkzfvf sfof{no :t/df lg/Gt/ ?kdf hLjg aLdf Joj;fosf] ljsf;sf 
nflu cfjZos tflnd pknAw u/fO{ clestf{x?sf] j[lQ ljsf; u/fpg] sfo{nfO{ lg/Gt/tf 
lbO{ cfPsf %f}+ . cfd hgdfg;df aLdf k|ltsf] ;r]tgf j[l$ u/fpg aLdf hfu/)f cleofg 
;~rfng ug"{sf ;fy} gof+ JolQmx?nfO{ clestf{sf] ?kdf cl# a(\g ljleGg sfo{qmdx? 
dfkm{t k|]l/t u/L cfPsf %f}+ . o;} u/L sDkgLsf If]qLo, k|b]z Pjd\ zfvf tyf pkzfvf 
sfof{nox?df lg/Gt/ ?kdf sDkgLsf k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t, gfoa k|d"v sfo{sf/L 
clws[t, k|d"v ahf/ Joj:yfkg clws[t, k|d"v Joj;fo clws[tx? Pjd\ tflnd ljefu 
k|d"v ;d]tsf] ;xefuLtfdf sDkgLsf] Joj;fo j[l$ Pjd\ clestf{ tyf hgdfg;df hLjg 
aLdfsf] dxTjsf] ;DaGwdf ;r]tgf clej[l$sf] nflu sfo{zfnf, uf]i&L, #/b}nf], JolQmut 
e]̂ #f^ nufotsf ljleGg sfo{qmdx? ;~rfng ul/cfPsf] a]xf]/f o; ;efdf hfgsf/L 
u/fp+b%f}+ . 

o; sDkgLn] clestf{sf]] lgo"lQm tyf j[lt ljsf;df ;d]t ljljwtfdf Pstf / 
sfo{:yndf ;dfj]lztfsf] d'ndGqnfO{ cfTd;ft ul/cfPsf] kl/k]|Iodf aLdf P]g, 2079 df 
Ps JolQm ;dfg k|s[ltsf] Ps sDkgLdf dfq clestf{ x"g kfpg] Joj:yfn] sDkgLn] 
cjnDag ul/cfPsf] Joj;flos clestf{sf] pTkfbg, ljsf; tyf lj:tf/df yk ^]jf k"Ug], 
aLldtx?n] yk k|efjsf/L ;]jf kfpg"sf ;fy} ahf/df ljBdfg c:j:y k|lt:kwf{nfO{ s]xL 
xb;Dd Go'gLs/)f ug{ d@t k"Ug] ck]Iff u/]sf %f}+ . 

-r_ ;+:yfut ;"zf;gM s"g} klg sDkgL bL#{sfn;Dd ;~rfngdf /lx/xg ;f] sDkgLsf] b}lgs 
lqmofsnfkdf ;+:yfut ;"zf;gsf] cToGt &'nf] e'ldsf /xG% . ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf ;f] 
cGtu{t ul&t ;ldlt÷pk;ldltx?n] ;lqmotfk'j{s sDkgLdf eP u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLx?sf] 
lgoldt ?kdf cg"udg, lg/LIf)f u/L plrt dfu{bz{gx? k|bfg ub}{ ;"zf;gsf] cj:yfnfO{ 
dha"b agfOPsf] % . 

o;} u/L g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ hf/L aLdssf] ;+:yfut ;"zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf 
adf]lhd gfoa k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] ;+of]hsTjdf tLg ;b:oLo ;+:yfut ;"zf;g 
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;/f]sf/jfnfx? dfem sDkgLsf] ljZj;gLotf a(fpg ;xof]u k"¥ofpg] ePsfn] ;f]] sfo{nfO{ 
cfufdL jif{df ;d]t lg/Gt/tf lbg] of]hgf /x]sf] a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

-#_ zfvf sfof{no lj:tf/M sDkgLn] k|bfg ul//x]sf] aLdf ;]jfsf] kx"+r b]ze/L k"¥ofpg] p@]Zo 
cg"?k k|b]zut cjwf/)ff cjnDag u/L ;dLIff cjlwdf ;ft j }̂ k|b]zdf k|Fb]lzs 
sfof{no :yfkgf u/L lhDd]jf/L tyf bfloTjx? tf]lsPsf] % . xfn sDkgLn] cfkm\gf 135 
j^f zfvf tyf pkzfvf sfof{nox? dfkm{t :yfgLo :t/af^} hLjg aLdf ;]jf k|bfg 
ul//x]sf]df Joj;flos ;~hfn lj:tf/ ub}{ hfg] qmddf rfn" cfly{s jif{ 2082÷083 df 
Joj;flos ;DefJotfsf cfwf/df yk :yfgdf gof+ zfvf÷pkzfvf sfof{no :yfkgf u/L 
sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] ;]jfsf] kx"+rnfO{ :yfgLo :t/df k"¥ofO{ g]kfn /fHoe/ lxdfn b]lv t/fO{ 
tyf k'j{ d]rL b]lv klZrd dxfsfnL ;Dd l*lh^n k|ljlwsf] k|of]u u/L hLjg aLdf ;]jf 
k|bfg ug{] nIo lnOPsf] a]xf]/f ul/dfdo ;efdf cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

-ª_ aLdf clestf{ tflnd Pjd\ j[lQ ljsf;M hLjg aLdf Joj;fodf aLldt -u|fxs_ / sDkgLsf] 
;DaGw ;]t"sf] ?kdf /xg] aLdf clestf{x?sf] cxd e'ldsf /x]sf] x"G% . b]zdf ljBdfg 
hLjg aLdf ;DaGwL ;r]tgfsf] sdLsf afah"b o; sDkgLsf] Joj;fo j[l$df sDkgLdf 
sfo{/t sl/a k}lt; xhf/ aLdf clestf{ æl;l^hg ln*/Æ af^ Jofks ;xof]u k"u]sf] % 
. sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] Joj;flos nIo k|fKt ug{sf nflu a(L eGbf a(L aLdf clestf{x? 
pTkfbg ug{ lgofds lgsfosf] lgb]{zg adf]lhd lg/Gt/ ?kdf clestf{ cfwf/e't tflndx? 
;~rfng ul//x]sf] % . 

o; sDkgLsf] Joj;fo lj:tf/sf nflu d]?b)*sf ?kdf /x]sf bIf clestf{x? 
pTkfbg ug{ tyf sDkgLdf cfj$ clestf{x?sf] j[lQ ljsf; u/L Joj;flos clestf{x? 
-k|f]km];gn Ph]G;L_ sf] ;~hfn lj:tf/ ug{ hLjg aLdf Joj;fodf cg"ejL k|lzÔsx?af^ 
k|b]z, zfvf Pjd\ pkzfvf sfof{no :t/df lg/Gt/ ?kdf hLjg aLdf Joj;fosf] ljsf;sf 
nflu cfjZos tflnd pknAw u/fO{ clestf{x?sf] j[lQ ljsf; u/fpg] sfo{nfO{ lg/Gt/tf 
lbO{ cfPsf %f}+ . cfd hgdfg;df aLdf k|ltsf] ;r]tgf j[l$ u/fpg aLdf hfu/)f cleofg 
;~rfng ug"{sf ;fy} gof+ JolQmx?nfO{ clestf{sf] ?kdf cl# a(\g ljleGg sfo{qmdx? 
dfkm{t k|]l/t u/L cfPsf %f}+ . o;} u/L sDkgLsf If]qLo, k|b]z Pjd\ zfvf tyf pkzfvf 
sfof{nox?df lg/Gt/ ?kdf sDkgLsf k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t, gfoa k|d"v sfo{sf/L 
clws[t, k|d"v ahf/ Joj:yfkg clws[t, k|d"v Joj;fo clws[tx? Pjd\ tflnd ljefu 
k|d"v ;d]tsf] ;xefuLtfdf sDkgLsf] Joj;fo j[l$ Pjd\ clestf{ tyf hgdfg;df hLjg 
aLdfsf] dxTjsf] ;DaGwdf ;r]tgf clej[l$sf] nflu sfo{zfnf, uf]i&L, #/b}nf], JolQmut 
e]̂ #f^ nufotsf ljleGg sfo{qmdx? ;~rfng ul/cfPsf] a]xf]/f o; ;efdf hfgsf/L 
u/fp+b%f}+ . 

o; sDkgLn] clestf{sf]] lgo"lQm tyf j[lt ljsf;df ;d]t ljljwtfdf Pstf / 
sfo{:yndf ;dfj]lztfsf] d'ndGqnfO{ cfTd;ft ul/cfPsf] kl/k]|Iodf aLdf P]g, 2079 df 
Ps JolQm ;dfg k|s[ltsf] Ps sDkgLdf dfq clestf{ x"g kfpg] Joj:yfn] sDkgLn] 
cjnDag ul/cfPsf] Joj;flos clestf{sf] pTkfbg, ljsf; tyf lj:tf/df yk ^]jf k"Ug], 
aLldtx?n] yk k|efjsf/L ;]jf kfpg"sf ;fy} ahf/df ljBdfg c:j:y k|lt:kwf{nfO{ s]xL 
xb;Dd Go'gLs/)f ug{ d@t k"Ug] ck]Iff u/]sf %f}+ . 

-r_ ;+:yfut ;"zf;gM s"g} klg sDkgL bL#{sfn;Dd ;~rfngdf /lx/xg ;f] sDkgLsf] b}lgs 
lqmofsnfkdf ;+:yfut ;"zf;gsf] cToGt &'nf] e'ldsf /xG% . ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf ;f] 
cGtu{t ul&t ;ldlt÷pk;ldltx?n] ;lqmotfk'j{s sDkgLdf eP u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLx?sf] 
lgoldt ?kdf cg"udg, lg/LIf)f u/L plrt dfu{bz{gx? k|bfg ub}{ ;"zf;gsf] cj:yfnfO{ 
dha"b agfOPsf] % . 

o;} u/L g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ hf/L aLdssf] ;+:yfut ;"zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf 
adf]lhd gfoa k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] ;+of]hsTjdf tLg ;b:oLo ;+:yfut ;"zf;g 
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OsfO{ u&g ul/Psf] % . pQm OsfO{n] sDkgLsf sfdsf/afxLx? k|rlnt P]g, lgod tyf 
lgodgsf/L lgsfox?af^ hf/L lgb]{zg, kl/kq, lgb]{zg Pjd\ cfGtl/s gLlt, lgod, lbUbz{g 
cflbsf] kl/kfngf nufot ;"zf;gsf ljljw ljifodf cg"udg u/L q}dfl;s ?kdf k|d"v 
sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ cfjZos hfgsf/L u/fpb} cfPsf] % . 

o;sf ;fy} sDkgLsf] kl/kfng ljefu tyf cfGtl/s Pjd\ afx\o n]vfk/LIfsaf^ 
sDkgLsf] ;"zf;g Joj:yfnfO{ cg"udg tyf ;"k/Lj]If)f u/L ;"zf;g sfof{Gjogsf ;DaGwdf 
cfjlws ?kdf k|ltj]bg k]z ug]{ ul/Psf] % . aLdf P]g, 2079 tyf aLdf lgodfjnL, 
2081, sDkgL P]g, 2063 tyf lwtf]kq P]g, 2063, g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ ;do 
;dodf hf/L ePsf lgb]{lzsf, dfu{bz{g, lgb]{zg Pjd\ kl/kqx? nufot k|rlnt P]g tyf 
lgodfjnLdf ePsf sfg"gL Joj:yfx?sf] k')f{ kl/kfngf ug{ u/fpg ;~rfns ;ldlt ;b}j 
;hu / ;r]t /x]sf] a]xf]/f o; ;efdf cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

-%_ ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTjM o; sDkgLn] Joj;fo lj:tf/;+u} Ps c;n ;+:yfut 
gful/ssf ?kdf /fi^« tyf ;dfhk|ltsf] pQ/bfloTjnfO{ lgjf{x ug{ :yfkgfsfn b]lv g} 
ljleGg ;fdflhs lqmofsnfkx?df ;lqmo ;xefuLtf hgfpb} cfPsf] % . o; sDkgLn] 
;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj lgjf{x ug]{ qmddf sDkgLn] ljleGg ;+# ;+:yfx?;+usf] 
‘;xsfo{df b]ze/ %l/P/ /x]sf cfkm\gf zfvf tyf pkzfvf sfof{nox? dfkm{t lgMz"Ns 
cf+vf lzlj/, bGt lzlj/, lrlsT;f k/fdz{ ;]jf, /Qmbfg nufotsf :jf:Yo ;DaGwL ljljw 
sfo{qmdx? ;~rfng ug"{sf ;fy} lk%l*Psf If]q, ju{ tyf ;d"bfosf afnaflnsfsf] z}lIfs 
ljsf;df ;xof]u k"¥ofpg tyf k|fs[lts k|sf]kdf k/]sf kl/jf/sf] hLjg:t/ psf:g ljleGg 
ultljlwx? ;~rfng ul/cfPsf] % . 

;d"bfodf Go’'g cfo ePsf JolQmx?nfO{ hLjg aLdf clestf{sf ?kdf k|lzlIft u/fO{ 
:yfgLo :t/df hLjg aLdf Joj;fosf dfWodaf^ cfo cfh{gsf] dxTjk')f{ ;fwgsf] ?kdf 
ljsf; u/L ;dfhdf JofKt a]/f]huf/LnfO{ s]xL xb;Dd Go'gLs/)f ug{ / :yfgLo txdf 
hLjg aLdf ;DaGwL hgr]tgf km}nfpg ‘ljBfyL{;+u aLdf’, ‘u"? ;Ddfg sfo{qmd’, ‘hLjg 
aLdf h?/L %’ h:tf aLdf hfu/)f ;DaGwL ljleGg cleofgx? ;~rfng u/L cfPsf] / 
o:tf cleofgx?n] g]kfn ;/sf/sf] hLjg aLdfsf] bfo/f a(fpg] nIo k|flKtdf k|ToIf 
k/f]If ?kdf ^]jf k"¥ofpg] ck]Iff u/]sf %f}+ . 

o;} u/L aLdf ;fIf/tf, b}jL k|sf]k Joj:yfkg, jftfj/)f ;+/If)f, ;f+:s[lts k|j${g, 
b"u{d If]qdf k'jf{wf/ ;"wf/, ;fdflhs ?kn] lk%l*Psf ju{sf] cfo cfh{g Ifdtf clej[l$ 
nufot :jf:Yo / lzIffdf ;/n kx"+r k"¥ofpg lgodgsf/L lgsfon] k|To]s cfly{s jif{ 
v"b d"gfkmfsf] sDtLdf Ps k|ltztn] x"g] /sd %"§ofO{ ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]if 
v*f u/L hDdf ug"{kg]{ Joj:yf u/]sf]df ;f] Joj:yfnfO{ k')f{ kfngf ug{ ;~rfns ;ldlt 
k|lta$ /x]sf] a]xf]/f o; ;Ddflgt ;efdf cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

;dLIff cjlwdf ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]ifsf] cj:yf b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] 
a]xf]/f o; ;efdf cjut u/fpb%f}+M 

ljj/)f /sd ?= 

Jfif{sf] z"?sf] sf]if 4,686,433 

Go'gM ;dLIff cjlwdf vr{ ePsf] /sd (3,843,071) 

sf]ifdf af+sL /x]sf] /sd 843,363 

cfly{s jif{ 2081÷082 sf] d"gfkmfaf^ yk ePsf] /sd 5,492,517 

Jfif{sf] cGTodf sfod /x]sf] sf]if 6,335,879 

-h_ k'+hL j[l$M lgodgsf/L lgsfo >L g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)fn] aLdf sDkgLx?sf] hf]lvd jxg 
ug]{ Ifdtf a(fpg, k'+hLut cfwf/ alnof] agfpg, aLdfsf] kx"+r lj:tf/ ug{, sDkgLx? 
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aLr :j:Yo k|lt:kwf{sf]] jftfj/)f tof/ ug{ Pjd\ hf]lvddf cfwfl/t k'+hL;+u ;fd~h:otf 
x"g] u/L sDkgLsf] r"Qmf k'+hL ?= kf+r ca{ sfod ug{ lgb]{zg lbP cg"?k cGo s"g} 
sDkgL;+u dh{/ gu/L cfGtl/s >f]taf^ g} sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{ 2079÷080 ;Ddsf] 
d"gfkmfaf^ 5 k|ltzt / ;f] kZrft cfly{s jif{ 2080÷081 ;Ddsf] ljt/)fof]Uo 
d"gfkmfaf^ 26=98 k|ltzt af]g; z]o/ hf/L u/L tf]lsPsf] r"Qmf k'+hL sfod ePsf] a]xf]/f 
;Ddflgt ;efdf cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

 -em_ sDkgLsf] pGgltsf] nflu eljiosf of]hgfsf ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/)ff b]xfo 
adf]lhd /x]sf] %M 

o sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/ tyf ;]jfnfO{ g]kfn /fHoe/ lj:tf/ ug{ kxn ug]{ . 
o sDkgLsf] Joj;fo j[l$sf nflu clestf{x?sf] e'ldsf dxTjk')f{ x"g] x"+bf bIf clestf{x? 
pTkfbg ug{ tyf sDkgLdf cfj$ clestf{x?sf] j[lQ ljsf; u/L Joj;flos clestf{x? 
-k|f]km];gn Ph]G;L_ sf] ;~hfn lj:tf/ ug{ cg"ejL k|lzÔsx?af^ lgoldt ?kdf tflnd, 
e]nf, uf]i&L, sfo{zfnf h:tf ljleGg sfo{qmdx? ;~rfng u/L sDkgLn] k|rngdf 
NofPsf aLdf of]hgfx?sf ;DaGwdf yk ;";'lrt u/fO{ k|ljlwo"Qm Joj;flos aLdf ;]jf 
pknAw u/fpg]  . 

o ;dfj]zL aLdf of]hgfsf] dfWodaf^ u|fld)f, b"u{d tyf lk%l*Psf ;d"bfodf hLjg 
aLdfsf] kx"+r lj:tf/ ug]{, 

o sDkgLsf] u|fxs s]lGb|t ;]jfnfO{ yk k|efjsf/L agfpg, bIf hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ug{ 
sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ :jb]z tyf ljb]zdf hLjg aLdf Joj;fo;+u ;DalGwt ljleGg sfo{zfnf, 
uf]i&L, tflnddf ;xefuL u/fpg] . 

o ;'rgf k|ljlwsf] ljsf;af^ >[lht cj;/nfO{ ;b"kof]u u/L sDkgLsf] ;]jfnfO{ yk 
k|efjsf/L agfpg l*lh^nfOh]zg ug]{ sfo{nfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbg] .  

o hLjg aLdf If]qdf cu|)fL e'ldsf lgjf{x u/L aLdf Joj;foaf^ aLldt tyf z]o/wgLx?nfO{ 
;do ;fk]If plrt k|ltkmn lbg k|of;/t /xg] . 

o hLjg aLdf Joj;fodf x"g ;Sg] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)fsf hf]lvdx?nfO{ cfjZos gLlt tyf 
sfo{ljlw dfkm{t Go'gLs/)f ug{ cfjZos pkfox? cjnDag ug]{ . 

4. sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus Pjd\ Joj;flos ;DaGwM 

o; sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] ;]jf lj:tf/ ug]{ qmddf sDkgLsf aLldt, clestf{, sd{rf/L, ;b\efjgfb't 
-a|fG* Pda]:*/_, k"gaL{df sDkgLx?, lgodgsf/L lgsfox? >L g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)f, sDkgL 
/lhi^«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]*{, g]kfn :^s PS:r]Gh lnld^]*, ljleGg a}+s tyf ljQLo 
;+:yfx? Pjd\ sDkgL;+u Joj;flos ;DaGw /x]sf cGo ;/f]sf/jfnf lgsfo, ;+#;+:yfx?;+u 
;"dw"/ ;DaGw sfod /flvcfPsf] % . sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] ;]jfnfO{ g]kfn /fHoe/ lj:tf/ ub}{ 
nlu/x]sf] kl/k|]Ôdf k|b]z ;/sf/, :yfgLo lgsfo tyf ;dfhsf ;a} txsf pBf]uL Joj;foLx?;+u 
;f}xfb{k')f{ cf}Bf]lus tyf Joj;flos ;DaGw sfod /fVg"sf ;fy} eljiodf ;d]t ;f] ;DaGw 
;"dw"/ /xg]% eGg] ck]Iff u/]sf %f}+ . 

5. ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/k]m/ / ;f] sf] sf/)fM 

sDkgLsf] ldlt 2082÷03÷31 df ;DkGg ;~rfns ;ldltsf] lg)f{o adf]lhd l/Qm :jtGq tyf 
Joj;flos ;~rfns kbdf >L b]j/fh clwsf/LnfO{ lgo"Qm ul/Psf]] / ;f] sf] hfgsf/L oyf;dodf 
lgodgsf/L lgsfox?nfO{ lbOPsf] a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

6. afx\o jftfj/)faf^ Joj;flos sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg{] d"Vo s"/fx?M 

hLjg aLdf Joj;fodf aLldtx?sf] hf]lvd a]xf]g"{sf ;fy} aLldtx?af^ aLdfz"Nssf ?kdf k|fKt 
x"g] /sdnfO{ oyfzSo pRrtd k|ltkmn k|fKt x"g] If]qdf nufgL u/L aLldtx?nfO{ ;d"lrt 
k|ltkmn lbg] nIo lnOPsf] x"G% . o;/L aLdf Joj;fosf] j[l$b/ tyf sf/f]af/nfO{ d"Votof 
b]xfosf ljifoj:t"n] ;sf/fTds÷gsf/fTds b"a} lsl;dsf] c;/ kfg{ ;Sg] b]lvG%M 
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o cl:y/ /fhg}lts cj:yf, j}b]lzs gLltdf x"g] kl/jt{g, ;/sf/sf] cfly{s tyf df}lb|s gLlt, 
o ljQLo If]qsf] t/ntfsf] cj:yfn] sDkgLn] k|fKt ug]{ k|ltkmn b/df cl:y/tf, 
o pRr d"b|f:kmLlt b/ tyf Go'g cfly{s ultljlw, 
o cf}Bf]lus ljsf;df sdL, j}slNks nufgLsf If]qsf] cefj tyf cl:y/ k'+hLahf/, 
o b]zsf] j}b]lzs /f]huf/ ;DaGwL gLltdf x"g] kl/jt{gn] ljk|]if)f cfodf ptf/ r(fj, 
o cGt/f{li^«o :t/df x"g] cfly{s ultljlw tyf e'/fhg}lts cj:yfn] g]kfndf kg{ ;Sg] c;/x?, 
o k|lt:kwf{Tds Joj;flos jftfj/)f, /f]huf/L >[hgf tyf cfocfh{gsf] cj:yf, 
o art ug]{ Ifdtf tyf qmo zlQmdf cfPsf] x|f;, 
o k|ljlwsf] ljsf; tyf bIf hgzlQmsf] cefj, 
o g]kfn ;/sf/n] aLdf Joj;fosf ;DaGwdf ;do ;dodf ug]{ gLltut lg)f{o tyf ;f] adf]lhd 
lgodgsf/L lgsfon] hf/L ug]{ lgb]{zgx? . 

7. n]vfk/LIf)f k|ltj]bgdf s"g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmofM 

n]vfk/LIf)f k|ltj]bgdf ;f/e't s}lkmot pNn]v gePsf] z]o/wgL dxfg"efjx?df hfgsf/Lsf] nflu 
cg"/f]w ub{%f}+ . k|f/lDes n]vfk/LIf)f k|ltj]bg / cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf)f k|ltj]bgsf ;"emfjx? 
adf]lhd cfjZos sfo{x? ub}{ cfO/x]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpb%f+} . 

8. nfef+z a+f*kmf+* ug{ l;kmfl/; ul/Psf] /sdM 

cfly{s jif{ 2081÷082 ;Ddsf] ljt/)fof]Uo d"gfkmfaf^ xfn sfod /x]sf] r"Qmf k'+hL ?= 5 -
kf+r_ ca{sf] 20 k|ltztsf b/n] x"g] /sd ?= 1,00,00,00,000÷- -cIf?kL Ps ca{ ?k}+of 
dfq_ gub nfef+z -nfef+zdf nfUg] s/ ;d]t_ k|:tfj ul/Psf] a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f+} . 

9. z]o/ hkmt ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

;dLIff jif{df sDkgLn] s"g} z]o/ hkmt gu/]sf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ . 

10. ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/sf] k|ult / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] cGTodf 
/x]sf] l:yltsf] k"g/fjnf]sgM 

o; sDkgLsf] s"g} ;xfos sDkgL g/x]sf] a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

11. sDkgL tyf ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{df ;DkGg u/]sf] k|d"v sf/f]af/x? / ;f] cjlwdf 
sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/df cfPsf] s"g} dxTjk')f{ kl/jt{gM 

sDkgLsf] ;xfos sDkgL g/x]sf]n] pk/f]Qm cg";f/sf] s"g} sf/f]af/ g/x]sf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L 
u/fp+b%f}+ . 

12. ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf] cfwf/e't z]o/wgLx?n] sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/LM 

o; sDkgL z]o/wgL dxfg"efjx?af^ k|fKt x"g] ;"emfjx?nfO{ ;b}j :jfut ub{% . z]o/wgLx?af^ 
k|fKt plrt ;"emfjx?nfO{ sDkgLsf] j[lQ ljsf;df of]ubfg k"¥ofpgsf] lglDt cjnDag ug]{ tkm{ 
;~rfns ;ldlt ;b}j k|oTgzLn /x]sf] a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

13. ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/)f 
/ sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/df lghx? ;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx?af^ sDkgLn] k|fKt 
u/]sf] hfgsf/LM 

ldlt 2081÷12÷15 df ;DkGg cf&f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efsf] lg)f{o adf]lhd tTsfn sfod 
r"Qmf k'+hL ?= 3 ca{ 93 s/f]* 75 nfvsf] 26=98412698 k|ltztn] x"g] /sd ?= 1 ca{ 6 
s/f]* 25 nfv a/fa/sf] af]g; z]o/ hf/L eO{ sDkgLsf] r"Qmf k'+hL ?= 5 ca{ sfod x"g 
uPsf] / ;f]xL adf]lhd >L sDkgL /lhi^«f/sf] sfof{noaf^ ldlt 2082÷01÷07 df z]o/ nut 
clen]v ePsf] afx]s ;dLIff cjlwdf ;f] df cGo s"g} kl/jt{g gePsf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ 
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. o;sf ;fy} cGo s"g} lsl;dn] sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/df s"g} klg ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx? 
;+nUg gx"g" ePsf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+  . 

14. ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;+u ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx?df s"g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] 
gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{sf] af/]df pknAw u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] a]xf]/fM 

ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf lghsf glhssf] gft]bf/x?;+u sDkgL;+u ;DalGwt 
s"g} klg ;Demf}tfx?df :jfy{ g/x]sf] a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

15. sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] z]o/ cfk}+mn] vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfkm\gf] z]o/ vl/b ug"{sf] sf/)f, To:tf] 
z]o/sf] ;+Vof / c+lst d'No tyf To;/L z]o/ vl/b u/] jfkt sDkgLn] e"QmfgL u/]sf] /sdM 

sDkgLn] cfkm\gf]] z]o/ cfk}mn] vl/b gu/]sf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ . 

16. cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] eP ;f] sf] lj:t[t ljj/)fM 

sDkgLdf ;+:yfks z]o/wgLsf] tkm{af^ k|ltlglwTj ug]{ rf/ hgf ;b:o, ;j{;fwf/)f z]o/wgLx?sf] 
tkm{af^ k|ltlglwTj ug]{ b"O{ hgf ;b:o / Ps hgf :jtGq tyf Joj;flos ;~rfns ;b:o 
;lxtsf] ;ft ;b:oLo ;~rfns ;ldlt /xg] Joj:yf /x]sf] % . ;~rfns ;ldltn] P]g, 
lgodfjnL, k|rlnt sfg"g tyf g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ hf/L gLlt, lgod, lgb]{zgsf ;fy} 
;~rfns ;ldltaf^ agfOPsf gLlt, lgod, ljlgod, lgb]{zg, lbUbz{g, sfo{ljlw / ;~rfns 
;ldlt Pjd\ ;f] cGtu{tsf ;ldltx?sf lg)f{o kfngf eP gePsf] ;DaGwdf sfo{ljlw agfO{ 
cg"udg tyf ;"k/Lj]If)f ug]{ ul/Psf] % .  

aLdssf] ;+:yfut ;"zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf Pjd\ aLdf P]g adf]lhd x"g] u/L ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] a}&sdf ;"zf;g ;DaGwL ljifodf cfjZos %nkmn u/L lg)f{ox? nfu' ug]{ ul/Psf] % 
. Joj:yfkgsf] sfdsf/afxLnfO{ k|efjsf/L ?kdf ;~rfng ug{ ;ldlt tyf pk;ldltx? u&g 
u/L ;"zf;gsf] cj:yfnfO{ z;Qm agfOPsf] % .  

sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpg ;~rfns ;ldlt ;b:osf] 
;+of]hsTjdf b]xfo adf]lhdsf ;ldltx? u&g ul/Psf] % . o;sf ;fy} lgoldt ?kdf ;DkGg 
x"g] ;f] ;ldltsf a}&sx?df Joj:yfkgaf^ eP u/]sf sfdsf/afxLx?sf ;DaGwdf lj:t[t ?kdf 
%nkmn u/L lg)f{ox? ug"{sf ;fy} cfjZostfg";f/ lgb]{zgx? k|bfg ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 

s=  dfgj ;+;fwg ;ldltM 

>L k|bLkhé kf)*], cWoIf     M ;+of]hs 
>L bfjf km"^L z]kf{, ;~rfns    M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
>L z+s/ lagf]b rfln;], k|d"v – dfgj ;+;fwg ljefu M ;b:o ;lrj 

v=  n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltM 

>L bfjf km"^L z]kf{, ;~rfns    M ;+of]hs 
>L dgf]h sfsL{, ;~rfns     M ;b:o 
>L b]j/fh clwsf/L, :jtGq ;~rfns   M ;b:o 
>L lbk axfb"/ lj=;L=, gfoa k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t M ;b:o ;lrj 

u=  hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ljQLo :j:ytf -;f]Ne]G;L_ / cg"udg tyf ;"k/Lj]If)f ;ldltM 

>L dgf]h sfsL{, ;~rfns     M ;+of]hs 
>L e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf, ;~rfns    M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
>L uf]kfn k+u]gL, kl/kfng tyf hf]lvd clws[t  M ;b:o ;lrj 
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#=  nufgL ;ldltM 

>L ;"ldt s"df/ cu|jfn, ;~rfns    M ;+of]hs 
>L dx]z :jf+/, ;~rfns     M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
>L dw";"bg rf}nfufO{, nufgL clws[t   M ;b:o ;lrj 

ª=  bfaL e"QmfgL tyf k"gaL{df ;ldltM 

>L b]j/fh clwsf/L, :jtGq ;~rfns   M ;+of]hs 
>L ;"ldt s"df/ cu|jfn, ;~rfns    M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
>L dx]z Gof}kfg], k|d"v – bfaL ljefu   M ;b:o ;lrj 

r=  ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)f ;ldltM 

>L e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf, ;~rfns    M ;+of]hs 
>L b]j /fh clwsf/L, :jtGq ;~rfns   M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
>L lab"/ axfb"/ e"h]n, sfof{Gjog clws[t   M ;b:o ;lrj 

%=  ahf/ Joj:yfkg ;ldltM 

>L dx]z :jf+/, ;~rfns     M ;+of]hs 
>L e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf, ;~rfns    M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
>L e"if)f l/dfn, k|d"v ahf/ Joj:yfkg clws[t  M ;b:o ;lrj 

k|rlnt P]g, lgod tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfox?af^ hf/L lgb]{lzsf, dfu{bz{g, lgb]{zg, kl/kq 
Pjd\ sDkgLsf] gLlt lgodsf] kl/kfngf ug{ u/fpg tyf ;f] kfngf eP gePsf] Plsg ug{ 
n]vfk/LIf)f -cfGtl/s, afx\o, ;'rgf k|ljlw k|)ffnL k/LIf)f cflb_ ;DaGwL sfo{ ug"{sf ;fy} 
cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL ;"b[( agfpg sDkgLdf nfu' ug"{kg]{ gLlt, lgod, ljlgod, lbUbz{g 
Pjd\ sfo{ljlwx? ;do ;fk]If ?kdf tof/ ug]{ tyf cfjZostf cg";f/ kl/dfh{g u/L sfof{Gjogdf 
Nofpg] / sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/nfO{ kf/bzL{ agfO{ hgdfg; ;dIf k"¥ofpg cfjZos sfo{x? eO{/x]sf] 
a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

17. ljut cfly{s jif{sf] s"n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/)fM 

ljut cfly{s jif{sf] s"n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/)f b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] % . 

qm=;+= ljj/)f /sd -?=_ 

1 sd{rf/L vr{ 374,317,738 

2 cGo Joj:yfkg vr{ 510,658,652 

  hDdf  884,976,390 

18. n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL, lghx?n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;"ljwf, 
;f] ;ldltn] u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLsf] ljj/)f / ;f] ;ldltn] s"g} ;"emfj lbPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/)fM 

n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL lgDgfg";f/ /x]sf] % . 

1. >L bfjf km"^L z]kf{ – ;+of]hs 
2. >L dgf]h sfsL{  – ;b:o 
3. >L b]j/fh clwsf/L – ;b:o 
4. >L lbk axfb"/ lj=;L= – ;b:o ;lrj 
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;dLIff jif{df n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?nfO{ a}&s eQf jfkt ?= 157,500÷- -cIf?kL 
Ps nfv ;GtfpGg xhf/ kf+r ;o ?k}+of dfq_ e"QmfgL ul/Psf] % . 

n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltn] sDkgL P]g, aLdf P]g tyf g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)fn] hf/L u/]sf] 
lgb]{zgsf] cwLgdf /xL sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s Pjd\ afx\o n]vfk/LIfs, ;'rgf k|ljlw n]vfk/LIfsn] 
n]vfk/LIf)fsf ;Gbe{df cf}+NofPsf s}lkmot tyf ;"emfjx?sf] cWoog Pjd\ ;dLIff ug]{, lgodgsf/L 
lgsfox?af^ lbOPsf lgb]{zgx?sf] kl/kfngf u/fpg] / cfjZostf cg"";f/ sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s 
lgoGq)f k|)ffnLdf ;"wf/ Nofpg /fo ;lxt ;~rfns ;ldlt ;dIf k|ltj]bg k|:t"t u/L cfPsf] 
a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

19. ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d"v tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e"QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, 
eQf tyf ;"ljwfsf] /sdM 

;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d"v tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e"QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, 
eQf tyf ;"ljwfsf] /sd lgDgfg";f/ /x]sf] %M 

qm=;+= ljj/)f  e"QmfgL /sd -?_ 

1  ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}&s eQf          925,000  

2  k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] tna eQf       14,127,338  

3  cGo k|aGws tyf Joj:yfkgsf kbflwsf/Lsf] tna eQf       83,713,693  

pk/f]Qm adf]lhd tna eQf afx]s k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t / k|aGws jf ;f] eGbf 
dflyNnf] kbdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ ;jf/L ;fwg ;"ljwf pknAw u/fOPsf] % . 

g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ hf/L aLdssf] sfo{sf/L k|d"vsf] tna, eQf tyf cGo ;"ljwf 
;DaGwL dfu{bz{g, 2074 df ePsf] Joj:yf adf]lhd k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ k|bfg ul/Psf] 
tna eQf tyf cGo ;"ljwf b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] %M 

qm=;+= ljj/)f  o; cf=j= -?_ ut cf=j= -?_ 

-s_ lglZrt jflif{s tna tyf eQfx? 8,581,008 8,476,600 

-v_ sfo{;Dkfbgdf cfwfl/t kfl/>lds   

1= sd{rf/L af]g; 1,637,614 559,791 

2= k|rlnt Joj:yf cg";f/sf] ;"ljwf   

3= k|f]T;fxg ;"ljwf -OG;]lG^e_ 3,875,000 - 

-u_ aLdf ;DaGwL ;"ljwfx?   

1= sfo{sf/L k|d"vsf] ;fjlws hLjg aLdf   

2= sfo{sf/L k|d"vsf] b"#{^gf aLdf 27,016 25,391 

3= sfo{sf/L k|d"v / lghsf] kl/jf/sf] :jf:Yo aLdf 6,700 6,750 

-#_ cGo ;"ljwfx? - - 

  s"n hDdf 14,127,338 9,068,532 

20. ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d"v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e't z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf 
gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul&t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s"g} /sd a"emfpg 
af+sL eP ;f] s"/fM 

;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d"v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e't z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf 
gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+ul&t ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s"g} /sd a"emfpg 
af+sL g/x]sf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ . 
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21. z]o/wgLx?n] a"lemlng af+sL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sdM 

sDkgLsf z]o/wgLx?n] a"lemlng af+sL /x]sf] nfef+z /sd g/x]sf] a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f+} . 

22. bkmf 141 adf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf] s"/fsf] ljj/)fM 

;dLIff jif{sf] ljQLo ljj/)fdf pNn]v ePsf] ;DklQsf] d'Nosf] kGw| k|ltzt eGbf a(L d'Nosf] 
;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL gul/Psf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ . 

23. bkmf 175 adf]lhd ;Da$ sDkgL aLr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/)fM 

o; sDkgLsf] ;xfos sDkgL gePsf] / of] sDkgL s"g} d"Vo sDkgLsf] ;xfos sDkgL klg 
gePsf]n] pk/f]Qm bkmfdf pNn]v eP adf]lhd s"g} sf/f]af/ gePsf] cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

24. aLldtx?sf] af]g; b/: 

cfly{s jif{ 2081÷082 sf nflu sDkgLsf aLldtx?n] aLdfn]v cGtu{t kfpg] af]g; b/ -
aLdf° /sd k|lt xhf/ k|lt jif{df_ b]xfo adf]lhd sfod /x]sf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ . 

Product Line 2081/082 2080/081 

Citizen Endowment Plus Plan 35-75 35-75 

Citizen Regular Pay Endowment Insurance Plan 38-73 38-73 

Citizen Bal Bhabisya Yojana 40-67 40-67 

Citizen Jeevan Saarathi Yojana  38-80 38-80 

Citizen Regular Pay Money Back Insurance Plan 44-55 44-55 

Citizen Annual Money Back Insurance Plan 25-28 25-28 

25. sDkgL P]g, 2063 tyf k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v"nfpg" kg]{ cGo 
s"g} s"/fM 

;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)f ;DaGwL P]g tyf lgodfjnL, g]kfn /fi^« a}+s, ljQLo hfgsf/L OsfO{af^ 
hf/L ul/Psf] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f ;DaGwL lgb]{zg tyf lgofds lgsfo g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)fn] 
hf/L u/]sf] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf cft°jfbL lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo nufgL lgjf/)f ;DaGwL 
lgb]{lzsfdf pNn]lvt k|fjwfgx?sf] k')f{ ?kdf kl/kfngf u/L cfPsf %f}+ . clestf{ tyf 
aLldtx?nfO{ ;DklQ z"$Ls/)fsf af/]df oyf]lrt hfgsf/L k|bfg ub}{ hLjg aLdfsf dfWodaf^ 
x"g ;Sg] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)fsf k|of;nfO{ /f]Sgsf nflu sDkgLn] ;~rfns ;ldlt, cfwf/e't 
z]o/wgL tyf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf d'ne't ljifodf tflnd ;d]t k|bfg u/L cfPsf 
%f}+ . ;fy} ljQLo hfgsf/L OsfO{af^ hf/L lgb]{zg adf]lhd jflif{s Ps nfv ?k}+of eGbf a(L 
aLdfz"Ns e"QmfgL ug]{ u|fxsx?sf] ljj/)f tf]lsPsf] ;do;Ldf leq goAML dfkm{t k]z ug]{ 
ul/Psf] % . ;fy} u|fxsx?sf] hf]lvd d'NofEgsf qmddf ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f ;DaGwL hf]lvdx? 
b]vf k/]df jf tf]lsPsf] ;'rf°sf] dfkb)* leq s"g} u|fxssf] ljj/)f /x]sf] kfOPdf ljQLo 
hfgsf/L OsfO{df tf]lsPsf] ;do leq z+sf:kb sf/f]af/ tyf z+sf:kb ultljlwsf] ljj/)f k]z 
ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 

26. sDkgL lgb]{lzsf 2072 sf] lgb]{zg 86 adf]lhdsf] pb#f]if)fM 

o; sDkgLaf^ sDkgL P]g, 2063 sf] k')f{ kfngf ePsf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG%f}+ . 

cGtdf, o; sDkgLsf] k|ultsf] nflu :yfkgfsfn b]lv cljl%Gg ?kdf ;xof]u tyf ;b\efj, 
cd'No ;"emfj Pjd\ dfu{bz{g k|bfg ug"{ x"g] ;Dk')f{ z]o/wgL dxfg"efjx?, lgodgsf/L lgsfox? g]kfn 
aLdf k|flws/)f, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]*{, sDkgL /lhi^«f/sf] sfof{no, ;b\efjgfb't -a|fG* PDa]:*/_, l;l^hg 
ln*/, u|fxsju{ Pjd\ ;Dk')F{ z"elrGtsx? tyf ;/f]sf/jfnfx? k|lt xfdL sDkgLsf] tkm{af^ xflb{s 
s[t!tf ;lxt wGojfb !fkg ub{%f}+ . o;} u/L sDkgLsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf n]vf k|)ffnLnfO{ 
pTs[i^ agfpg dfu{bz{g k|bfg ug"{ x"g] aLdf°L / n]vfk/LIfsx?nfO{ xflb{s wGojfb !fkg ug{ rfxG%f+} 
. o;sf ;fy} sDkgLnfO{ o; prfOdf k"¥ofpg cys kl/>d ug]{ Joj:yfkg tyf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ ljz]if 
wGojfb !fkg ub{%f}+ . 

wGojfb . 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af^ 

 

-e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf_            -k|bLkhé kf)*]_ 
  ;~rfns              cWoIf 
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21. z]o/wgLx?n] a"lemlng af+sL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sdM 

sDkgLsf z]o/wgLx?n] a"lemlng af+sL /x]sf] nfef+z /sd g/x]sf] a]xf]/f cjut u/fp+b%f+} . 

22. bkmf 141 adf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf] s"/fsf] ljj/)fM 

;dLIff jif{sf] ljQLo ljj/)fdf pNn]v ePsf] ;DklQsf] d'Nosf] kGw| k|ltzt eGbf a(L d'Nosf] 
;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL gul/Psf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ . 

23. bkmf 175 adf]lhd ;Da$ sDkgL aLr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/)fM 

o; sDkgLsf] ;xfos sDkgL gePsf] / of] sDkgL s"g} d"Vo sDkgLsf] ;xfos sDkgL klg 
gePsf]n] pk/f]Qm bkmfdf pNn]v eP adf]lhd s"g} sf/f]af/ gePsf] cjut u/fp+b%f}+ . 

24. aLldtx?sf] af]g; b/: 

cfly{s jif{ 2081÷082 sf nflu sDkgLsf aLldtx?n] aLdfn]v cGtu{t kfpg] af]g; b/ -
aLdf° /sd k|lt xhf/ k|lt jif{df_ b]xfo adf]lhd sfod /x]sf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fp+b%f}+ . 

Product Line 2081/082 2080/081 

Citizen Endowment Plus Plan 35-75 35-75 

Citizen Regular Pay Endowment Insurance Plan 38-73 38-73 

Citizen Bal Bhabisya Yojana 40-67 40-67 

Citizen Jeevan Saarathi Yojana  38-80 38-80 

Citizen Regular Pay Money Back Insurance Plan 44-55 44-55 

Citizen Annual Money Back Insurance Plan 25-28 25-28 

25. sDkgL P]g, 2063 tyf k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v"nfpg" kg]{ cGo 
s"g} s"/fM 

;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)f ;DaGwL P]g tyf lgodfjnL, g]kfn /fi^« a}+s, ljQLo hfgsf/L OsfO{af^ 
hf/L ul/Psf] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f ;DaGwL lgb]{zg tyf lgofds lgsfo g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)fn] 
hf/L u/]sf] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf cft°jfbL lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo nufgL lgjf/)f ;DaGwL 
lgb]{lzsfdf pNn]lvt k|fjwfgx?sf] k')f{ ?kdf kl/kfngf u/L cfPsf %f}+ . clestf{ tyf 
aLldtx?nfO{ ;DklQ z"$Ls/)fsf af/]df oyf]lrt hfgsf/L k|bfg ub}{ hLjg aLdfsf dfWodaf^ 
x"g ;Sg] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)fsf k|of;nfO{ /f]Sgsf nflu sDkgLn] ;~rfns ;ldlt, cfwf/e't 
z]o/wgL tyf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf d'ne't ljifodf tflnd ;d]t k|bfg u/L cfPsf 
%f}+ . ;fy} ljQLo hfgsf/L OsfO{af^ hf/L lgb]{zg adf]lhd jflif{s Ps nfv ?k}+of eGbf a(L 
aLdfz"Ns e"QmfgL ug]{ u|fxsx?sf] ljj/)f tf]lsPsf] ;do;Ldf leq goAML dfkm{t k]z ug]{ 
ul/Psf] % . ;fy} u|fxsx?sf] hf]lvd d'NofEgsf qmddf ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f ;DaGwL hf]lvdx? 
b]vf k/]df jf tf]lsPsf] ;'rf°sf] dfkb)* leq s"g} u|fxssf] ljj/)f /x]sf] kfOPdf ljQLo 
hfgsf/L OsfO{df tf]lsPsf] ;do leq z+sf:kb sf/f]af/ tyf z+sf:kb ultljlwsf] ljj/)f k]z 
ug]{ ul/Psf] % . 

26. sDkgL lgb]{lzsf 2072 sf] lgb]{zg 86 adf]lhdsf] pb#f]if)fM 

o; sDkgLaf^ sDkgL P]g, 2063 sf] k')f{ kfngf ePsf] a]xf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG%f}+ . 

cGtdf, o; sDkgLsf] k|ultsf] nflu :yfkgfsfn b]lv cljl%Gg ?kdf ;xof]u tyf ;b\efj, 
cd'No ;"emfj Pjd\ dfu{bz{g k|bfg ug"{ x"g] ;Dk')f{ z]o/wgL dxfg"efjx?, lgodgsf/L lgsfox? g]kfn 
aLdf k|flws/)f, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]*{, sDkgL /lhi^«f/sf] sfof{no, ;b\efjgfb't -a|fG* PDa]:*/_, l;l^hg 
ln*/, u|fxsju{ Pjd\ ;Dk')F{ z"elrGtsx? tyf ;/f]sf/jfnfx? k|lt xfdL sDkgLsf] tkm{af^ xflb{s 
s[t!tf ;lxt wGojfb !fkg ub{%f}+ . o;} u/L sDkgLsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf n]vf k|)ffnLnfO{ 
pTs[i^ agfpg dfu{bz{g k|bfg ug"{ x"g] aLdf°L / n]vfk/LIfsx?nfO{ xflb{s wGojfb !fkg ug{ rfxG%f+} 
. o;sf ;fy} sDkgLnfO{ o; prfOdf k"¥ofpg cys kl/>d ug]{ Joj:yfkg tyf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ ljz]if 
wGojfb !fkg ub{%f}+ . 

wGojfb . 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af^ 

 

-e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf_            -k|bLkhé kf)*]_ 
  ;~rfns              cWoIf 
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lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg lgodfjnL, 2073 sf] lgod 26-2_ ;+u ;DalGwt ljj/)f 

1= ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg : ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd v"nfpg"kg]{ 
ljj/)fx? o;};fy ;+nUg ul/Psf] % . 
 

2= n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg : o;} jflif{s k|ltj]bg;fy ;+nUg ul/Psf] % . 
 
3= n]vfk/LIf)f ePsf] ljQLo ljj/)f : o;} jflif{s k|ltj]bg;fy ;+nUg ul/Psf] % . 
    
4= sfg"gL sf/afxL ;DaGwL ljj/)f : sfg"gL sf/afxL ;DaGwL s"g} klg d"@f bfo/ gePsf]÷gul/Psf] .   
 
5= ;+ul&t ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/ tyf k|ultsf] ljZn]if)f :  

s_ lwtf]kq ahf/df ePsf] sDkgLsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ ;DaGwdf Joj:yfkgsf] wf/)ffM  
lwtf]kq ahf/df z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ ahf/ l;@fGt cg";f/ x"g] u/]sfn] sDkgLsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ 
;DaGwdf Joj:yfkgsf] wf/)f t^:y /x]sf] % . 

v_ ;dLIff cjlwsf] k|To]s q}dfl;s cjlwdf sDkgLsf] z]o/sf] clwstd, Go'gtd / clGtd d'Nosf      
;fy} s"n sf/f]af/ z]o/ ;+Vof / sf/f]af/ lbg ;DaGwL ljj/)f M 
q}df; clwstd d'No Go'gtd d'No clGtd d'No sf/f]af/ z]o/ ;+Vof sf/f]af/ lbg 
k|yd 731.00 545.50 662.00 5,449,699 57 
bf]>f] 725.00 620.00 695.00 2,385,246 55 
t]>f] 774.90 490.50 497.46 5,558,215 56 
rf}yf] 521.40 448.20 474.24 1,628,151 63 
 

6= ;d:of tyf r"gf}tL : hLjg aLdf If]qdf b]lvPsf s]xL r"gf}tLx? lgDg adf]lhd /x]sf %g\: 

 cy{tGqdf sfod /x]sf] cfly{s lzlyntfsf sf/)f shf{sf] dfusf] sdL eO{ # ]̂sf] Jofhb/sf 
sf/)f nufgL cfodf ;+s"rg cfpg" tyf nufgL ljljlws/)fsf nflu j}slNks nufgL If]qsf] 
kof{Kttf gx"g," 

 k'+hL ahf/df ptf/r(fj cfpg", 
 hLjg aLdf ;DaGwL ;r]tgf km}nfpg] sfo{ g]kfn /fHoe/ eO/x]sf] ePtfklg ef}uf]lns las^tfsf 

sf/)f ;a} :yfgx?df sfo{qmd ;~rfng ug{ ;xh gx"g", 
 aLdf ljifo k|fljlws ;d]t ePsf]n] z}lIfs sfo{qmdx?df k|fyldstfdf gkg"{,  
 hLjg aLdf ljifodf cWoog÷cWofkgsf] cfjZostf cg"?k lj:tf/ x"g g;Sg",  
 hLjg aLdf Joj;fodf Joj;flos tyf lqmoflzn clestf{x? kof{Kt gx"g", 
 /fhg}lts cl:y/tf x"g", 
 ;DklQ z"$Ls/)fnfO{ /f]Sgsf nflu ljBdfg s]Gb|Ls[t tYof°x¿ tyf kof{Kt ;'rgf k|ljlwx¿sf] 

cefj x"g" . 

7= ;+:yfut ;"zf;g :  
;+:yfsf] b}lgs lqmofsnfkdf ;+:yfut ;"zf;gsf] dxTjk')f{ e'ldsf /x]sf] x"G% . sDkgLsf ;~rfns 
;ldlt tyf ;f] cGtu{t ul&t ;ldlt÷pk;ldltx?n] ;lqmotfk'j{s sDkgLdf eP u/]sf sfd 
sf/jfxLx?sf] lgoldt ?kdf cg"udg, lg/LIf)f u/L plrt dfu{bz{gx? k|bfg ub}{ ;"zf;gsf] cj:yfnfO{ 
dha"b agfpb} cfPsf] % . sDkgLn] gfoj k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;xfos dxfk|aGws 
/ sfg’"g÷;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)f clws[t ;b:o /xg] u/L tLg ;b:oLo ;+:yfut ;"zf;g OsfO{ 
u&g ul/Psf] % . pQm OsfOn] q}dfl;s ?kdf ?kdf ;"zf;gsf ;DaGwdf %nkmn tyf cg"udg 
u/L k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpg] ub{% . o;/L sDkgLdf ;dLIff cf= j= 2081÷082 
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df 4 j^f a}&sx? ;DkGg ePsf] % . To;}u/L sDkgLsf] ;"zf;g Joj:yfnfO{ lgoldt ?kdf cg"udg 
tyf ;"k/Lj]If)f ug{ sDkgLsf] kl/kfng ljefu tyf cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIfs Pj+d afx\o n]vfk/LIfsaf^ 
;"zf;g sfof{Gjogsf ljifo ;d]t lghx?n] k]z ug{] k|ltj]bgdf ;dfj]z ug]{ ul/Psf] % . aLdf P]g 
tyf lgodfjnL, sDkgL P]g, 2063 tyf lwtf]kq P]g, 2063, aLdssf] ;+:yfut ;"zf;g ;DaGwL 
lgb]{lzsf, 2080, g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ ;do ;dodf hf/L ePsf lgb]{lzsf, lgb]{zg Pjd\ 
kl/kqx?, nufot k|rlnt P]g tyf lgodfjnLdf ePsf sfg"gL Joj:yfx?sf] k')f{ kl/kfngf ug{ u/fpg 
;~rfns ;ldlt k|lta$ /x]sf] % . 
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l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld ]̂* 
;+:yfut ;"zf;g ;DaGwL jflif{s cg"kfngf k|ltj]bg 

-;'rLs[t ;+ul&t ;+:yfx?sf] ;+:yfut ;"zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf, 2074 adf]lhd_ 
 

 

;'rLs[t ;+ul&t ;+:yfsf] gfd  M l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld^]* 
sDkgL btf{ g+=  M 1004÷2063÷064 
aLdf Joj;fo Ohfht gDa/ / ldlt  M 16÷2074÷05÷07 
;Dks{ ljj/)f M sf=d=g=kf= 11, yfkfynL, sf&df)*f} . 

j]j;fO^M www.citizenlifenepal.com 
Od]nM info@citizenlifenepal.com 
kmf]gM 01-5970217 

k|ltj]bg k]z ul/Psf] cfly{s jif{ M 2081÷082 
 

1. ;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

-s_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfsf] gfd tyf lgo"lQm ldltM 

sDkgLsf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfdf >L k|bLkh+u kf)*] ldlt 2079÷04÷06 df lgo"Qm x"g" 
ePsf] . 

-v_ ;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

;d'x Zf]o/wgL z]o/ lsQf k'+hL ;+/rgf e"QmfgL k|ltzt 
s ;+:yfks z]o/wgLx? 35,000,000  70% zt k|ltzt 
v ;j{;fwf/)f z]o/wgLx? 

-sd{rf/Lx? ;d]t_ 
15,000,000 30% zt k|ltzt 

  hDdf 50,000,000 100%  
 

-u_ ;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

qm=
;+= 

;~rfnssf] gfd tyf 
&]ufgf 

k|ltlglwTj 
ePsf] ;d'x 

z]o/ ;+Vof lgo"Qm ePsf] 
ldlt 

kb tyf 
uf]]kgLotfsf] 
zky lnPsf] 

ldlt 

;~rfns 
lgo"Qm ePsf] 

ljlw 

1= 
k|bLkh+u kf)*] 
Affn"jf^f/ – 3, 
sf&df)*f} 

;+:yfks 18,33,333.33          2079÷04÷06 2079÷4÷6 
;fwf/)f 
;ef 

2= 
;"ldt s"df/ cu|jfn 
aQL;k"tnL – 9, 
sf&df)*f} 

;+:yfks 26,00,000 2079÷04÷06 2079÷4÷6 ;fwf/)f 
;ef 

3= 
dgf]h sfsL{ 
&"nf%fk 6, 
cf]vn("éf 

;+:yfks   80,000 2079÷04÷06 2079÷4÷6 ;fwf/)f 
;ef 
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4= 
dx]z :jf+/ 
w"Daf/fxL 5, 
sf&df)*f} 

;+:yfks 20,000 2079÷04÷06 2079÷4÷6 ;fwf/)f 
;ef 

5= 
bfjf km"^L z]kf{ 
Affn"jf^f/ – 4, 
sf&df)*f} 

;j{;fwf/)f ;+:yfut 
k|ltlglwTj 

2080÷10÷14 2080÷10÷
14 

;fwf/)f 
;ef 

6= 
e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf 
zflGtgu/, sf&df)*f} 

;j{;fwf/)f 3,066.67 2080÷10÷14 2080÷10÷
14 

;fwf/)f 
;ef 

7= 
b]j/fh clwsf/L 
;'o{ljgfos - 2, 
eQmk"/ 

:jtGq 
;~rfns 

- 2082÷03÷31 2082÷03÷
31 

;~rfns 
;ldlt 

-#_ ;~rfns ;ldlt a}&sM 

;~rfns ;ldlt a}&s ;DaGwL ljj/)f b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] %M 

qm=;+= ;dLIff cf=j= df 
a;]sf] ;~rfns 

;ldlt a}&ssf] ldlt 

pkl:yt 
;~rfnssf] 
;+Vof 

a}&ssf] lg)f{odf 
leGg dt /fvL 
x:tfIf/ ug]{ 

;~rfnssf] ;+Vof 

ut cf=j= df 
a;]sf] a}&ssf] 

ldlt 

1 2081/05/30 6 - 2080/05/29 
2 2081/07/14 6 - 2080/06/02   
3 2081/08/11 6 - 2080/06/18   
4 2081/08/24 4 - 2080/07/21   
5 2081/10/03 5 - 2080/08/22   
6 2081/11/08 5 - 2080/09/16  
7 2081/11/16 5 - 2080/09/19   
8 2081/12/21 6 - 2080/10/02   
9 2082/01/07 5 - 2080/10/14   
10 2082/03/04 4 - 2080/11/17  
11 2082/03/31 6 - 2080/11/24   
    2080/12/02   
    2081/01/04   
    2081/01/12 
    2081/01/23   
    2081/01/25   
    2081/02/23 
    2081/03/30   

s"g} ;~rfns ;ldlt a}&s cfjZos u)fk"/s ;+Vof gk"uL :ylut ePsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/)fM ;f] 
gePsf] .  

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}&s ;DaGwL cGo ljj/)fM 

;~rfns ;ldlt a}&sdf ;~rfns jf j}slNks 
;~rfns pkl:yt eP gePsf] -gePsf] cj:yfdf 
a}&ssf] ldlt ;lxt sf/)f v"nfpg]_  

j}slNks ;~rfns g/x]sf]] . ;ldlt 
a}&sdf ;~rfns pkl:yt x"g g;Sg] 
ePdf ;f] sf] k'j{ hfgsf/L lbg] u/]sf] . 
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;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}&sdf pkl:yt ;~rfnsx?, 
%nkmn ePsf] ljifo / tt\ ;DaGwdf ePsf] lg)f{o 
ljj/)f -dfOGo'̂ _ sf] clen]v /fv] g/fv]sf]  

/flvPsf] . 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] b"O{ nuftf/ a;]sf] a}&ssf] 
clwstd cGt/ -lbg_  

59 lbg . 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}&s eQf lgwf{/)F ;DaGwdf 
a;]sf] jflif{s ;fwf/)F ;efsf] ldlt  

2078÷12÷11 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lt a}&s eQf ?=   ;~rfns ;ldlt cWoIf ?=20,000÷- 
;~rfns ;ldlt ;b:o ?=15,000÷- 

cf=j=sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] s"n a}&s vr{ ?= ?= 9,25,000÷- 

2. ;~rfnssf] cfr/)f ;DaGwL tyf cGo ljj/)fM 

;~rfnssf] cfr/)f ;DaGwdf ;DalGwt ;+:yfsf] cfrf/ ;+lxtf 
eP÷gePsf]   

gePsf] 

Psf#/ kl/jf/sf] Ps eGbf al( ;~rfns eP ;f] ;DaGwL 
ljj/)f  

gePsf] . 

;~rfnsx?sf] jflif{s ?kdf l;sfO{ tyf k"gtf{huL sfo{qmd ;DaGwL ljj/)f  
qm=;+ ljifo ldlt ;xefuL ;~rfnssf] 

;+Vof 
tflnd ;~rfng 
ePsf] :yfg 

1 ;~rfnsx?sf] nflu AML/CFT 
;DaGwdf lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf^ 
hf/L lgb]{lzsf adf]lhd 
cled"vLs/)f sfo{qmd ;~rfng 
ul/Psf] . 

2082÷02÷30 34 -;~rfns ;ldltsf 
;b:ox? ;lxt cfwf/e't 
z]o/wgLx? tyf 
sDkgLsf pRr 
Joj:yfksx?_ 

sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo 
sfof{no 
yfkfynL 

k|To]s ;~rfnsn] cfkm' ;~rfnssf] kbdf lgo"Qm jf dgf]gog 
ePsf] kGw| lbg leq b]xfosf s"/fsf] lnlvt hfgsf/L u/fPsf] 
÷gu/fPsf] / gu/fPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/)f M 
• ;+:yf;+u lgh jf lghsf] Psf#/sf] kl/jf/sf] s"g} ;b:on] s"g} 

lsl;dsf] s/f/ u/]sf] jf ug{ nfu]sf] eP ;f]sf]  ljj/)f . 
• lgh jf lghsf] Psf#/sf] kl/jf/sf] s"g} ;b:on] ;+:yf jf ;f] 

;+:yfsf] d"Vo jf ;xfos sDkgLdf lnPsf] z]o/ jf l*j]~r/sf] 
ljj/)f . 

• lgh cGo s"g} ;+ul&t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e't z]o/wgL jf ;~rfns 
/x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/)f .  

• lghsf] Psf#/sf] kl/jf/sf] s"g} ;b:o ;+:yfdf kbflwsf/L jf 
sd{rf/Lsf] x}l;otdf sfd ul//x]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/)f . 

• ;~rfnsn] p:t} k|s[ltsf] p@]Zo ePsf] ;'lrs[t ;+:yfsf] 
;~rfns, tnjL kbflwsf/L, sfo{sf/L k|d"v jf sd{rf/L eO{ 
sfo{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/)fM  

• ;~rfnsx?nfO{ lgodg lgsfo tyf cGo lgsfox?af^ s"g} 
sf/jfxL ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/)f 

sDkgL P]g, 2063 sf] bkmf 92 
adf]lhdsf] hfgsf/L u/fO{Psf] . 

 

 
3. ;+:yfsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

-s_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu s"g} ;ldlt u&g eP÷gePsf], u&g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/)fM 
ePsf] . 

-v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt ;DaGwL hfgsf/LM 

-c_ ;ldltsf] xfn sfod /x]sf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_ 

>L dgf]h sfsL{, ;~rfns    M ;+of]hs 
>L e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf, ;~rfns   M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
kl/kfng tyf hf]lvd clws[t    M ;b:o ;lrj 

-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}&s ;+VofM 7 -;ft_ 

-O_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL %f]^s/L ljj/)fM 

1. ;Defljt hf]lvd IF]qx? klxrfg u/L To:tf] hf]lvd sd ug{ sDkgLsf] hf]lvd 
Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL k|ofKt eP gePsf] ;dLIff Pjd\ Plsg 
ug]{ u/]sf], 

2. sDkgLsf] ;DklQsf] cfjZos r]s hf+r Pjd\ ;dLIff ug]{ tyf ;f]] ;DaGwdf 
n]vfk/LIf)fdf b]lvPsf s}lkmot adf]lhd hf]lvd lgoGq)f ug{ cfjZos ;"wf/fTds 
sbd rfNg] tyf ;f] sf] ;dLIff ug]{ u/]sf], 

3. sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] sfo{If]q, Joj;fosf] cfsf/, u|fxs tyf sf/f]af/ ;d]tsf cfwf/df 
aLdf Joj;fo dfkm{t x"g ;Sg] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf cft°sf/L lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo 
nufgLsf] hf]lvd d'Nof°g tyf Joj:yfkg ug]{ u/]sf], 

4. hf]lvd d'Nof°gsf cfwf/df hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf nflu k|rlnt sfg"g Pjd\ sDkgLsf] 
ljlgod, gLlt, sfo{ljlwn] tf]s] adf]lhdsf pkfox? cjnDag eP gePsf] cg"udg 
tyf ;dLIFf ug]{ u/]sf], 

5. sDkgLn] hLjg aLdf k|:tfj :jLs[t ubf{ sDkgLsf] aLdf hf]lvdf°g tyf k"gaL{df 
lbUbz{g Pjd\ k"gaL{df ;Demf}tf adf]lhd eP gePsf] Plsg tyf ;dLIFf ug]{ u/]sf] 
. 

-u_ cfGtl/s lgoGq)f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf]M ePsf] . 

-#_ cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnLsf] nflu s"g} ;ldlt u&g eP÷gePsf], u&g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] 
sf/)fM 

aLdssf] ;+:yfut ;"zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf adf]lhd sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf ;f] 
cGtu{tsf nufgL, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ;f]Ne]G;L ;ldlt, bfaL tyf k"gaL{df ;ldlt, 
n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldlt, dfgj ;+;fwg ;dlt, ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf lgjf/)f ;ldlt / ahf/ 
Joj:yfkg ;ldlt /x]sf] % . 

-ª_ cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

c= ;ldltsf] xfn sfod /x]sf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_ 

1=  n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltM 
>L bfjf km"^L z]kf{, ;~rfns    M ;+of]hs 
>L dgf]h sfsL{, ;~rfns     M ;b:o 
>L b]j/fh clwsf/L, ;~rfns    M ;b:o 
gfoj k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t    M ;b:o ;lrj 

2=  hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ljQLo :j:ytf / cg"udg tyf ;"k/Lj]If)f ;ldltM 
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-v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt ;DaGwL hfgsf/LM 

-c_ ;ldltsf] xfn sfod /x]sf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_ 

>L dgf]h sfsL{, ;~rfns    M ;+of]hs 
>L e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf, ;~rfns   M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
kl/kfng tyf hf]lvd clws[t    M ;b:o ;lrj 

-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}&s ;+VofM 7 -;ft_ 

-O_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL %f]^s/L ljj/)fM 

1. ;Defljt hf]lvd IF]qx? klxrfg u/L To:tf] hf]lvd sd ug{ sDkgLsf] hf]lvd 
Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL k|ofKt eP gePsf] ;dLIff Pjd\ Plsg 
ug]{ u/]sf], 

2. sDkgLsf] ;DklQsf] cfjZos r]s hf+r Pjd\ ;dLIff ug]{ tyf ;f]] ;DaGwdf 
n]vfk/LIf)fdf b]lvPsf s}lkmot adf]lhd hf]lvd lgoGq)f ug{ cfjZos ;"wf/fTds 
sbd rfNg] tyf ;f] sf] ;dLIff ug]{ u/]sf], 

3. sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] sfo{If]q, Joj;fosf] cfsf/, u|fxs tyf sf/f]af/ ;d]tsf cfwf/df 
aLdf Joj;fo dfkm{t x"g ;Sg] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf cft°sf/L lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo 
nufgLsf] hf]lvd d'Nof°g tyf Joj:yfkg ug]{ u/]sf], 

4. hf]lvd d'Nof°gsf cfwf/df hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf nflu k|rlnt sfg"g Pjd\ sDkgLsf] 
ljlgod, gLlt, sfo{ljlwn] tf]s] adf]lhdsf pkfox? cjnDag eP gePsf] cg"udg 
tyf ;dLIFf ug]{ u/]sf], 

5. sDkgLn] hLjg aLdf k|:tfj :jLs[t ubf{ sDkgLsf] aLdf hf]lvdf°g tyf k"gaL{df 
lbUbz{g Pjd\ k"gaL{df ;Demf}tf adf]lhd eP gePsf] Plsg tyf ;dLIFf ug]{ u/]sf] 
. 

-u_ cfGtl/s lgoGq)f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf]M ePsf] . 

-#_ cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnLsf] nflu s"g} ;ldlt u&g eP÷gePsf], u&g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] 
sf/)fM 

aLdssf] ;+:yfut ;"zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf adf]lhd sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf ;f] 
cGtu{tsf nufgL, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ;f]Ne]G;L ;ldlt, bfaL tyf k"gaL{df ;ldlt, 
n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldlt, dfgj ;+;fwg ;dlt, ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf lgjf/)f ;ldlt / ahf/ 
Joj:yfkg ;ldlt /x]sf] % . 

-ª_ cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

c= ;ldltsf] xfn sfod /x]sf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_ 

1=  n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltM 
>L bfjf km"^L z]kf{, ;~rfns    M ;+of]hs 
>L dgf]h sfsL{, ;~rfns     M ;b:o 
>L b]j/fh clwsf/L, ;~rfns    M ;b:o 
gfoj k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t    M ;b:o ;lrj 

2=  hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ljQLo :j:ytf / cg"udg tyf ;"k/Lj]If)f ;ldltM 
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>L dgf]h sfsL{, ;~rfns     M ;+of]hs 
>L e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf, ;~rfns    M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
kl/kfng tyf hf]lvd clws[t    M ;b:o ;lrj 

3=  dfgj ;+;fwg ;ldltM 
>L k|bLkhé kf)*], cWoIf     M ;+of]hs 
>L bfjf km"^L z]kf{, ;~rfns    M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
k|d"v – dfgj ;+zfwg ljefu    M ;b:o ;lrj 

4=  nufgL ;ldltM 
>L ;"ldt s"df/ cu|jfn, ;~rfns    M ;+of]hs 
>L dx]z :jf+/, ;~rfns     M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
>L nufgL clws[t      M ;b:o ;lrj 

5=  bfaL e"QmfgL tyf k"gaL{df ;ldltM 
>L b]j/fh clwsf/L      M ;+of]hs 
>L ;"ldt s"df/ cu|jfn, ;~rfns    M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
k|d"v – bfaL ljefu     M ;b:o ;lrj 

6=  ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)f ;ldltM 
>L e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf, ;~rfns    M ;+of]hs 
>L b]j/fh clwsf/L      M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
sfof{Gjog clws[t      M ;b:o ;lrj 

7=  ahf/ Joj:yfkg ;ldltM 
>L dx]z :jf+/, ;~rfns     M ;+of]hs 
>L e]h k|;fb ltldlN;gf, ;~rfns    M ;b:o 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n, k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t  M ;b:o 
>L k|d"v ahf/ Joj:yfkg clws[t    M ;b:o ;lrj 

cf= ;ldltsf] a}&s ;~rfng ePsf] ;+VofM 

n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldlt        M 9 
hf]lvd Joj:yfkg / ljQLo :j:ytf tyf cg"udg / ;"k/Lj]If)f ;ldlt M 7 
dfgj ;+;fwg ;ldlt       M 5 
nufgL ;ldlt        M 14 
bfaL e"QmfgL tyf k"gaL{df ;ldlt      M 3 
;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)f ;ldlt      M 5 
ahf/ Joj:yfkg ;ldlt       M 7 

O= ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL %f]^f] ljj/)fM jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] % . 

-r_ cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL eP÷gePsf]M ePsf] . 

4. ;'rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfx ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

-s_ ;+:yfn] ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ;'rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfxsf] ljj/)fM 
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ljifo dfWod ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ldlt 
jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efsf] ;'rgf /fli^«o b}lgs klqsf 2081÷11÷18 
jflif{s k|ltj]bg j]j;fO^ 2081÷11÷18 
q}dfl;s k|ltj]bg /fli^«o b}lgs klqsf 2081÷07÷30 k|yd 

2081/10/28  bf]>f] 
2082/01/29 t]>f] 
2082/04/30 rf}yf] 

lwtf]kqsf] d'Nodf k|efj kfg]{ d'No 
;+j]bgzLn ;'rgf 

/fli^«o b}lgs klqsf 2081÷11÷08 
2082÷03÷31 

cGo ;'rgfsf] xs ;DaGwL ;'rgf j]j;fO^ 2081÷07÷30 
2081/10/28  
2082/01/29  
2082/04/30 

 

-v_ ;'rgf ;fj{hlgs gu/]sf] jf cGo sf/)fn] lwtf]kq af]*{ tyf cGo lgsfoaf^ sf/jfxLdf 
k/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwL hfgsf/LM gePsf] . 

-u_ kl%Nnf] jflif{s tyf ljz]if ;fwf/)f ;ef ;DkGg ePsf] ldltM ;fwf/)f ;ef, 2081÷12÷15 

5. ;+:yfut ;+/rgf / sd{rf/L ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

-s_ sd{rf/Lsf] ;+/rgf, kbk'lt{, j[lt ljsf;, tflnd, tnj eQf tyf cGo ;"ljwf, xflh/ / ljbf, 
cfrf/;+lxtf nufotsf s"/fx? ;d]l^Psf] sd{rf/L ;]jf zt{ ljlgodfjnL÷Joj:yf eP÷gePsf]M 
ePsf] . 

-v_ ;f+u&lgs ;+/rgf ;+nUg ug]{M ;+nUg ul/Psf] . 

-u_ pRr Joj:yfkg txsf sd{rf/Lx?sf] gfd, z}lIfs of]Uotf tyf cg"ej ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

qm=;++= gfd  kb z}lIfs of]Uotf sfo{ cg"ej 

1 
 
>L kf]ifs /fh kf}*]n 
 

k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t 

PdlaP, 
Fellowship in 
Life Insurance 
Management 

(FLIM) 

30 

2 >L lbk axfb"/ lj=;L= gfoj k|d"v sfo{sf/L 
clws[t 

:gftsf]Q/ 21 

3 >L e"if)f l/dfn  gfoj dxfk|aGws :gftsQf]/ 35 
4 >L uf]kfn k+u]gL ;xfos dxfk|aGws rf^{*{ PsfpG^]G^ 15 

 

-#_ sd{rf/L ;DaGwL cGo ljj/)fM 

;+/rgf cg";f/ sd{rf/L kbk'lt{ ug]{ 
u/]sf]÷gu/]sf] 

u/]sf] . 

gof+ sd{rf/Lx?sf] kbkl't{ ubf{ 
ckgfOPsf] k|lqmof 

ljleGg ;~rf/ dfWodaf^ cfj]bg dfu -
cfjZostf cg";f/ x]* xlG^e ;d]t_ u/L 
sd{rf/L ljlgodfjnLdf ePsf] Joj:yf adf]lhdsf 
k/LIff ;d]t lnO{ kbk'lt{ ug]{ u/]sf] . 

Joj:yfkg :t/sf sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vof 31 
s"n sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vof 383 
sd{rf/Lx?sf] ;S;];g Knfg eP÷gePsf] ePsf] . 
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cf=j= 2081÷082 df sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ 
lbOPsf] tflnd ;+Vof tyf ;lDdlnt 
sd{rf/L ;+Vof 

tflnd ;+VofM 43 -cgnfO{g ;d]t_ 
sd{rf/LM 2,646 

cf=j= sf] sd{rf/L tflnd vr{  79,65,298  
s"n vr{df sd{rf/L vr{sf] k|ltzt* 45=55 
s"n sd{rf/L vr{df sd{rf/L tflnd 
vr{sf] k|ltzt 

2=54 

* b|i^JoM g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)fåf/f hf/L ljQLo ljj/)f ;DaGwL lgb{]lzsf adf]lhdsf] Joj:yfkg 
vr{nfO{ s"n vr{ dflgPsf] . 

6. ;+:yfsf] n]vf tyf n]vfk/LIF)f ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

-s_ n]vf ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

;+:yfsf] kl%Nnf] cf=j= sf] ljQLo ljj/)f NFRS 
cg";f/ tof/ u/] gu/]sf], gu/]sf] eP ;f]sf] 
sf/)F  

NFRS adf]lhd tof/ kf/]sf] . 

;~rfns ;ldltaf^ kl%Nnf] ljQLo ljj/)f 
:jLs[t ePsf] ldlt  

2082÷08÷24 

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/)f k|sfzg ul/Psf] ldlt  2081/07/30 k|yd 
2081/10/28  bf]>f] 
2082/01/29 t]>f] 
2082/04/30 rf}yf] 

clGtd n]vfk/LIf)f ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt 2082÷08÷24 
;fwf/)F ;efaf^ ljQLo ljj/)f :jLs[t ePsf] 
ldlt 

cf=j= 2080÷081 sf] ljQLo ljj/)f 
ldlt 2081÷12÷15 df a;]sf] 
;fwf/)f ;efaf^  :jLs[t ePsf] tyf 
cf=j= 2081÷082 sf] ljQLo ljj/)f 
ldlt 2082÷08÷18 df a:g] 
;fwf/)f ;efdf k]z ul/g]_ 

;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf)f ;DaGwL ljj/)fM  
c= cfGtl/s ?kdf n]vf kl/If)f ug]{ ul/Psf] jf 

jfx\o lj! lgo"Qm ug]{ ul/Psf] . 
cf= afx\o lj! lgo"Qm ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/)f  
O= cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf)f slt cjlwsf] ug]{ 

ul/Psf] -q}dfl;s, rf}dfl;s jf cw{jflif{s_  
 

 
c= Affx\o lj!nfO{ lgo"Qm ul/Psf] 
cf= Kuber N Bhattarai & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 
O= cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf)f q}dfl;s 

?kdf ug]{ ul/Psf] . 

 
-v_ n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/)fM 

;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd, kb, tyf of]UotfM 

gfd, y/       kb   z}lIfs of]Uotf 
>L bfjf km"^L z]kf{ ;~rfns     M ;+of]hs   :gftsf]Q/ 
>L dgf]h sfsL{, ;~rfns     M ;b:o   rf^{*{ PsfpG^]G^ 
>L b]a /fh clwsf/L, ;~rfns M ;b:o   :gftsf]Q/ 
gfoj k|d"v sfo{sf/L clws[t     M ;b:o ;lrj   :gftsf]Q/ 

a}&s a;]sf] ldlt tyf pkl:yt 
;b:o ;+Vof 

2081/05/28 (3), 2081/06/23 (3),  
2081/08/28 (3), 2081/09/28 (3), 
2081/10/03  (3), 2081/11/08 (3), 
2081/11/16   (3), 2081/12/01 (3) / 
2082/02/27 (3) 

k|lt a}&s eQf ;+of]hs ?= 10,000÷- 
;b:o  ?= 7,500÷- 

n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltn] cfkm\gf] sfd 
sf/afxLsf] k|ltj]bg ;~rfns 
;ldltdf k]z u/]sf] ldlt 

n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltsf] a}&s kZrft ;f] ;ldltsf] sfd 
sf/jfxL ;~rfns ;ldltdf %nkmn x"g] u/]sf] .  

7. cGo ljj/)fM 

;+:yfn] ;~rfns tyf lghsf] Psf#/sf kl/jf/sf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] 
JolQm a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfaf^ C)f jf ;fk^L jf cGo s"g} /sd 
lnP÷glnPsf]  

glnPsf] . 

k|rlnt sfgg' adf]lhd sDkgLsf] ;~rfns z]owgL sd{rf/L ;Nnfxsf/ 
k/fdz{bftfsf] x}l;otdf kfpg] ;"ljwf jf nfe jfx]s ;'rLs[t ;+ul&t 
;+:yfsf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] s"g} JolQm kmd{ sDkgL sd{rf/L ;Nnfxsf/ 
jf k/fdz{bftfn] ;+:yfsf] s"g} ;DklQ s"g} lsl;dn] ef]urng u/]÷gu/]sf] 

ef]u rng gu/]sf] . 

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{ tf]lsPsf] zt{x?sf] kfngf 
eP÷gePsf]  

kfngf ePsf] . 

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg lg/LIf)f jf ;"k/Lj]If)f ubf{ ;+:yfnfO{ 
lbPsf] lgb]{zg kfngf eP÷gePsf] 

kfngf ePsf] . 

;+:yf jf ;~rfns lj?$ cbfntdf s"g} d"@f rln/x]sf] eP ;f]sf] 
ljj/)f 

gePsf]   

 
 
 
kl/kfngf clws[tsf] gfdM uf]kfn k+u]gL 
kbM ;xfos dxfk|aGws 
ldltM 2082÷08÷26 
;+:yfsf] %fk 
 
 
k|ltj]bg ;~rfns ;ldltaf^ :jLs[t ePsf] ldltM 2082÷08÷26 

n]vfk/LIfssf] gfdM cdg pk|]tL 
kbM ;fem]bf/ 
n]vfk/LIfs ;+:yfsf] %fk 
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a}&s a;]sf] ldlt tyf pkl:yt 
;b:o ;+Vof 

2081/05/28 (3), 2081/06/23 (3),  
2081/08/28 (3), 2081/09/28 (3), 
2081/10/03  (3), 2081/11/08 (3), 
2081/11/16   (3), 2081/12/01 (3) / 
2082/02/27 (3) 

k|lt a}&s eQf ;+of]hs ?= 10,000÷- 
;b:o  ?= 7,500÷- 

n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltn] cfkm\gf] sfd 
sf/afxLsf] k|ltj]bg ;~rfns 
;ldltdf k]z u/]sf] ldlt 

n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltsf] a}&s kZrft ;f] ;ldltsf] sfd 
sf/jfxL ;~rfns ;ldltdf %nkmn x"g] u/]sf] .  

7. cGo ljj/)fM 

;+:yfn] ;~rfns tyf lghsf] Psf#/sf kl/jf/sf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] 
JolQm a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfaf^ C)f jf ;fk^L jf cGo s"g} /sd 
lnP÷glnPsf]  

glnPsf] . 

k|rlnt sfgg' adf]lhd sDkgLsf] ;~rfns z]owgL sd{rf/L ;Nnfxsf/ 
k/fdz{bftfsf] x}l;otdf kfpg] ;"ljwf jf nfe jfx]s ;'rLs[t ;+ul&t 
;+:yfsf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] s"g} JolQm kmd{ sDkgL sd{rf/L ;Nnfxsf/ 
jf k/fdz{bftfn] ;+:yfsf] s"g} ;DklQ s"g} lsl;dn] ef]urng u/]÷gu/]sf] 

ef]u rng gu/]sf] . 

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{ tf]lsPsf] zt{x?sf] kfngf 
eP÷gePsf]  

kfngf ePsf] . 

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg lg/LIf)f jf ;"k/Lj]If)f ubf{ ;+:yfnfO{ 
lbPsf] lgb]{zg kfngf eP÷gePsf] 

kfngf ePsf] . 

;+:yf jf ;~rfns lj?$ cbfntdf s"g} d"@f rln/x]sf] eP ;f]sf] 
ljj/)f 

gePsf]   

 
 
 
kl/kfngf clws[tsf] gfdM uf]kfn k+u]gL 
kbM ;xfos dxfk|aGws 
ldltM 2082÷08÷26 
;+:yfsf] %fk 
 
 
k|ltj]bg ;~rfns ;ldltaf^ :jLs[t ePsf] ldltM 2082÷08÷26 

n]vfk/LIfssf] gfdM cdg pk|]tL 
kbM ;fem]bf/ 
n]vfk/LIfs ;+:yfsf] %fk 
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l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld ]̂* 

cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL ;DaGwdf ul&t ljleGg ;ldltx?sf] p@]Zo tyf cfly{s jif{ 
2081÷082 df eP u/]sf k|d"v sfo{ tyf pknAwLx? / ;ldltx?sf] k|efjsfl/tf ;DaGwL 
;+lIfKt ljj/)fM 

1= n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldlt: 

a. ;ldltsf] p¢]Zo: ;ldltsf] d"Vo p$]Zo ;~rfns ;ldltaf^ clVtof/L k|Tofof]hg eP adf]lhd 
sDkgLsf sfd sf/jfxLx? k|rlnt sfg’’’’"g, P]g, lgod, lgb]{zg Pjd\ sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s lgod, 
ljlgod tyf sfo{ljlw adf]lhd ePsf] ;"lglZrttf ug"{ /x]sf] % . 

v.  ;ldltsf d"Vo sfo{ tyf pknlAwx?M  n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltsf] lgDg adf]lhd k|d"v sfo{ tyf 
pknAwLx? /x]sf %g\M  

1. sDkgLsf] ljQLo ljj/)fsf] ;dLIff u/L To:tf ljj/)fdf pNn]lvt ;'rgfsf] cfwf/, ;Totf 
/ oyfy{tfdf Plsg ug]{ u/]sf], 

2. sDkgLsf] n]vf, ah]^, cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL pko"Qm eP jf gePsf] cg"udg u/L 
Plsg ug]{ u/]sf], 

3. sDkgLsf] vl/b k|)ffnL pko"Qm / ldtJooL eP jf gePsf] ;DaGwdf lg/LIf)f / cg"udg 
ug]{ u/]sf], 

4. sDkgLsf] axL vftf, cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf)f k|)ffnLsf] clen]vsf sfuhft jf ljB"tLo 
clen]v pko"Qm (+uaf^ /flvPsf] % %}g Plsg ug]{ u/]sf], 

5. aLdf hf]lvdf°g, aLdf bfaL, nufgL, k"gaL{df ;DaGwL sfo{ l&s (+un] eP jf gePsf] / 
;f] ;DaGwL clen]v pko"Qm (+udf /flvPsf] jf g/flvPsf] Plsg ug]{ u/]sf], 

6. sDkgLsf] n]vf, n]vfk/LIf)f, jf;nft jf ljQLo ljj/)f k|rlnt aLdf P]g jf ;f] P]g 
cGtu{t ag]sf] lgodfjnL adf]lhd k|flws/)faf^ hf/L ePsf] lgb]{zg jf sDkgLsf] lgodfjnL 
adf]lhd eP jf gePsf] Plsg ug]{ u/]sf], 

7. sDkgLsf] n]vfk/LIfs lgo"lQmsf nflu ;Defljt n]vfk/LIfsx?sf] gfd l;kmfl/; ug]{]{ / 
lghsf] kfl/>lds tyf lgo"lQmsf zt{x? lgwf{/)f u/L cg"df]bgsf] nfuL ;fwf/)f ;efdf 
k]z ug]{ u/]sf], 

8. sDkgLsf] n]vf ;DaGwL gLlt tof/ u/L nfu' u/fPsf]], 

9. sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf)f ;DaGwL sfo{sf] ;"kl/j]If)f tyf k"g/fjnf]sg u/]sf], 

10. sDkgLn] k|flws/)fn] lbPsf] lgb]{zg kfngf u/] jf gu/]sf] Plsg u/]sf], 

11. sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltn] dfu u/]sf] ljifodf /fo tyf k/fdz{ lbg] u/]sf], 

12. sDkgLsf] n]vfk/LIf)fsf] k|ltj]bgdf v"nfpg"kg]{ lj:t[t ljj/)f -n+u kmd{ cl*^ l/kf] {̂_ 
tof/ ug{ k|flws/)fn] tf]s]sf cfjZos zt{x? k'/f u/fPsf], 

13. sDkgLsf] n]vfk/LIfsn] n]vfk/LIf)f ;DaGwL sfo{ ubf{ kfngf ug"{ kg]{ k|rlnt sfg"g 
cg";f/ clwsf/ k|fKt lgsfon] lgwf{/)f u/]sf cfr/)f, dfkb)* tyf lgb]{lzsf kfngf u/] 
jf gu/]sf] s"/fsf] /]vb]v tyf k"g/fjnf]sg u/]sf], 

14. k|flws/)fn] tof/ u/]sf] cfr/)f, dfkb)* tyf lgb]{lzsfsf] cfwf/df n]vfk/LIfssf] lgo"lQm 
tyf %gf}^sf] ;DaGwdf sDkgLn] cjnDag ug"{ kg]{ gLlt to u/]sf], 

15. sDkgLsf] afx\o n]vfk/LIfs lgo"lQmsf nflu ;~rfns ;ldlt ;dIf l;kmfl/z u/]sf] .  
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u.  ;ldltsf] k|efjsf/LtfM  n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltn] ;ldltsf] sfo{ut cfwf/kq tyf sDkgLsf] n]vfk/LIf)f 
gLlt Pjd’\ sDkgL P]g tyf aLdf P]g ;d]tsf cfwf/df k|efjsf/L ?kdf cfkm\gf] sfd ul/cfPsf] 
% . ;ldltn] ljleGg ldltdf a}&sx? ;DkGg u/L P]g, lgod, lgb]{zg adf]lhd kl/kfngfsf 
;DaGwdf eP u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLx?sf] k|efjsf/L ?kdf ;dLIff u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos 
lgb]{zg tyf ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;"emfj lbg] sfo{x? ub}{ cfPsf] % .  

2= hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ljQLo :j:ytf -;f]Ne]G;L_ / cg"udg tyf ;"kl/j]If)f ;ldlt: 

s= ;ldltsf] p¢]Zo: ;ldltsf] d"Vo p$]Zo ;~rfns ;ldltaf^ clVtof/L k|Tofof]hg eP adf]lhd 
sDkgLsf sfd sf/jfxLx? k|rlnt aLdf P]g tyf lgodfjnL Pjd\ cGo sfg"gx?, g]kfn aLdf 
k|flws/)faf^ ;do ;dodf hf/L ul/Psf lgb]{lzsf, dfu{bz{g, lgb]{zg, kl/kq, tyf ;~rfns 
;ldltaf^ agfOPsf gLlt, lgod, lbUbz{g -Dofg"cn_, sfo{ljlw, ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf ;f] cGtu{t 
ul&t cGo ;ldltx?af^ ePsf lg)f{o Pjd\ lbOPsf lgb]{zg kfngf eP gePsf] ;"lglZrttf u/L 
;Defljt hf]lvdsf If]qx? klxrfg ub}{ sDkgL ljQLo ?kdf :j:y tyf ;Ifd /x]sf] ;"lglZrttf 
ug"{ xf] . 

v.  ;ldltsf d"Vo sfo{ tyf pknlAwx?M hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ljQLo :j:ytf -;f]Ne]G;L_ / 
cg"udg tyf ;"kl/j]If)f ;ldltsf] lgDg adf]lhd k|d"v sfo{ tyf pknAwLx? /x]sf %g\M 

1. ;Defljt hf]lvd IF]qx? klxrfg u/L To:tf] hf]lvd sd ug{ sDkgLsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg 
tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL k|o{fKt eP gePsf] ;dLIff Pjd\ Plsg ug]{ u/]sf], 

2. sDkgLsf] ;DklQsf] cfjZos r]s hf+r Pjd\ ;dLIff ug]{ tyf ;f]] ;DaGwdf n]vfk/LIf)fdf 
b]lvPsf s}lkmot adf]lhd hf]lvd lgoGq)f ug{ cfjZos ;"wf/fTds sbd rfNg] tyf ;f] 
sf] ;dLIff ug]{ u/]sf], 

3. sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] sfo{If]q, Joj;fosf] cfsf/, u|fxs tyf sf/f]af/ ;d]tsf cfwf/df aLdf 
Joj;fo dfkm{t x"g ;Sg] ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf cft°sf/L lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo nufgLsf] 
hf]lvd d'Nof°g tyf Joj:yfkg ug]{ u/]sf], 

4. hf]lvd d'Nof°gsf cfwf/df hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf nflu k|rlnt sfg"g Pjd\ sDkgLsf] 
ljlgod, gLlt, sfo{ljlwn] tf]s] adf]lhdsf pkfox? cjnDag eP gePsf] cg"udg tyf 
;dLIFf ug]{ u/]sf], 

5. sDkgLn] hLjg aLdf k|:tfj :jLs[t ubf{ sDkgLsf] hf]lvdf°g lbUbz{g jdf]lhd eP gePsf] 
Plsg tyf ;dLIFf ug]{ u/]sf], 

6. sDkgLn] hLjg aLdf k|:tfj :jLs[t ubf{ sDkgLsf] aLdf hf]lvdf°g tyf k"gaL{df lbUbz{g 
Pjd\ k"gaL{df ;Demf}tf adf]lhd eP gePsf] Plsg tyf ;dLIFf ug]{ u/]sf] . 

7. aLdf Joj;fo ;~rfng ;DaGwL gLlt, lgod tyf dfGotf sfo{Gjog u/fPsf], 

8. sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkg, hf]lvdf°g -c)*//fOl^é_, aLdf bfaL e"QmfgL, ;DklQ tyf bfloTj 
Joj:yfkg, Joj;flos of]hgf -ljhg]; Knfg_,  nufgL tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg, cfly{s 
k|zf;g, sd{rf/L k|zf;g, ;'rgf k|ljlw, ahf/ k|j${g, k"gaL{df, ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)f 
nufotsf gLlt, lbUbz{g -Dofg"cn_ tyf sfo{ljlw kfngf eP gePsf] cg"udg tyf 
;"k/Lj]If)f ug]{ u/]sf], 

9. k|rlnt P]g tyf lgodfjnL, k|flws/)faf^ ;do ;dodf hf/L ul/Psf lgb]{lzsf, dfu{bz{g, 
lgb]{zg tyf kl/kq kfngf eP gePsf] cg"udg tyf ;"k/Lj]If)f ug]{ u/]sf], 

10. sDkgLsf] r"Qmf k'+hL, hLjg aLdf sf]if tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfon] tf]s]sf cGo sf]ifx? Pjd\ 
rn crn ;DklQ sfg"g adf]lhd sfod /x] g/x]sf] cg"udg ug]{ u/]sf] . 
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u. ;ldltsf] k|efjsf/LtfM hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf ljQLo :j:ytf -;f]Ne]G;L_ / cg"udg tyf ;"kl/j]If)f 
;ldltsf] sfo{ut cfwf/kq tyf sDkgLsf] cg"udg tyf ;"k/Lj]If)f sfo{ljlw Pjd’\ sDkgL P]g 
tyf aLdf P]g, lgodfjnL tyf g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ hf/L ePsf kl/kq, lgb{]zg tyf 
dfu{bz{g ;d]tsf cfwf/df k|efjsf/L ?kdf cfkm\gf] sfd ul/ cfPsf] % . ;ldltn] ljleGg 
ldltdf a}&sx? ;DkGg u/L P]g, lgod, lgb]{zg tyf ;~rfns ;ldltaf^ agfOPsf gLlt, lgod, 
lbUbz{g -Dofg"cn_, sfo{ljlw, ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf ;f] cGtu{t ul&t cGo ;ldltx?af^ ePsf 
lg)f{o Pjd\ lbOPsf lgb]{zg kl/kfngfsf ;DaGwdf eP u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLx?sf] k|efjsf/L ?kdf 
;dLIff u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] sfo{x? ub}{ cfPsf] % . 

3= ;DklQ z"l$s/)f lgjf/)f ;ldlt: 

a= ;ldltsf] p¢]Zo: ;ldltsf] d"Vo p@]Zo sDkgLsf] sfd sf/jfxLx? k|rlnt sfg'g, P]g lgod, 
lgb]{zg tyf sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s lgod tyf ljlgod adf]lhd ePsf] ;"lglZrttf u/L ;Defljt 
hf]lvdsf If]qx? klxrfg ub}{ sDkgLsf] sfo{If]q, Joj;fosf] cfsf/, u|fxs tyf sf/f]af/ ;d]tsf 
cfwf/df aLdf Joj;fo dfkm{t x"g ;Sg] ;DklQ z"l$s/)f tyf cft°sf/L lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo 
nufgLsf] hf]lvd d"Nof°g tyf Joj:yfkg u/fpg" /x]sf] % . 

v= ;ldltsf d"Vo sfo{ tyf pknlAwx?M ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)f ;ldltsf] lgDg adf]lhd k|d"v 
sfo{ tyf pknAwLx? /x]sf %g\M 

1= ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f tyf cft°sf/L lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo nufgL lgjf/)f gLlt, k|lqmof tyf 
sfo{qmd nfu' ug]{ u/fpg] u/]sf], 

2= sDkgLn] cfkm\gf] sfo{If]q, Joj;fosf] cfsf/, u|fxs tyf sf/f]jf/ ;d]tsf cfwf/df aLdf 
Joj;fo dfkm{t x"g ;Sg] ;DklQ z"l$s/)f tyf cft°sf/L lqmofsnfkdf ljQLo nufgLsf] 
hf]lvd d"Nof°g u/fPsf]], 

3= hf]lvd d"Nof°gsf cfwf/df hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ug{ cfjZos pkfox? cjnDag ug]{ u/]sf], 

4= aLdf Joj;fo;+u ;DalGwt ;Ldf sf/f]jf/ tyf z°f:kb sf/f]af/sf] k|ltj]bg lgodgsf/L 
lgsfodf k]z u/fpg] sfo{ u/]sf] . 

u= ;ldltsf] k|efjsf/LtfM ;ldltn] cfÕgf] sfo{ut cfwf/kqsf] cfw/df ljleGg ldltx?df a}&sx? 
;DkGg u/L P]g, lgod, lgb]{zg adf]lhd kl/kfngfsf ;DaGwdf lgofds lgsfodf k]z ug"{ kg]{ 
k|ltj]bg, ljj/)fx? tyf q}dfl;s ?kdf ;DklQ z"$Ls/)f lgjf/)fdf eP u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLx?sf] 
k|efjsf/L ?kdf ;dLIff u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] sfo{x? ub}{ cfPsf] % .  

4= dfgj ;+;fwg ;ldlt: 

s= ;ldltsf] p¢]Zo: ;ldltsf] d"Vo p@]Zo sDkgLnfO{ cfjZos dfgj ;+;fwgsf] cfjZos Joj:yfkg, 
;]jf ;"ljwfsf] ;ldIff, lghx?sf] sfo{;Dkfbg Ifdtf tyf bIftf j[l$ ug{ j[lQ ljsf;sf 
cfjZos sfo{ Pjd\ sfo{ ;Dkfbg d"Nof°g ug{ cfjZos gLlt lgod th"{df Pjd\ ;f] sf] 
kl/kfngf u/fpg" /x]sf] % . 

v= ;ldltsf d"Vo sfo{ tyf pknlAwx?M  dfgj ;+;fwg  ;ldltsf] lgDg adf]lhd k|d"v sfo{ tyf 
pknAwLx? /x]sf %g\M  

1= sDkgLsf] nflu cfjZos sd{rf/Lsf] lgo"lQm gLlt tyf k|lqmof kfngf u/fPsf]], 

2= sDkgLsf] nflu cfjZos sd{rf/Lsf] b/aGbL lgwf{/)f :jLs[ltsf] nflu ;ldlt ;dIf k]z 
ug]{ tyf b/aGbL cg";f/ cfjZos sd{rf/Lsf] lgo"lQm ug{ l;kmfl/; u/]sf], 
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3= sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ k|bfg ul/Psf ;]jf ;"ljwf ;dLIff u/L kl/dfh{gsf nflu ;ldltnfO{ l;kmfl/; 
u/]sf], 

4= sDkgLdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?sf] sfo{ ;Dkfbg d'Nof°g lgwf{l/t dfkb)*sf] clwgdf /xL 
;dLIff u/]sf], 

5= sd{rf/Lsf] j[QL ljsf;sf] nflu cfjZos tflndsf] nflu l;kmfl/; u/]sf], 

6= sDkgLdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lsf] Ifdtf, bIftf, kl/kSjtf tyf cfTdljZjf; cflbsf] cfwf/df 
of]Uo sd{rf/LnfO{ a("jfsf] nflu l;kmfl/; u/]sf], 

7= dlxnf sd{rf/Lsf] nfuL dlxgfjf/L ePsf] a]nf kfpg] u/L dlxgfjf/L labfsf] ;"?jft u/]sf] 
. 

u= ;ldltsf] k|efjsf/LtfM dfgj ;+;fwg ;ldltn] ;ldltsf] sfo{ut cfwf/kq adf]lhd ;ldltn] 
ljleGg ldltdf a}&sx? ;DkGg u/L cfjZos dfgj ;+;fwgsf] Joj:yfkg tyf P]g, lgod, 
lgb]{zg adf]lhd kl/kfngfsf ;DaGwdf eP u/]sf sfd sf/jfxLx?sf] k|efjsf/L ?kdf ;dLIff 
u/L tyf Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] sfo{x? ub}{ cfPsf] % . 

5= nufgL ;ldlt: 

a= ;ldltsf] p¢]Zo: ;ldltsf] d"Vo p$]Zo ;~rfns ;ldltaf^ clVtof/L k|Tofof]hg eP adf]lhd 
sDkgLsf] sf]if oyf;dodf nufgL eP gePsf] ;"lglZrttf ub}{ nufgL lg)f{ox? ug"{ x"g]% . 
o;sf ;fy} nufgLsf ljleGg ljsNkx?df ;"/lIft tj/n] pRrtd k|ltkmn k|fKt x"g] u/L 
sDkgLsf] nufgL gLlt tyf g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ hf/L nufgL lgb]{lzsf cg"?k sDkgLsf] 
sf]if nufgL eP gePsf] ;"lglZrttf ug{ sDkgLsf] nufgL kf] {̂kmf]lnof]nfO{ lgoldt ?kdf 
;dLIff ug"{sf ;fy} k|flws/)fn] tf]s] adf]lhdsf] ljQLo :j:ytf sfod /x]sf] Plsg ug"{ xf] . 

v= ;ldltsf d"Vo sfo{ tyf pknlAwx?M nufgL tyf ljQLo :j:ytf ;ldltsf] lgDg adf]lhd k|d"v 
sfo{ tyf pknAwLx? /x]sf %g\M  

1= g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ hf/L nufgL lgb]{lzsf adf]lhdsf If]qx?df ul/g] nufgL k|:tfjx? 
:jLs[t ug]{ u/]sf], 

2= sDkgLsf] nufgL gLlt cg"?k sDkgLsf] sf]if nufgL eP gePsf] Plsg ug{ lgoldt ?kdf 
sDkgLsf] nufgL kf] {̂kmf]lnof] ;dLIff ug]{ u/]sf], 

3= sDkgLsf] nufgL gLlt cg"?k ljleGg a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfdf nufgL ug{ ;lsg] /sdsf] 
;Ldf lgwf{/)f ug]{ u/]sf], 

4= nufgL ;DaGwL ;Defljt hf]lvd IF]qx? klxrfg u/L To:tf] hf]lvd sd ug{ sDkgLsf] 
hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnL k|ofKt eP gePsf] ;dLIff Pjd\ Plsg 
ug]{ u/]sf] . 

u= ;ldltsf] k|efjsf/LtfM nufgL tyf ljQLo :j:ytf ;ldltn] ;ldltsf] sfo{ut cfwf/kq tyf 
sDkgLsf] nufgL gLlt Pjd’\ aLdf P]g tyf g]kfn aLdf k|flwsf/)faf^ hf/L nfugL ;DaGwL 
lgb{]zg ;d]tsf cfwf/df k|efjsf/L ?kdf cfkm\gf] sfd ul/cfPsf] % . ;ldltn] ljleGg 
ldltdf a}&sx? ;DkGg u/L P]g, lgb]{zg adf]lhd nufgL Joj:yfkgsf ;DaGwdf eP u/]sf 
sfd sf/jfxLx?sf] k|efjsf/L ?kdf ;dLIff u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] sfo{x? 
ub}{ cfPsf] % . 
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6= bfaL e"QmfgL tyf k"gaL{df ;ldlt: 

a= ;ldltsf] p¢]Zo: bfaL e"QmfgL tyf k"gaL{df ;ldltsf] d"Vo p@]Zo ;~rfns ;ldltaf^ clVtof/L 
eP adf]lhd sDkgLsf] Joj;fosf] k|s[lt cg"?k sDkgLdf kg{ cfPsf ljleGg lsl;dsf aLdf 
bfaLx?sf] hf]lvdf°g u/L ;f] bfaL oyf;dodf km%of}{^ ug]{ tyf sDkgLn] hLjg aLdf k|:tfj 
:jLs[t ubf{ sDkgLsf] aLdf hf]lvdf°g tyf k"gaL{df lbUbz{g Pjd\ k"gaL{df ;Demf}tf adf]lhd 
eP gePsf] Plsg u/L Joj:yfkgaf^ tof/ kfl/Psf] k|ltj]bg pk/ cfjlws ?kdf %nkmn 
Pjd\ ;dLIFf ug"{ /x]sf] % . o;sf ;fy} sDkgLdf kg{ cfPsf bfaL sDkgLsf] Joj;fosf] 
cfwf/df ck]lÔt ;Ldf leq eP gePsf] ;"lglZrttf ug{ aLdf bfaL Pjd\ :jLs[t aLdf k|:tfj 
k"gaL{df lbUbz{g Pjd\ k"gaL{df ;Demf}tf adf]lhd k"gaL{df eP gePsf] ;DaGwdf Joj:yfksLo 
k|ltj]bg ;dLIFf ug]{ ;d]t /x]sf] % . 

v= ;ldltsf d"Vo sfo{ tyf pknlAwx?M bfaL e"QmfgL tyf k"gaL{df ;ldltsf] lgDg adf]lhd k|d"v 
sfo{ tyf pknAwLx? /x]sf %g\M 

1= aLdf bfaL ;DaGwdf lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf^ hf/L lgb]{zg kfngf eP gePsf] ;dLIFf u/]sf], 

2= sDkgLdf kg{ cfPsf aLdf bfaL jfkt k"gaL{df ;Demf}tfsf] cwLgdf /xL k"gaL{dsaf^ k|fKt 
x"g"kg]{ /sd oyf;dodf k|fKt eP gePsf] ;dLIFf u/]sf], 

3= k"gaL{ds sDkgL;+u ePsf k"gaL{df ;DEfmf}tf k"g/fjnf]sg ug]{ tyf k"gaL{df gLlt th"{df u/L 
kl/kfng ug]{ u/fpg] sfo{ u/]sf], 

4= sDkgLn] hLjg aLdf k|:tfj :jLs[t ubf{ sDkgLsf] aLdf hf]lvdf°g tyf k"gaL{df lbUbz{g 
Pjd\ k"gaL{df ;Demf}tf adf]lhd eP gePsf] Plsg tyf ;dLIFf ug]{]{ ]{ u/]sf], 

5= sDkgLn] :jLs[t u/]sf hLjg aLdf k|:tfjx? k"gaL{df lbUbz{g tyf k"gaL{df ;Demf}tf cg"?k 
k"gaL{df eP gePsf] ;dLIFf ug]{ u/]sf] . 

u= ;ldltsf] k|efjsf/LtfM bfaL e"QmfgL tyf k"gaL{df ;ldltn] ;ldltsf] sfo{ut cfwf/kq tyf 
sDkgLsf] aLdf bfaL lbUbz{g, k"gaL{df gLlt tyf lbUbz{g Pjd’\ sDkgL P]g tyf aLdf P]g 
;d]tsf cfwf/df k|efjsf/L ?kdf cfkm\gf] sfd u/L cfPsf] % . ;ldltn] ljleGg ldltdf 
a}&sx? ;DkGg u/L P]g, lgod, lgb]{zg adf]lhd kl/kfngfsf ;DaGwdf eP u/]sf sfd 
sf/jfxLx?sf] k|efjsf/L ?kdf ;dLIff u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] sfo{x? ub}{ 
cfPsf] % .  
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15 Trademarks 
Registered

"Diversity & Inclusion" 
Initiative Started

Customer Base:
10 Lakh +

Premium Collection:
755 Crore

Capital:
500 Crore

Life Fund:
1986 Crore

Investment:
2404 Crore
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DIRECTOR'S PROFILE

Mr. Pradeep Jung Pandey
Chairman

Appointment Date: 2018/04/20
Re-Appointment Date: 2022/07/22

Mr. Pradeep Jung Pandey is a Chairman of Citizen life Insurance Company Limited. 
He is a management and economics postgraduate. He has extensive, 36+ years of 
experience in the field of manufacturing industries, financing and trading business.

Currently he is the Managing Director and Chairman of Lomus Pharmaceuticals Pvt. 
Ltd; a leading Pharmaceutical Company of the Country, Chairman of Lomus 
Parenteral and Formulation Pvt. Ltd., Lomus Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd., Cosmos 
Cement Industries Pvt. Ltd., Eastern Cosmos Cement Industries Pvt. Ltd. and 
Mountain Energy Ltd. He is also the promoter and Former Chairman of Citizen Bank 
International Ltd. and Shikhar Insurance Ltd.

Mr. Pandey had also served as President of Federation of Nepalese Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry (FNCCI). Besides, he has also affiliation with various social 
and professional organizations.

Mr. Sumit Kumar Agrawal
Director

Appointment Date: 2018/04/20
Re-Appointment Date: 2022/07/22

Mr. Sumit Kumar Agrawal is one of the members of Board of Director in Citizen Life 
Insurance Company Limited. He is a Bachelor Graduate, and he has extensive 
experience in varied industries in Nepal. Currently he has been serving as a 
chairman in companies like Sunrise Developers Pvt. Ltd., Bhagwati Carbide 
Industries Pvt. Ltd., Oriental Construction & Development Co. Pvt. Ltd. and Nepal 
Hospitality & Hotel Pvt. Ltd. He is also the  Former Director of Global IME Bank Ltd.

Mr. Manoj Karki
Director
Appointment Date: 2018/04/20
Re-Appointment Date: 2022/07/22

Mr. Manoj Karki is one of the members of Board of Director in Citizen life Insurance 
Company. He is a fellow Chartered Accountant and has provided financial consultancy 
and audit for more than a decade and has in-depth knowledge about the various facets 
of Nepalese financial and economic sectors.

Currently, he is the President of Airlines Operator’s Association Nepal (AOAN), 
Managing Director at Summit Air Ltd, and Fishtail Air Pvt. Ltd. He excels in developing 
and implementing risk-based control in organization.
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DIRECTOR'S PROFILE

Mr. Mahesh Swar
Director
Appointment Date: 2018/04/20
Re-Appointment Date: 2022/07/22

Mr. Mahesh Swar is one of the members of Board of Director in Citizen Life 
Insurance Company Limited. He is a person with high success rate. He has 
been associated with Kantipur Publication for more than 11 years and currently 
he is the Chief Executive Officer of Kantipur Media Group. He has done a course 
on Strategic Marketing Management at Harvard Business School. He has also 
done Business Administration and Management course from AOTS, HIDA, 
Japan and he is a MBA from Ace Institute of Management.

He has been mentoring aspiring entrepreneurs and start-ups for the past three 
years. He is also a passionate social worker supporting movement of Teach for 
Nepal (TFN) and the board of director of TFN. He is also the President of 
Nepalese Marketing Association.

Ms. Dawa Futi Sherpa
Director- General Public
Appointment Date: 2024/01/28

Ms. Dawa Futi Sherpa is a member of the Board of Directors of Citizen Life 
Insurance Company Limited. She is the President of the non-profit Pasang 
Lhamu Foundation and also serves as Vice President at Sherpa Hospitality 
Group. In addition, she is a board member of the Kathmandu International 
Mountain Film Festival (KIMFF) and the Institute of Integrated Development 
Studies (IIDS).

In 2021, she returned from Madrid, Spain, after completing her two-year tenure 
as an ambassador, during which she became the first Nepali Permanent 
Representative to the United Nations World Tourism Organization (UNWTO) in 
Madrid. Over the course of her career, Ms. Sherpa has held various leadership 
roles across both the non-profit and private sectors. She holds an MA in 
International Education from New York University, USA, and possesses strong 
expertise in development, cultural exchange, and public diplomacy.

Mr. Bhej Prasad Timilsina
Director- General Public

Appointment Date: 2024/01/28

Mr. Bhej Prasad Timilsina is one of the members of Board of Director in Citizen 
Life Insurance Company Limited. He has done master’s degree from Tribhuvan 
University with a specialization in finance. Mr. Timilsina has more than 2 decades 
of experience in capital market along with work experience in board and 
management across various sectors including BFIs, hydropower and investment 
companies.

Currently he is serving as an executive chairman in Global Investment Nepal 
Private Limited and is director in Ingwa Hydropower Limited.
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DIRECTOR'S PROFILE

Mr. Dev Raj Adhikari
Independent Director

Appointment Date: 2025/07/15

Mr. Dev Raj Adhikari is the Independent Director of Citizen Life Insurance 
Company Limited. He is a seasoned commercial and investment banking 
professional with almost three decades of working experience leading major 
financial institutions in Nepal. While serving in Nepal SBI Bank Limited, a 
foreign subsidiary of State Bank of India, Mr. Adhikari successfully handled 
different assignments as department and vertical heads of the Bank. Working 
as Chief Credit Officer (CCO) of the Bank, Mr. Adhikari demonstrated high level 
of expertise and skill in driving business growth of the Bank while ensuring 
quality of assets and regulatory compliance in a commendable manner. 
Besides, he also served as the Managing Director & CEO of Nepal SBI 
Merchant Banking Ltd, where he spearheaded strategic growth, product 
innovation and digital transformation of the company. Mr. Adhikari possesses 
strong leadership skills, strategic vision, and extensive experience in credit 
management, investment banking and project advisory.

An MBA Graduate of Tribhuvan University, Mr. Adhikari has established a 
proven record in driving business development, shaping strategic policies and 
fostering strong stakeholder relationships. He has actively contributed to 
Nepal’s banking landscape through leadership roles on various boards and 
central level committees, offering expert insights on banking and other 
economic and monetary policies in different forums including Nepal Rastra 
Bank, Securities Board and other regulatory and business forums.
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BUSINESS MODEL 

BUSINESS MODEL 

Citizen Life is one of the fastest growing life insurance companies in Nepal. With a dedicated 
team of 383 employees and a strong sales force exceeding 35,114 agents, Citizen Life through 
its extensive network of 136 offices across the country in 65 out of 77 districts offers a range of 
life insurance products aimed at offering financial protection, primarily focusing on affordability 
and ease of access for families and individuals. The company’s business model integrates the 
idea of sustainable growth, a commitment to innovation and customer satisfaction. The major 
components of the business model of the company are as under: 

A. Value Proposition 

With a commitment towards delivering values to the stakeholders of the company, Citizen 
Life believes in creating a long-term value and trust for its stakeholders, including 
policyholders, employees, investors and the broader community. By maintaining a 
balanced focus on customer satisfaction, profitability, employee well-being and social 
responsibility, Citizen Life ensures that its operations benefit all those involved.  

The company believes in serving the customers’ first, by focusing on transparency, 
customer centricity, and timely and fair claims processing, the company aims to foster trust 
and long-lasting relationships with its policyholders. Recognizing that its employees are key 
drivers of success, Citizen Life believes in creating a work culture that fosters growth, 
empowerment, and professional development. The company aims to cultivate a motivated, 
engaged workforce that is committed to delivering quality service and achieving business 
objectives. By investing in initiatives that promote education, healthcare, and sustainability, 
the company supports positive social change while enhancing its brand reputation and 
stakeholder relationships. Citizen Life believes in promoting financial inclusion, offering 
affordable and accessible insurance products to a wide spectrum of society. The company 
aims to ensure that more people are covered and can benefit from financial protection, 
regardless of their socio-economic status and believes in maintaining a strong risk 
management framework to ensure that it can withstand market fluctuations and external 
challenges. By managing risks effectively, the company provides consistent and reliable 
coverage to its policyholders, fostering long-term stability and sustainability. Citizen Life is 
committed to conducting its business with the highest standards of integrity, honesty, and 
transparency. By adhering to ethical business practices, the company strives to earn the 
trust and confidence of its stakeholders and build a positive corporate reputation. 

B. Product Portfolio 

Citizen Life provides a broad portfolio of life insurance products catering to different 
customer needs, from financial protection to wealth creation. The product portfolio of the 
company includes Endowment, Anticipated Endowment, Endowment cum whole life, 
Universal Life, Term Life (Group Term and Micro Term) and Foreign Employment with a 
wide range of 10 unique products with distinctive features focused on different segments 
of customers. The company also offer other additional rider benefits as accidental death 
benefit, permanent total disability, premium waiver benefit, monthly income benefit, double 
sum assured, critical illness rider and funeral expense rider.  

The endowment product of the company provides the sum assured along with the bonus 
component to the assured life at the end of the policy term or to the beneficiary on untimely 
demise of the insured before the maturity of the policy. The plan offers the supplementary 
benefit which can be opted by the policyholder against which the beneficiary will receive 
double the sum assured on natural death and three times the sum assured in the case of 
accidental death subject to policy terms and conditions. 

The company has introduced the Child Endowment policy to support parents to build funds 
to meet the future expenses of the children with its feature of providing insurance coverage 
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to children. This plan extends insurance cover on the child as life assured and parent as 
the proposer. 

The Anticipated Endowment portfolio of the company provides the policyholder with a 
periodic sum assured in specific intervals to meet financial requirements of life assured as 
well as cover the risk of life assured throughout the term of policy. 

The Endowment cum Whole Life portfolio of the company is designed to provide long term 
protection by providing a lump sum amount at maturity which can be synced with the 
retirement age to get most out of this policy. More importantly, this policy also provides the 
insured with life coverage for up to 90 years. Also, the insured will get survival benefits in 
regular intervals from 70 to 90 years age. 

The company has also introduced insurance policies for the people having a lower income 
base through the product of group affinity (micro term insurance policies) with affordable 
premiums. The foreign employment term life product of the company has been designed 
for those who are going out of the country for the sole purpose of foreign employment. 

The company has also introduced a universal life insurance product that offers life cover 
for the policyholder, thus securing the financial future of the family. This plan is customized 
to offer regular savings with guaranteed risk coverage till the end of the policy term subject 
to the policy conditions. Consumers can get a high yield on their investments as a single 
segregated fund for this plan is allocated to a non-participating fund. This product is the 
preferred financial planning option for individuals who want the additional savings and 
future-centered benefits the plans provide. 

Therefore, through diverse insurance products and affordable premiums, Citizen Life has 
been providing insurance services for customers of different segments. 
 

C. Revenue Structure 

The major source of revenue for Citizen Life is the periodical premiums paid by the 
policyholders followed by the return earned on the investment made by the company. The 
premium can be paid monthly, quarterly, half yearly and yearly as opted by the 
policyholders. The policyholders can also opt to pay the whole premium amount at once at 
the time of inception of the policy. To determine the premium rate for a particular plan, the 
actuarial price setting is done based on statistics and probability to estimate the value of 
future claims within a given risk. The other source of revenue is from the investment income, 
i.e. the premiums collected are invested in various assets, generating interest, dividends 
and capital gains, which contributes to the company's revenue. The investment income 
earned by the company are therefore allocated to the policyholder fund and shareholder 
fund based on the weight of the policyholders’ fund and the shareholder’s fund. Currently, 
at least ninety percent of the valuation surplus in participating portfolio is allocated to the 
policyholders and remaining to the shareholders as determined by the appointed actuary 
of the company which resembles the underwriting profit 

The reinsurance profit commission income is also one of the sources of revenue for the 
company. The policy cancellation charges, late fees, duplication fees etc, are the other type 
of incomes earned by the company.  

D. Cost Structure 

The cost structure of Citizen Life majorly involves the components related to its business 
acquisition, reinsurance coverage, claims and benefits payout, operations and 
management expenses.  

The acquisition costs of the company majorly comprise of the commission and a certain 
percentage of management costs utilized to acquire the business for the company which 
includes the costs relating to the business promotion, agent training and agent incentives. 
In exchange for a specified amount of reinsurance coverage over a defined period, 
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company needs to pay a sum of amount as reinsurance premium to the reinsurers which 
is one of the costs to be borne by the company from the premium collected on the insurance 
policies. The other major cost of the company is the claims and benefit payouts which 
includes death benefits, maturity benefits, surrender claims and health related benefits 
such as critical illness or disability benefits. The administrative and operational costs of the 
company include the cost of running the company such as employee benefits, costs related 
to the office infrastructure and customer service-related costs. The other costs include the 
costs related to the regulatory and the cost of complying with government regulations and 
laws, such as service fees, internal and external audit fees, legal fees and share related 
costs. 

E. Key Resources 

i. Distribution Channel 

The distribution channel of the company comprises of the individual agents who are 
certified individuals to sell the insurance policies on behalf of the company in return for 
commission and incentives and the corporate agents who are engaged in a particular 
business and sell the insurance policies to their existing members or customers or staff. 
Amongst the two distribution channels, the company believes in providing personalized 
services to the customers and therefore has placed its focus on individual agents. 
Therefore, the company regularly provides training to develop the capabilities of the new 
and existing agents so that the policyholders can benefit from this collaboration. The 
company believes that these initiatives can also promote entrepreneurial growth in the 
country by providing the source of income. In addition to the involvement of individual and 
corporate agents, the company has also facilitated the policyholders using online platforms 
such as eSewa, Khalti etc. for premium payment. 

ii. Technology and Digital Infrastructure: 

Citizen Life believes in the use of technology for the seamless and efficient delivery of 
services to its customers along with improving the existing business processes through 
automation of manual processes. Through the integration of the digital infrastructure in the 
company’s business processes, the company aims to reduce and optimize the time and 
costs involved in providing the service. Citizen Life leverages a highly secure and cost-
effective cloud environment, accessible 24/7, to deliver seamless and efficient services to 
its customers. The automation of online proposals simplifies the process of creating and 
managing policies, making it hassle-free for users. Real-time transaction capabilities 
ensure instant processing of payments and other financial activities, while integration with 
multiple digital payment channels offers flexibility and convenience. Automated policy and 
renewal reminders keep customers informed about important updates, such as policy 
renewals, birthday wishes, and service notifications, ensuring timely communication. A 
decentralized, province-level call center provides localized support, enhancing accessibility 
and responsiveness. Agents and policyholders can easily access their accounts through 
personalized logins, and payments are made quick and secure with a system-integrated 
dynamic QR code feature. Additionally, a user-friendly mobile app allows customers and 
agents to manage policies, make payments, and access services anytime, anywhere. This 
comprehensive digital transformation ensures a smoother, more secure, and customer-
centric experience for all. 

iii. Customer Relationships: 

Citizen Life believes in maintaining strong relationships with customers and ensuring their 
needs are met efficiently and to do so the company has decentralized service networks 
throughout the country who serve customers from various branches and sub-branches, 
ensuring that support is always within reach. In addition to it, the customer service and 
conservation function of the company focuses on effective and timely communication with 
the policyholders and addresses any concerns that customers may have. Citizen Life is 
committed to maintaining excellent customer relationships and continuously improving the 
services to meet the evolving needs of the customers along with top-notch after-sales 
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service and hassle-free claim processing. To enhance customer experience, the company 
has designated a Grievances Handling Officer and an Information Officer whom customers 
can easily contact.  
The company believes in providing accurate and transparent information to its customers 
to help customers make informed decisions. The company has also embraced a digital 
platform that allows for seamless communication and interaction, like departmental 
WhatsApp number and email address, mobile application. For consistent engagement of 
the customer, the company also has Viber community, Facebook page, and YouTube 
channel. These platform enables customers to access services, get their queries resolved, 
and stay updated with the latest information at their convenience.  

iv. Human Resource: 

Human resources are one of the key resources of the company as they contribute, 
influence, impact and support the value proposition by ensuring the right talent is in the 
right place to deliver the services of the company. Citizen Life believes in creating an 
inclusive culture which encourages collaboration and teamwork with a holistic approach to 
innovation. Citizen Life focuses on attracting, developing and retaining high-performance 
employees.  

F. Risk Management 

Citizen Life employs a comprehensive risk management framework to ensure that the 
company actively manages its risk to achieve appropriate risk and return tradeoffs in 
accordance with the company’s values and goals. The company has formulated its risk 
management policy to identify, assess, and mitigate risks related to various categories 
relating to the company’s operations, assets and financial health. This helps the company 
to make informed risk decisions for proper risk management. Company follows a three lines 
of defense model which describes the roles and responsibilities of key stakeholders of the 
partnership with regards to risk management which is evident from the establishment of 
the Risk Management & Solvency and Monitoring & Supervision Committee and risk 
management function that ensures continuous monitoring and improvement of the risk 
management practices of the company. The risk management policy has set out the risk 
appetite statement which provides a high-level indication of how much risk the company is 
willing to take, accept or tolerate to achieve its goals and objectives along with the risk 
management process of the company which includes identification, assessment, mitigation 
& control, monitoring & review and communication. 

ENTERPRISE-WIDE FUNCTIONS 

The enterprise-wide function of the company spans across various departments and 
operational areas to ensure efficient and effective delivery of services and includes everything 
from underwriting policies to claims management. The detailed enterprise-wide function of the 
company is as under: 

a. Underwriting: This function is responsible for the evaluation of insurance proposal 
submitted by the applicant which includes the personal details, coverage needs, and any 
other relevant data required to assess the risk of the applicant. An evaluation of risk is 
carried out in determining whether the risk is acceptable or not based on the different 
parameters like age, occupation, family history, medical history, financial capacity, 
geographical location etc. This function, based on the assessments, decides whether to 
accept or postpone or decline the proposal, which is communicated to the applicant. This 
function ensures all necessary documentation is completed, and the policy is formally 
issued to the client, confirming the coverage and terms. 
 

b. Customer Service and Conservation: This function is responsible for the support and 
assistance provided to policyholders. This includes helping them understand their policies, 
answering questions, resolving issues, and ensuring a positive experience with the 
company. The function is responsible for managing policy renewals by notifying clients and 
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service and hassle-free claim processing. To enhance customer experience, the company 
has designated a Grievances Handling Officer and an Information Officer whom customers 
can easily contact.  
The company believes in providing accurate and transparent information to its customers 
to help customers make informed decisions. The company has also embraced a digital 
platform that allows for seamless communication and interaction, like departmental 
WhatsApp number and email address, mobile application. For consistent engagement of 
the customer, the company also has Viber community, Facebook page, and YouTube 
channel. These platform enables customers to access services, get their queries resolved, 
and stay updated with the latest information at their convenience.  

iv. Human Resource: 

Human resources are one of the key resources of the company as they contribute, 
influence, impact and support the value proposition by ensuring the right talent is in the 
right place to deliver the services of the company. Citizen Life believes in creating an 
inclusive culture which encourages collaboration and teamwork with a holistic approach to 
innovation. Citizen Life focuses on attracting, developing and retaining high-performance 
employees.  

F. Risk Management 

Citizen Life employs a comprehensive risk management framework to ensure that the 
company actively manages its risk to achieve appropriate risk and return tradeoffs in 
accordance with the company’s values and goals. The company has formulated its risk 
management policy to identify, assess, and mitigate risks related to various categories 
relating to the company’s operations, assets and financial health. This helps the company 
to make informed risk decisions for proper risk management. Company follows a three lines 
of defense model which describes the roles and responsibilities of key stakeholders of the 
partnership with regards to risk management which is evident from the establishment of 
the Risk Management & Solvency and Monitoring & Supervision Committee and risk 
management function that ensures continuous monitoring and improvement of the risk 
management practices of the company. The risk management policy has set out the risk 
appetite statement which provides a high-level indication of how much risk the company is 
willing to take, accept or tolerate to achieve its goals and objectives along with the risk 
management process of the company which includes identification, assessment, mitigation 
& control, monitoring & review and communication. 

ENTERPRISE-WIDE FUNCTIONS 

The enterprise-wide function of the company spans across various departments and 
operational areas to ensure efficient and effective delivery of services and includes everything 
from underwriting policies to claims management. The detailed enterprise-wide function of the 
company is as under: 

a. Underwriting: This function is responsible for the evaluation of insurance proposal 
submitted by the applicant which includes the personal details, coverage needs, and any 
other relevant data required to assess the risk of the applicant. An evaluation of risk is 
carried out in determining whether the risk is acceptable or not based on the different 
parameters like age, occupation, family history, medical history, financial capacity, 
geographical location etc. This function, based on the assessments, decides whether to 
accept or postpone or decline the proposal, which is communicated to the applicant. This 
function ensures all necessary documentation is completed, and the policy is formally 
issued to the client, confirming the coverage and terms. 
 

b. Customer Service and Conservation: This function is responsible for the support and 
assistance provided to policyholders. This includes helping them understand their policies, 
answering questions, resolving issues, and ensuring a positive experience with the 
company. The function is responsible for managing policy renewals by notifying clients and 

processing payments to keep policies active by sending reminders for premium payments, 
policy renewals, and other important dates via calls, messages, or emails. It also oversees 
assignments of policies by assisting clients with transferring policy ownership or rights to 
another party as per their requests. This function handles the endorsement of the policies 
regarding the changes to policy terms, such as coverage adjustments, beneficiary updates, 
or changes in personal details of the policyholders. This function is also responsible for 
managing requests for policy loans, including approval, disbursement, and repayment and 
ensuring timely payment and settlement of survival benefits to policyholders as outlined in 
their policy terms. The function further assists clients who wish to surrender their policy, 
including providing information on the surrender value and processing the request. This 
function also provides a welcoming experience for new policyholders by introducing them 
to the company’s services, benefits, and the claims process along with collecting feedback 
from the customers. 

c. Claim: The core role of this function is to effectively manage claims related to death, 
disability, and critical illness (CI), ensuring prompt, accurate, and fair settlements. This 
function oversees the claim intimation where the policyholder notifies the company of a 
claim, providing necessary details and documents. The function investigates and assesses 
the claim, verifying the circumstances, reviewing policy terms, and evaluating the validity 
of the claim. A decision is made on the claim, and if approved, payment is processed to the 
beneficiary or policyholder. This function ensures that claims are handled efficiently, fairly, 
and in accordance with policy terms. 

d. Reinsurance: This function focuses on managing risk exposure for the company by 
transferring portions of risk to reinsurance partners to protect the company’s financial 
stability and expand its underwriting capacity. The function's core responsibilities include 
negotiating and maintaining reinsurance treaties, evaluating risk retention limits, processing 
reinsurance claims, and ensuring compliance with treaty terms. The function works closely 
with product & actuarial, underwriting and claims departments to optimize risk management 
strategies and maintain favorable reinsurance relationships. The function also analyzes 
reinsurance market conditions, reviews pricing structures and monitors the financial 
strength of reinsurance partners to ensure that the company maintains effective risk 
transfer arrangements that support its long-term growth and stability objectives. 

e. Product and Actuarial: This function serve as an integrated unit that manages both product 
development and actuarial functions of the company. The function handles the full product 
lifecycle - from market research and product conceptualization to pricing, profit margin 
assessment and filing products for regulatory approval. The function designs competitive 
insurance solutions while ensuring profitability through detailed actuarial analysis. 

The function is also responsible for conducting annual actuarial valuations, which involves 
working closely with the company’s appointed actuary on assessing reserves and 
monitoring product performance. The function is committed to upholding Treating Customer 
Fairly (TCF) and meeting Policyholders' Reasonable Expectations (PREs). 

f. General Services: This function focuses on managing office operations and overseeing the 
facility management of the company. The role of this function includes meeting the 
requisitions of various departments and offices of the company including procurement of 
goods and services, repairs and maintenance of the assets of the company, overseeing 
and maintaining smooth functioning of day-to-day operation of offices and departments of 
the company. This function is also responsible for ensuring the safety and security of the 
office premises, employees, and assets. 

g. Finance/Accounts: This function manages the company’s overall financial operations and 
accounting, including financial planning and budgeting, to ensure the efficient allocation of 
resources. The other major role of this function includes taxation, cash flow management, 
profitability analysis and preparing periodic financial reports and other financial documents 
in line with current policies and procedures. It reviews the company’s financial documents 
and procedures, offering recommendations for necessary improvements. This function also 
oversees payment processing, including preparing payments and handling bank transfers. 
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This function is also responsible for recording the financial transaction in compliance with 
the established accounting standards and majorly involves the bookkeeping and 
management of accounts receivable and payables of the company. This function conducts 
regular internal control checks to prevent errors, fraud, and theft and coordinating with the 
auditors of the company. 

h. Brand and Communication: This function is responsible for managing, promoting and 
protecting company's brand value by developing and implementing strategies to ensure 
consistent messaging, visual identity, and overall perception across all communication 
channels, aiming to build brand awareness, loyalty, and positive associations with the target 
audience, ultimately contributing to the business growth and success of company. 

i. Human Resource: This function plays a vital role in managing the company’s workforce. 
The human resources department evaluates candidates' qualifications and suitability, which 
includes reviewing resumes and cover letters. It is responsible for recruiting the best 
candidates for each role by sourcing talent, scheduling interviews, conducting reference 
checks, and administering skills assessments. This function also oversees the hiring 
process, ensuring a seamless transition by providing necessary equipment, training, and 
support. Additionally, it manages performance appraisals and reviews compensation to 
ensure employees are fairly rewarded for their work and contributions. The department is 
dedicated to fostering a positive work environment, offering growth opportunities, and 
providing competitive compensation and benefits to retain employees and reduce turnover. 

j. Compliance and Risk Management: The compliance function of the company majorly 
involves understanding and managing of the external legal requirements and internal rules 
that govern the operations of the company. The compliance function continuously keeps 
track of the regulatory changes, compliance requirements and the company’s internal 
policies along with the legal and regulatory adherence, addressing the compliance gaps. 
The compliance function plays a key role in maintaining and promoting a strong ethical 
culture within the company to create and maintain clear ethical guidelines and compliance 
standards that reflect the company's values, industry regulations, and legal requirements. 

The risk management function of the company focuses on identifying, assessing, and 
mitigating risks that could impact on the company’s objectives. It involves recognizing 
potential risks flagged by every department/unit of the company that could impact the 
company and evaluating the likelihood and impact of each identified risk to prioritize which 
ones need to be managed and mitigated. And therefore, reports to the board level 
committee on the identified risks and corrective actions. This function also evaluates 
whether the company maintains the required capital, life insurance fund, and other reserves 
as prescribed by regulatory authorities. 
 

k. Legal: This function plays a crucial role in providing strategic legal advice to help mitigate 
potential legal risks in business decisions. In the event of a dispute, the department 
represents the company in litigation, defending its rights and interests and maintaining the 
company's legal integrity by overseeing related matters. It manages the drafting and review 
of the contracts, labor-related legal matters, and intellectual property matters, ensuring full 
compliance with legal provisions.  

l. AML/CFT: The Anti-Money Laundering and Combating the Financing of Terrorism 
(AML/CFT) function ensures thorough adherence to anti-money laundering (AML) and 
counter-terrorism financing (CFT) regulations. It carefully assesses each customer's 
background and financial transactions, classifying them based on the risk they may pose 
to the company. The function regularly monitors suspicious activities and, if detected, 
promptly reports them to the relevant regulatory authority. It also evaluates the company’s 
exposure to AML/CFT risks and implements strategies to effectively manage and reduce 
these risks. 

m. Investment: This function is responsible for overseeing the overall investment of the 
company and utilizing the investible funds of the company to maximize returns and 
minimize risks. The role of this function includes making various investment decisions in 
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This function is also responsible for recording the financial transaction in compliance with 
the established accounting standards and majorly involves the bookkeeping and 
management of accounts receivable and payables of the company. This function conducts 
regular internal control checks to prevent errors, fraud, and theft and coordinating with the 
auditors of the company. 

h. Brand and Communication: This function is responsible for managing, promoting and 
protecting company's brand value by developing and implementing strategies to ensure 
consistent messaging, visual identity, and overall perception across all communication 
channels, aiming to build brand awareness, loyalty, and positive associations with the target 
audience, ultimately contributing to the business growth and success of company. 

i. Human Resource: This function plays a vital role in managing the company’s workforce. 
The human resources department evaluates candidates' qualifications and suitability, which 
includes reviewing resumes and cover letters. It is responsible for recruiting the best 
candidates for each role by sourcing talent, scheduling interviews, conducting reference 
checks, and administering skills assessments. This function also oversees the hiring 
process, ensuring a seamless transition by providing necessary equipment, training, and 
support. Additionally, it manages performance appraisals and reviews compensation to 
ensure employees are fairly rewarded for their work and contributions. The department is 
dedicated to fostering a positive work environment, offering growth opportunities, and 
providing competitive compensation and benefits to retain employees and reduce turnover. 

j. Compliance and Risk Management: The compliance function of the company majorly 
involves understanding and managing of the external legal requirements and internal rules 
that govern the operations of the company. The compliance function continuously keeps 
track of the regulatory changes, compliance requirements and the company’s internal 
policies along with the legal and regulatory adherence, addressing the compliance gaps. 
The compliance function plays a key role in maintaining and promoting a strong ethical 
culture within the company to create and maintain clear ethical guidelines and compliance 
standards that reflect the company's values, industry regulations, and legal requirements. 

The risk management function of the company focuses on identifying, assessing, and 
mitigating risks that could impact on the company’s objectives. It involves recognizing 
potential risks flagged by every department/unit of the company that could impact the 
company and evaluating the likelihood and impact of each identified risk to prioritize which 
ones need to be managed and mitigated. And therefore, reports to the board level 
committee on the identified risks and corrective actions. This function also evaluates 
whether the company maintains the required capital, life insurance fund, and other reserves 
as prescribed by regulatory authorities. 
 

k. Legal: This function plays a crucial role in providing strategic legal advice to help mitigate 
potential legal risks in business decisions. In the event of a dispute, the department 
represents the company in litigation, defending its rights and interests and maintaining the 
company's legal integrity by overseeing related matters. It manages the drafting and review 
of the contracts, labor-related legal matters, and intellectual property matters, ensuring full 
compliance with legal provisions.  

l. AML/CFT: The Anti-Money Laundering and Combating the Financing of Terrorism 
(AML/CFT) function ensures thorough adherence to anti-money laundering (AML) and 
counter-terrorism financing (CFT) regulations. It carefully assesses each customer's 
background and financial transactions, classifying them based on the risk they may pose 
to the company. The function regularly monitors suspicious activities and, if detected, 
promptly reports them to the relevant regulatory authority. It also evaluates the company’s 
exposure to AML/CFT risks and implements strategies to effectively manage and reduce 
these risks. 

m. Investment: This function is responsible for overseeing the overall investment of the 
company and utilizing the investible funds of the company to maximize returns and 
minimize risks. The role of this function includes making various investment decisions in 

line with the strategic objective of the company. This function carries out research and 
analysis for any arising investment opportunities analyzing different associated risk factors 
and making informed investment decisions which are subsequently presented to the 
Investment Committee of the company. This function works closely under the guidance of 
the investment committee of the company and regularly updates the committee on the 
performance of the investment portfolio of the company. The investment function of the 
company is also responsible to ensure that the investments are made in accordance with 
the investment directive issued by Nepal Insurance Authority.  

n. Training and Development: The major role of this function is to enhance the professional 
capabilities of employees and agents by providing various training/coaching tools tailored 
to their respective roles. This function plays a crucial role in recruitment, retention, 
activation, and engagement of agents by organizing specialized training programs per the 
approved schedule at respective branches/sub-branches and oversees the process of 
examination for the agents. 

Information Technology: The information technology function plays a crucial role in 
supporting the other functions of the company by ensuring all operations are integrated 
smoothly, security and efficiency are maintained. It manages important systems such as 
policy administration, claims processing, underwriting, and customer relationship 
management, allowing for more efficient workflows and data-driven decision-making. This 
function also focuses on protecting the critical consumer and corporate data with strong 
cybersecurity procedures, assuring regulatory compliance. By embracing sophisticated 
technologies such as cloud computing, artificial intelligence, and data analytics, the IT team 
improves operational agility, enhances customer experiences, and drives innovation, 
eventually supporting the company's strategic goals and market competitiveness. 

MAJOR SOURCES AND QUALITY OF CAPITAL 

The capital structure of the company reflects high-quality capital, characterized by permanence, 
loss absorbency, availability, absence of encumbrances and subordination. The significant 
contributions from paid up share capital, share premium, and retained earnings provide a solid 
foundation for financial stability and growth. Additionally, the presence of catastrophe reserves 
ensures preparedness for unexpected losses, further enhancing the quality of capital. 
Component of equity is shown as below: 

            Amount in ' 000 NPR 
Particulars Amount 
Share Capital 5,000,000 
Share Premium 449,688 
Catastrophe Reserves 230,372 
Retained Earnings 1,150,525 
Other Equity 368,960 

Total Equity 7,199,545 
 

The total equity of the company stands at NPR 7,199,545K, comprising various components 
that reflect a strong foundation for managing risk and meeting policyholder obligations. 

The share capital, amounting to NPR 5,000,000K, represents the core equity base of the 
company. It provides high loss absorbency as permanent capital that ranks last in liquidation, 
offering a strong buffer against losses. With no maturity date or repayment obligation, it ensures 
long-term stability and is fully available to absorb losses without any encumbrance or 
mandatory servicing costs. 

Share premium, totaling NPR 449,688K, further strengthens the equity base. It is a permanent 
source of capital that can be used to write off share issue expenses or issue bonus shares, 
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though it is not available for distribution as cash dividends. Like share capital, it ranks last in 
liquidation and has no mandatory servicing costs, ensuring its availability for strategic purposes. 

Catastrophe reserves, amounting to NPR 230,372K, are specifically earmarked for catastrophic 
losses as per regulatory requirements under the Insurance Act, 2079. While the detailed uses 
and procedures are not explicitly laid down in the regulations, these reserves are available for 
catastrophic events, subject to approval from the regulatory authority. They provide high loss 
absorbency and permanence, ranking last in liquidation with no mandatory servicing costs. 

Retained earnings, totaling NPR 1,150,525K, represent accumulated profits reinvested in the 
business. They offer high loss absorbency and permanence, with no repayment obligation. 
While fully available for use, distribution such as stock or cash dividends requires regulatory 
approval. Retained earnings rank last in liquidation and are free from encumbrance or servicing 
costs. 

Other Equity, amounting to NPR 368,960K, includes several components as follows: 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) reserves amounting NPR 6,336K is the amount 
allocated as 1% of net profit in compliance with Corporate Governance Directive, 2080 issued 
by the Nepal Insurance Authority. These reserves are restricted to CSR activities and have low 
loss absorbency, though they rank last in liquidation with no servicing costs. 

Fair Value Reserves totaling NPR 7,933K reflect the changes in the fair value of assets and 
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upon asset sales, ranking last in liquidation with no servicing costs. 

Deferred Tax Reserve totaling NPR 321,445K represents future tax benefits expected to be 
received by the company and provides moderate loss absorbency. It is realized over time as 
tax benefits are utilized and ranks last in liquidation with no servicing costs. 

Regulatory Reserve amounting to NPR 33,246K is set aside for regulatory compliance, 
representing the difference between net profit as per NFRS-based financial statement and 
GAAP-based financial statements in previous years as per the instruction of Nepal Insurance 
Authority. It provides high loss absorbency and is readily available for regulatory requirements, 
though its use requires regulatory approval. It ranks last in liquidation with no servicing costs. 

SOURCES OF CAPITAL AND THEIR INTERCONNECTEDNESS 

The capital structure of the company is interconnected with various operational and financial 
aspects, ensuring long-term sustainability and compliance. Share capital and share premium 
provide the foundation for underwriting capacity, allowing the company to write new business 
and expand its market. Retained earnings play a dual role, strengthening solvency by absorbing 
losses and enhancing dividend capacity by ensuring sufficient distributable profits. Catastrophe 
reserves act as a financial cushion against large claims, protecting capital and maintaining 
underwriting stability. These capital sources collectively influence the available capital 
resources (ACR), directly impacting the solvency ratio and ensuring the company meets 
minimum capital requirements set by regulators. A strong capital position enables business 
expansion, enhances market confidence, and supports consistent dividend payouts. This 
interconnectedness ensures the company maintains financial strength, sustains profitable 
operations, and fulfills policyholder commitments effectively. 
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CONTRIBUTION IN THE NATIONAL ECONOMY 

Life Insurance businesses have always been an integral part in the economic development of 
the nation. The contributions extend beyond merely providing financial protection to individuals 
and families as the life insurance businesses promote and encourage long-term savings, 
investments in capital markets and infrastructure, promoting financial literacy, creating jobs and 
providing social security and social welfare of the people. Citizen Life has been contributing 
towards the economic growth and prosperity of the nation by generating employment, capital 
investments, contribution towards the national tax revenue, social security and through 
investment in the infrastructure of the country.  

The contribution of the company to the national economy is evident through its investment in 
the capital market, fixed deposits, debentures and infrastructure of the country. As at Ashadh 
end, 2082, Citizen Life has made an investment of NPR 1,803 Million in the capital market i.e. 
shares and mutual funds of various companies and has also invested in the infrastructural 
sector of the nation of NPR 202 Million with NPR 152 Million in hydropower and NPR 50 Million 
in agriculture sector. 

By investing across diverse sectors, the company has not only strengthened its income streams 
but also proudly contributed NPR 127 million to the nation’s tax revenue during the financial 
year 2081/82. 

Citizen Life has also contributed to the job creation of the country through the generation of 
employment for 383 employees and 35,114 agents as on Ashadh end 2082 through its 136 
offices (Corporate/province/branch/sub-branch offices) widespread across 65 districts out of 77 
districts of Nepal extending the employment opportunities to the local people resulting into the 
economic growth of the nation.  
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ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION, SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY 
INITIATIVES: 

Citizen Life has established itself to be one of the progressive companies in Nepal's life 
insurance sector by adopting the principles of sustainability development in its operation 
through the company’s internal policies, investment strategies and various programs with the 
aim at fostering environmental, social, and economic well-being along with the success of the 
company. 

The company in its initiation towards environmental conservation, social development and 
sustainability has incorporated digital and paperless procedures into the day-to-day operations. 
With the focus of transitioning towards minimum use of paper for policy issuance, claims 
processing, and client communication, the company has not only enhanced its efficiency but 
also contributed towards conserving resources in the long run. By providing a digital solution, 
the company has fostered a culture of sustainability while ensuring seamless service delivery 
throughout its extensive network. 

In addition to these practices, the company supports climate action through investments in 
projects involving renewable energy and green infrastructure. Citizen Life has also been 
actively engaged with the local communities through its province offices/branches/sub-
branches to raise awareness about sustainability and climate resilience along with its 
involvement in the community projects of tree-plantation and disaster relief programs, 
reinforcing its role as a socially conscious corporate entity. 

Citizen Life has adopted practices that promote gender equality, diversity, equity and inclusion, 
environment conservation, good health and well-being. As on Ashadh End 2082, women 
account for 43.34 percent of the company’s workforce. The company actively works toward 
creating an inclusive work environment, offering opportunities and competitive compensation 
with its commitment to equity and inclusion for women and underrepresented groups.  

In its mission to uplift communities, Citizen Life has prioritized societal education and 
awareness programs, especially in rural parts of the nation. The company regularly organizes 
campaigns to promote financial literacy and insurance awareness. These initiatives are 
complemented by the sponsorship of educational workshops and community learning events 
that emphasize the importance of sustainable practices and long-term financial planning.  

Citizen Life has also been prioritizing the health and well-being of its employees, customers, 
and society at large. The company has partnered with healthcare providers to improve access 
to medical services. Additionally, it has been organizing and sponsoring health camps and 
wellness programs in urban as well as remote areas of the nation to address the lack of 
healthcare resources. 
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Dear Stakeholders,
This fiscal year has presented Citizen Life Insurance Company with the range of challenges. Yet, with 
insightfuleadership,a focused strategy, and a passionate team devoted to our mission, we have turned challenges 
into opportunities and while the broader economy has contracted as highlighted by very low interest rates provided 
by BFIs on investment on their deposits, our business has achieved a strong premium growth and remarkable 
pre-tax profitability.

Performance Excellence:
Citizen Life has recorded a very strong financial performance during the year, highlighted by a 21.44% increase in 
gross premium income and 43.79% increase in pre-tax profit when compared to same period last year.
The Balance Sheet also strengthened during the year, with total assets increasing substantially by 25.85%. 
Retained earnings has also increased by 59.32% showing the company’s potential to provide its shareholders a fair 
return on their investment. Increase in income from investment by 18.41% and transfers from the Life Fund 
along with decrease in management expense ratio were among the contributors for our robust financial 
performance.

Governance Excellence:
At Citizen Life, we continue to set the standard in balancing regulatory discipline with customer value. Our 
successful implementation of the Risk-Based Capital and Solvency Directive reflects this commitment-ensuring 
that we not only meet every regulatory requirement but also continue to reward our policyholders with healthy, 
sustainable bonuses.
Strong governance remains the foundation of our progress. Guided by an engaged Board of Directors and 
dedicated committees, our governance framework provides both strategic direction and rigorous oversight. It 
ensures that every decision we make upholds transparency, accountability, and long-term stakeholder 
confidence.
The principle of Treating Customers Fairly lies at the core of who we are. Through clear and honest communication 
about benefits, risks, and expectations, we build lasting relationships based on trust and understanding. This 
commitment to fairness, integrity, and open dialogue with policyholders, shareholders, and regulators has 
strengthened our reputation and driven consistent growth.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REVIEW
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As we move forward, we recognize that leadership in the life insurance sector brings great responsibility-a 
responsibility we will proudly embrace through continued governance excellence, ethical leadership, and 
unwavering dedication to the people and communities we serve.

Social and Sustainability Initiatives:
Citizen Life operates a “Corporate Social Responsibility Fund” for funding its activities for empowering the 
community and for contribution in different social initiatives initiated by other people and organizations. The 
company’s social initiatives have been highlighted by donations made to e-Nable Nepal for development of 
artificial limbs for disabled children and also for construction of Kathmandu Children Hospital for low-income 
families in this fiscal year. The company will continue to help in these kinds of activities among numerous other 
that will help the community and the whole population.

Stemming from a deep sense of duty to the planet, we are committed to being accountable for the impact 
of our operations on the environment by consistently taking steps to measure, manage and reduce our impact. 
We have continued our "Nurture the Nature, Citizen for Future" go-green awareness campaign and 
additionally, our "Digital Citizen" campaign promotes sustainable business practices throughout our 
operations by making necessary changes which can significantly help cut the use of resources like papers, 
plastics and other materials by automising tasks and services through paperless policy issuance, digital claims 
processing, QR-based payment systems, and Video KYC verifications.

Future Outlook:
Macroeconomic factors like political unrest, intense competition and low investment opportunities are some of 
the major obstacles observed by us which may cause difficulties in achieving our strategic targets for the coming 
years. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) in its publication World Economic Outlook, OCT 2025 projects 
Nepal's economic growth at 4.3% in 2025, increasing to 5.2% in 2026. Though there is short term unrest in 
political climate of the country brought on by the GEN-Z revolution, the future outlook looks bright with potential 
of improved economic growth along with opportunities still untapped in insurance market of the country.

Way Forward:
Even though the challenges in the macroeconomic environment may intensify in the near term, we foresee signs 
of positivity and recovery. The nation is heading towards an early election. We earnestly hope that after these 
election the country will move towards an economic sustainability. In such hope, we remain well placed to 
empower our citizens with the protection of life insurance, health and retirement planning thereby incentivising 
them to pursue their ambitions boldly.
We will also channel our efforts in enhancing the resilience and dynamism of our financial position, diversifying 
our income sources and bolstering our position in the market as the leader in life insurance. Also, over the years, 
Citizen Life has integrated into a robust and meaningful trajectory of deploying technology across its operations. 
Process automation and workflow solutions have been instrumental in driving efficiencies and enabling swifter 
services to our customers and also resulting in reduction of management expenses. During the year we made 
initial steps towards the migration to a next generation core software system, which is set to power our 
potential in achieving future development and also help in the effective implementation of NFRS 17.
We will also endeavour to take the message of life insurance, retirement planning and health to deeper and 
wider segments of population. Innovations in our product features are aligned to evolving policyholder 
expectations and changing demographics, ensuring Citizen Life's relevance and acceptance.

Appreciation:
At the heart of the successful corporate Citizen Life, lies its people. Our illustrious journey has been 
nurtured by the passion,perseverance and will of hundreds of employees across all grades and thousands of 
Citizen Leaders who are remembered with much gratitude and love. In reflection of yet another successful year 
gone by, I take this opportunity to thank Citizen Life's Board of Directors for the vision and valuable counsel. The 
Citizen Life Team of dedicated staff members and strong agency force spread across the country, functioning in 
unison towards Citizen Life's motto “Sambriddhi Tapaiko Saath Hamro” are also commended for their untiring 
efforts. My sincere appreciation also goes to our partners, brand ambassadors, media partners, and 
shareholders for your continued trust, support and confidence in our vision. I also wish to express profound 
gratitude to our regulators for their oversight and collaboration, which helps us maintain the highest standards 
of compliance and ethical conduct in our operations.

And finally on the behalf of the CitizenLife Family, I would like to extend my heartfelt big thank you to our 
policyholders and shareholders for their enduring trust in us and for being a constant source of inspiration for us 
to push the boundaries and achieve even greater heights in the coming years.

Poshak Raj Paudel
Chief Executive Officer
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 

The company employs a systematic and regulatory-compliant framework to manage risks 
across all functions of the company. This framework is designed on a foundation of robust 
governance, proactive risk identification, and effective mitigation strategies and is aligned with 
the Risk Based Capital and Solvency Directive, 2082 and the Risk Management Guidelines for 
Insurance Company, 2076 issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA). It ensures the 
company’s ability to manage risks while achieving its strategic objectives and safeguarding the 
interests of policyholders. The framework is guided by the following key principles: 

i. Risk Governance Structure 

The company has established a structured governance framework to oversee risk 
management activities: 

 Board of Directors: The Board provides oversight and ensures that risk management 
strategies are aligned with the company’s business objectives and risk appetite. 

 Risk Management & Solvency and Supervision & Monitoring Committee: The 
Committee is responsible for implementing risk policies, monitoring risk exposures, and 
ensuring the adequacy of risk controls across the organization along with ensuring 
compliance with prevailing laws, regulations and internal policies of the company. 

 Risk Management Function: The Chief Compliance and Risk Officer leads the risk 
management function, ensuring continuous monitoring, assessment, and reporting of 
risks to senior management and the Risk Management & Solvency and Supervision & 
Monitoring Committee. 
 

ii. Risk Identification & Assessment 
The company employs a systematic approach to identify and assess risks across all areas 
of its operations. Risks are categorized, documented, and evaluated to ensure a proactive 
and structured risk management process as follows: 
 Risk Categorization 

Risks are categorized into the following key areas: 
o Insurance Risk: Arises from uncertainties related to policyholder behavior, 

mortality, morbidity, and longevity. This includes the risk of higher-than-expected 
claims or changes in policyholder behavior. 

o Market Risk: Results from fluctuations in interest rates, equity prices, and property 
prices, which can impact the value of the company’s investments and liabilities. 

o Credit Risk: Occurs due to the potential default of counterparties, such as 
borrowers or bond issuers, leading to financial losses. 

o Operational Risk: Stems from failures in internal processes, systems, or human 
factors, including IT disruptions, fraud, or compliance breaches. 

o Liquidity Risk: Refers to the inability to meet short-term financial obligations due to 
insufficient cash or liquid assets. 

 
 Risk Registers 

Risk registers are maintained by the employees of the company to document the 
identified risks and self-assess those identified risks systematically. These registers 
capture essential details such as: 

o Risk Descriptions: Clear definitions of each identified risk. 
o Likelihood and Impact: Assessments of the probability and potential severity of 

risks. 
o Mitigation Measures: Actions and controls implemented to reduce or manage risks. 

 Assessments 
Risk assessments are conducted periodically using both qualitative and quantitative 
methods. These assessments evaluate: 

jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷)*@ — 63 —



o The likelihood of risks materializing. 
o The potential impact on the company’s financial performance, operations, and 

reputation. 
o The effectiveness of existing mitigation measures. 

This structured approach ensures consistency and transparency in risk identification 
and management. 

iii. Risk Mitigation & Control Measures 
The company has implemented a range of measures tailored to address specific risk 
categories and ensure the company’s financial stability, operational resilience, and 
regulatory compliance. The key strategies are as follows: 
 
 Insurance Risk 

The company mitigates insurance risk through: 
o Sound Underwriting Practices: Stringent underwriting standards are applied to 

assess the risk profile of potential policyholders, ensuring that premiums are 
commensurate with the level of risk. 

o Actuarial Models: Actuarial models are used for pricing, reserving and projecting 
future liabilities. 

o Reinsurance Arrangements: A significant portion of insurance risk is transferred to 
reinsurers, reducing the company’s exposure to large or unexpected claims. 

o Regular Reviews: Claims experience and assumptions are reviewed periodically 
to ensure they remain accurate and aligned with actual outcomes. 
 

 Market Risk 
Market risk stems from fluctuations in interest rates, equity prices, and property prices, 
which can impact on the company’s investment portfolio and liabilities. The investment 
portfolio is diversified across asset classes (e.g., time deposits, bonds, equities) and 
sectors to reduce exposure to any single class of asset. 

 
 Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from the potential default of counterparties, such as borrowers or 
bond issuers. The company mitigates this risk through: 
o Credit Assessment: Credit analysis is conducted before investing in counterparties. 

This includes reviewing credit ratings, financial statements, and industry outlooks. 
The company has an internal credit rating system to set the maximum credit limit 
based on their rating scores which is updated periodically. 

o Exposure Limits: The company sets limits on exposure to individual counterparties 
and sectors to avoid over-concentration of risk which is aligned with Investment 
Directive issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority. 

o Continuous Monitoring: Credit exposures are monitored regularly, and corrective 
actions are taken if deterioration in credit quality is observed. 

 
 Operational Risk 

Operational risk arises from failures in internal processes, systems, or human factors. 
The company addresses this through: 

o Internal Controls: Strong internal controls and audit mechanisms are implemented 
to detect and prevent operational failures, fraud, and errors. 

o IT Security Measures: Cybersecurity protocols are employed to protect sensitive 
data, IT systems, and digital infrastructure from breaches and cyberattacks.  

o IT governance is overseen by a dedicated committee, ensuring alignment with 
organizational goals. Advanced security measures, such as firewalls, antivirus 
solutions, role-based access controls, and Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA), are 
in place, with ongoing plans to enhance endpoint security and implement 
comprehensive monitoring solutions. 

o Employee Training: Regular training programs are conducted to enhance 
employee awareness and competence in risk management, compliance, and best 
operational practices. 
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 Operational Risk 

Operational risk arises from failures in internal processes, systems, or human factors. 
The company addresses this through: 

o Internal Controls: Strong internal controls and audit mechanisms are implemented 
to detect and prevent operational failures, fraud, and errors. 

o IT Security Measures: Cybersecurity protocols are employed to protect sensitive 
data, IT systems, and digital infrastructure from breaches and cyberattacks.  

o IT governance is overseen by a dedicated committee, ensuring alignment with 
organizational goals. Advanced security measures, such as firewalls, antivirus 
solutions, role-based access controls, and Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA), are 
in place, with ongoing plans to enhance endpoint security and implement 
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o Employee Training: Regular training programs are conducted to enhance 
employee awareness and competence in risk management, compliance, and best 
operational practices. 

 
 Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk refers to the inability to meet short-term financial obligations. The 
company manages this risk by maintaining sufficient cash and liquid assets to cover 
short-term liabilities and unexpected cash outflows. 

 
 Regulatory Risk 

Regulatory risk arises from changes in laws, regulations, or supervisory practices. The 
company mitigates this risk through: 
o Compliance Framework: A compliance framework ensures adherence to all 

applicable laws, regulations, and guidelines, including those set by the Nepal 
Insurance Authority (NIA). 

o Regulatory Monitoring: The company actively monitors regulatory developments 
and stay informed about changes that may impact on its operations. 

o Risk-Based Capital (RBC): The company maintains capital levels in compliance 
with RBC requirements to ensure financial resilience and regulatory compliance. 
 

iv. Monitoring & Reporting 
The company maintains a periodic monitoring and reporting mechanism to ensure timely 
identification and response to risks. Risk exposure and mitigation efforts are reported 
periodically to senior management and the Risk Management & Solvency and Supervision 
& Monitoring Committee for informed decision-making. The company adheres to risk-based 
capital (RBC) requirements as per NIA guidelines, ensuring financial stability and regulatory 
compliance. 

 
v. Risk Culture & Training 

The company promotes a strong risk culture across the organization, ensuring that all 
employees understand their roles and responsibilities in managing risks through: 

o Risk Awareness: Regular training programs are conducted to enhance employee 
awareness and competence in risk management. 

o Risk Appetite & Tolerance: The company’s risk appetite and tolerance levels are 
clearly defined and communicated to relevant stakeholders. 

CLIMATE RISK MANAGEMENT 

Citizen Life has formulated and is in the process of implementation of its internal climate risk 
management policy to promote sustainable development of the company by maximizing the 
beneficial impacts of climate change responses and minimizing the negative impacts across 
the company affected by the changing climate by carrying out climate resilient operations.  

While the company has not considered climate change to be a major risk to its business model, 
sustainability ambition is focused on making a positive impact on climate change for the present 
and the future. Thus, the impacts of the risks and opportunities of climate change are 
considered while developing the product strategy and while determining the business plan of 
the company. 

Citizen Life has grouped climate risks into three main categories: (i) Physical Risks relating to 
the impact of events related to climate change such as severe storms, droughts, flooding on 
property, infrastructure, and life of the insured, (ii) Transition Risks relating to the risk that arises 
from actions geared towards making a transition to a sustainable economy and (iii) Liability 
risk relating to the risks that could arise when parties that have suffered losses from climate 
change seek to recover those losses from others they believe may have been liable, such as 
through lawsuits or insurance claims. 

Further, to these main categories of risks, company believes (iv) Operational risks relating to 
the physical climate events that negatively affects the company’s ability to carry out basic 
functions or causing business disruptions due to damage of physical property, energy 
disruptions, malfunctioning information technology (IT) systems, etc. and the (v) Reputational 
Risks arising from an altered perception of businesses based on the contribution to climate 
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change and environmental degradation to be the secondary climate related risks impacting the 
business of the company. 

In addition to climate-related risks, business opportunities presented by climate change are 
also explored, allowing the company to better position itself in not only reducing costs for own 
operations but also meeting growing demand of the products facilitating the impact of climate 
change related risks. 

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK 

Citizen Life has implemented a robust Internal Control Framework to ensure operational 
efficiency, financial integrity, regulatory compliance, and risk mitigation. The framework is 
structured around the Three Lines of Defense Model and is structured around the five key 
components of internal control. Additionally, to enhance objectivity, the company has 
outsourced its internal audit function to an external professional firm and appointed a dedicated 
AML Compliance Implementation Officer to oversee Anti-Money Laundering and Combatting 
Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT) compliance. 

Three Lines of Defense Model 

First Line of Defense-Business & Operational Management 

 Comprises frontline business units, branch operations, and functional teams 
responsible for implementing controls in day-to-day activities. 

 Ensures adherence to company policies, procedures, manuals and financial reporting 
accuracy. 

 Identifies, assesses, and mitigates risks at the operational level while maintaining 
compliance with internal policies and regulatory requirements. 

Second Line of Defense-Risk Management & Compliance Function 

 Oversees risk management and regulatory compliance. 
 Monitors adherence to policies and provide guidance on risk mitigation strategies. 
 Ensures compliance with Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA) regulations, NFRS 

standards, and compliance with prevailing laws and regulations. 
 A dedicated AML Compliance Implementation Officer ensures adherence to Anti-

Money Laundering and Combatting Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT) regulations. 
 AML/CFT implementation includes customer due diligence (CDD), transaction 

monitoring, suspicious transaction reporting (STR), and regulatory reporting as 
mandated by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) Financial Information Unit and Nepal Insurance 
Authority (NIA). 

Third Line of Defense-Independent Internal Audit Function 

 The internal audit function is outsourced to an independent external professional firm 
to enhance objectivity and efficiency. 

 The internal auditors provide assurance on the effectiveness of internal controls, 
governance, and risk management processes. 

 The outsourced audit firm reports directly to the Audit Committee ensuring 
transparency and accountability. 

 Risk based internal audits are conducted periodically complying the provision of 
Internal Audit Directive issued by Nepal Insurance Authority. 

Key Components of Internal Control 

i. Control Environment 
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change and environmental degradation to be the secondary climate related risks impacting the 
business of the company. 

In addition to climate-related risks, business opportunities presented by climate change are 
also explored, allowing the company to better position itself in not only reducing costs for own 
operations but also meeting growing demand of the products facilitating the impact of climate 
change related risks. 

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK 

Citizen Life has implemented a robust Internal Control Framework to ensure operational 
efficiency, financial integrity, regulatory compliance, and risk mitigation. The framework is 
structured around the Three Lines of Defense Model and is structured around the five key 
components of internal control. Additionally, to enhance objectivity, the company has 
outsourced its internal audit function to an external professional firm and appointed a dedicated 
AML Compliance Implementation Officer to oversee Anti-Money Laundering and Combatting 
Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT) compliance. 

Three Lines of Defense Model 

First Line of Defense-Business & Operational Management 

 Comprises frontline business units, branch operations, and functional teams 
responsible for implementing controls in day-to-day activities. 

 Ensures adherence to company policies, procedures, manuals and financial reporting 
accuracy. 

 Identifies, assesses, and mitigates risks at the operational level while maintaining 
compliance with internal policies and regulatory requirements. 

Second Line of Defense-Risk Management & Compliance Function 

 Oversees risk management and regulatory compliance. 
 Monitors adherence to policies and provide guidance on risk mitigation strategies. 
 Ensures compliance with Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA) regulations, NFRS 

standards, and compliance with prevailing laws and regulations. 
 A dedicated AML Compliance Implementation Officer ensures adherence to Anti-

Money Laundering and Combatting Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT) regulations. 
 AML/CFT implementation includes customer due diligence (CDD), transaction 

monitoring, suspicious transaction reporting (STR), and regulatory reporting as 
mandated by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) Financial Information Unit and Nepal Insurance 
Authority (NIA). 

Third Line of Defense-Independent Internal Audit Function 

 The internal audit function is outsourced to an independent external professional firm 
to enhance objectivity and efficiency. 

 The internal auditors provide assurance on the effectiveness of internal controls, 
governance, and risk management processes. 

 The outsourced audit firm reports directly to the Audit Committee ensuring 
transparency and accountability. 

 Risk based internal audits are conducted periodically complying the provision of 
Internal Audit Directive issued by Nepal Insurance Authority. 

Key Components of Internal Control 

i. Control Environment 

The control environment sets the tone at the top, influencing the overall culture and ethical 
values within the company. 

 The Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Risk Management & Solvency and 
Monitoring and Supervision Committee and senior management provide oversight and 
promote a strong internal control culture. 

 Organizational structure having defined roles and responsibilities across departments 
with clear segregation of duties prevents conflicts of interest and enhances the 
accountability. 

 Strong HR policies ensure that employees with the necessary expertise are recruited, 
trained and developed. 

 Continuous training and awareness programs on risk management, AML/CFT 
compliance and regulatory requirements ensures compliant behavior across the 
company. 
 

ii. Risk Assessment 

The risk assessment process involves identifying and analyzing risks that could impact the 
achievement of the company’s objectives.  

 The company has risk management framework and policies that helps to identify, 
assess and mitigate the risk which is integrated into operational, financial, and 
strategic decision-making. 

 Company has risk management and compliance function as second line of defense 
for ensuring effective risk and compliance management. 

 A dedicated AML Compliance Implementation Officer ensures compliance with 
AML/CFT regulations. 
 

iii. Control Activities 

Control activities are the policies and procedures implemented to mitigate risks and ensure 
compliance with objectives of the company. The company has the following policies and 
procedures to ensure control effectiveness with the company. 

1. AML/CFT Policy, 2081 
2. AML/CFT Procedure, 2081 
3. Claim Manual, 2080 
4. Customer Service and Conservation Manual, 2080 
5. Climate Change Risk Management Policy, 2023 
6. Employee Service Bylaw, 2081 
7. Financial Administration Bylaw, 2074 
8. Internal Audit Policy, 2023 
9. Product Development Manual, 2023 
10. Underwriting Manual, 2080 
11. Reinsurance Manual, 2023 
12. Reinsurance Policy, 2023 
13. Risk Management Policy, 2023 
14. Corporate Social Responsibility Procedure, 2080 
15. Information and Communication Technology Policy, 2081 

Further, companies have approval and authorization, verification, reconciliation, physical 
verification mechanism to help maintain compliance, minimize fraud risk, ensure accurate 
financial reporting, and enhance operational efficiency in the company. 
 

iv. Information & Communication 
The information and communication component ensures the timely and accurate flow of 
information within the organization and with external parties. It supports decision-making 
and ensures that employees understand their role in maintaining internal controls. The 
company has a management information system that produces reports containing 
operational, financial and compliance-related information required for decision-making. All 
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policies, procedures and manuals are communicated to the relevant personnel within the 
organization to ensure that they receive a clear message relating to control responsibilities 
and take them seriously. Monthly meetings of the head of the department (HODs) with 
senior management are conducted to make the HODs understand their role in the internal 
control system, as well as how individual activities relate to the work of others. The company 
has a grievance handling officer, information officer and regulatory focal person to ensure 
effective communication with external parties, such as customers, suppliers, regulators and 
shareholders 
 
 

v. Monitoring 

Monitoring activities involve the continuous evaluation of the internal control system to 
ensure its effectiveness. This includes regular reviews, audits, and corrective actions to 
address any weaknesses or gaps in controls. The internal audit function is outsourced to 
an independent firm, ensuring objectivity. Audit findings are reported directly to the Board 
Level Audit Committee. Internal audit adopts risk-based approach of auditing and covers 
financial controls, operational processes and regulatory compliance. Compliance function 
oversees the implementation of audit recommendations to strengthen internal controls. 
Periodic evaluations on the effectiveness of internal control are carried out through internal 
audits. 

IT SYSTEM AND CONTROL  

Citizen Life has established a modern and resilient IT infrastructure by combining cloud-based 
and on-premises solutions, including virtualized servers, centralized storage with cloud 
synchronization, and a robust network connecting branches securely. The company utilizes 
specialized software for core operations, compliance, and productivity, while adhering to 
regulatory guidelines and aligning IT processes. Core Insurance Admin System is designed to 
be accessed internally i.e. VPN must be used to access the system and no external parties can 
access the system from outside the internal network. IT governance is overseen by a dedicated 
committee, ensuring alignment with organizational goals. Advanced security measures, such 
as firewalls, antivirus solutions, role-based access controls, and Multi-Factor Authentication, 
are in place, with ongoing plans to enhance endpoint security and implement comprehensive 
monitoring solutions. Citizen Life has also implemented a comprehensive Business Continuity 
and Disaster Recovery framework. Regular system backups are taken and stored both onsite 
and offsite, with periodic restoration testing to verify data integrity and availability. Defined 
Recovery Time Objectives and Recovery Point Objectives guide the recovery process during 
system outages or disasters. In the event of a crisis, an Incident Response Team is activated 
to manage containment, investigation, recovery, and communication, ensuring transparent 
reporting to management, regulators, and affected stakeholders. Furthermore, Citizen Life has 
established a formal Information system audit mechanism to regularly assess the effectiveness, 
integrity, and resilience of its information systems and internal controls. Information System 
audits are conducted periodically under the guidance of the Audit Committee to identify 
vulnerabilities, ensure regulatory compliance, and recommend areas of improvement in 
cybersecurity, data governance, and system efficiency through independent expert/professional 
institution. 

Citizen Life is driving digital transformation to boost operational efficiency and customer 
experience by automating internal processes, reducing manual tasks, and enhancing 
productivity. The company offers seamless digital platforms for policy purchases and claims 
management, while integrating third-party systems to improve B2B and B2C interactions. 
Citizen Life Insurance is prioritizing digital transformation, investing in advanced technologies, 
and strengthening IT governance and security to support its long-term goals. Looking ahead, 
the company plans to adopt cloud native architectures, expand API driven integrations, and 
build a scalable digital backbone capable of supporting innovation and evolving customer 
expectations.  
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Monitoring activities involve the continuous evaluation of the internal control system to 
ensure its effectiveness. This includes regular reviews, audits, and corrective actions to 
address any weaknesses or gaps in controls. The internal audit function is outsourced to 
an independent firm, ensuring objectivity. Audit findings are reported directly to the Board 
Level Audit Committee. Internal audit adopts risk-based approach of auditing and covers 
financial controls, operational processes and regulatory compliance. Compliance function 
oversees the implementation of audit recommendations to strengthen internal controls. 
Periodic evaluations on the effectiveness of internal control are carried out through internal 
audits. 

IT SYSTEM AND CONTROL  

Citizen Life has established a modern and resilient IT infrastructure by combining cloud-based 
and on-premises solutions, including virtualized servers, centralized storage with cloud 
synchronization, and a robust network connecting branches securely. The company utilizes 
specialized software for core operations, compliance, and productivity, while adhering to 
regulatory guidelines and aligning IT processes. Core Insurance Admin System is designed to 
be accessed internally i.e. VPN must be used to access the system and no external parties can 
access the system from outside the internal network. IT governance is overseen by a dedicated 
committee, ensuring alignment with organizational goals. Advanced security measures, such 
as firewalls, antivirus solutions, role-based access controls, and Multi-Factor Authentication, 
are in place, with ongoing plans to enhance endpoint security and implement comprehensive 
monitoring solutions. Citizen Life has also implemented a comprehensive Business Continuity 
and Disaster Recovery framework. Regular system backups are taken and stored both onsite 
and offsite, with periodic restoration testing to verify data integrity and availability. Defined 
Recovery Time Objectives and Recovery Point Objectives guide the recovery process during 
system outages or disasters. In the event of a crisis, an Incident Response Team is activated 
to manage containment, investigation, recovery, and communication, ensuring transparent 
reporting to management, regulators, and affected stakeholders. Furthermore, Citizen Life has 
established a formal Information system audit mechanism to regularly assess the effectiveness, 
integrity, and resilience of its information systems and internal controls. Information System 
audits are conducted periodically under the guidance of the Audit Committee to identify 
vulnerabilities, ensure regulatory compliance, and recommend areas of improvement in 
cybersecurity, data governance, and system efficiency through independent expert/professional 
institution. 

Citizen Life is driving digital transformation to boost operational efficiency and customer 
experience by automating internal processes, reducing manual tasks, and enhancing 
productivity. The company offers seamless digital platforms for policy purchases and claims 
management, while integrating third-party systems to improve B2B and B2C interactions. 
Citizen Life Insurance is prioritizing digital transformation, investing in advanced technologies, 
and strengthening IT governance and security to support its long-term goals. Looking ahead, 
the company plans to adopt cloud native architectures, expand API driven integrations, and 
build a scalable digital backbone capable of supporting innovation and evolving customer 
expectations.  

DISCLOSURE ON REINSURANCE 

Citizen Life has established a robust reinsurance policy that aligns with the Nepal Insurance 
Authority's Reinsurance Directives, 2080. The company maintains four primary types of reinsurance 
treaties: Individual Life, Group Life, Foreign Employment Term Life, and Catastrophe Excess of 
Loss Reinsurance, formally signed and automatically renewed annually providing a continuous and 
stable risk management framework. Besides the CAT XL reinsurance arrangement, the company 
maintains a catastrophe reserve by transferring 10% of its annual net profit to cover unexpected 
catastrophic events in line with the Insurance Act, 2079. The company’s reinsurance strategy 
demonstrates a balanced approach to risk management through multiple layers of protection. 

From a qualitative perspective, the company in compliance with the Reinsurance Directive, 2080, 
has reinsurance agreement in place with both the national reinsurers – Nepal Reinsurance 
Company Limited and Himalayan Reinsurance Limited. The credit rating for each of the reinsurers 
is as follows: 

Reinsurer Rating 
Nepal Re AA - (ICRA Nepal) 
Himalayan Re B+ (AM BEST) 

 

The reinsurance arrangement follows a structured approach, beginning with mandatory direct 
cession ceded to both national reinsurers (following a gradual reduction schedule from 6% to nil 
between 2081/082 and 2084/085), followed by the insurer's retention and surplus reinsurance 
arrangements which is inclusive of 30% of Quota Share Reinsurance of the Surplus Risk ceded 
with both national reinsurers in equal percentage. This layered approach ensures adequate 
coverage while maintaining compliance with regulatory requirements. The company also maintains 
profit-sharing arrangements with reinsurers for different business portfolios, demonstrating a 
balanced approach to risk and reward sharing. 

Quantitatively, Citizen Life maintains prudent retention limits across its portfolio. For individual life 
and group term insurance, the company retains NPR 500,000 per life per contract. For group affinity 
portfolio, the retention is set at 50% of the portfolio. Foreign employment term assurance portfolio 
for the year 2081/82 is operated via FE Pool in compliance with the Foreign Employment Term 
Assurance Pool Establishment and Operation Directive, 2081 issued by NIA. The catastrophe 
coverage extends to NPR 10,000,000 per catastrophe event with a limit of 10 lives per event.  

The company's financial capacity for risk retention is well within the limit of 0.5% of the company’s 
net worth and maximum of NPR 50 lakhs per policy as prescribed by the Reinsurance Directive, 
2080. The comprehensive reinsurance strategy ultimately serves to ensure regulatory compliance, 
maintain financial stability, implement robust risk management, and preserve the company's 
capacity to meet policyholder’s liability under every scenario. By balancing risk transfer, retention, 
and financial prudence, Citizen Life Insurance Company demonstrates a sophisticated approach to 
protecting its stakeholders' interests. 
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

This statement delineates the principal responsibilities and obligations of the Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) in relation to the preparation, presentation, and oversight of the annual financial statements 
of the Company as follows: 

1. Financial Reporting 

Chief Financial Officer is responsible for overseeing the preparation, presentation, and 
integrity of annual financial statements and related disclosures which ensures that: 

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial 
Reporting Standards (NFRS) and comply with the requirements of the Insurance Act, 2079 
(2022) and the directives of the Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA). 

 The financial statements present a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, and cash flows of Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited for the year ended 
on Asadh End, 2082. 

2. Internal Controls over financial reporting 

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the establishment and monitoring of internal 
control over financial reporting as follows: 

 The internal control system includes policies and procedures to safeguard assets, prevent 
and detect fraud, and ensure compliance with laws and regulations and CFO is responsible 
for the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of internal controls over 
financial reporting and for conducting the regular reviews to ensure their continued 
adequacy. 

 These controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
applicable accounting standards. 

3. Risk Management 

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the review of the company’s risk management 
framework to ensure that it is adequate to mitigate financial and operational risks. 

4. Ethical Standards 

The Chief Financial Officer is committed to upholding the highest standards of confidentiality, 
professionalism, transparency, accountability and integrity within the finance function and 
across the company. 

 

……………….. 

Gopal Pangeni 
Chief Financial Officer 
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CERTIFICATION BY APPOINTED ACTUARY OF THE COMPANY 

 

I, Navin Vishwanath Iyer, in my professional capacity as the Appointed Actuary of 
Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), 
herby certify that I have conducted a comprehensive actuarial valuation of the 
Company liabilities as of July 16, 2025. 

Based on my professional assessment, I affirm that: 

1. I have thoroughly verified the accuracy and completeness of the valuation data 
provided to me through multiple reasonableness checks and data validation 
procedures. 

2. The reserves are adequate and proper as of July 16, 2025, covering all known 
liabilities pertaining to the long-term business of the company. These reserves 
account for all bonus declarations made up to this date and comply fully with the 
requirements outlined in the Risk Based Capital and Solvency Directive, 2025 
issued by Nepal Insurance Authority. 

3. The Company is sufficiently solvent, in accordance with the Risk Based Capital 
and Solvency Directive, 2025 as on the date of valuation viz. July 16, 2025 with 
Solvency Ratio of 173%. 

 

 

 

Navin Vishwanath Iyer 
Fellow, Institute of Actuaries of India 
Appointed Actuary 
Membership Number: 6779 
Certificate of Practice No.: 6779/99 

October 09, 2025 
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Fig in NPR
Particulars Notes  Current Year  Previous Year 

Assets:
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 4 3,766,778                2,822,809                

Property and Equipment 5 214,526,191            231,373,813            

Investment Properties 6 -                            -                            

Deferred Tax Assets 7 295,003,011            677,960,434            

Investment in Subsidiaries 8 -                            -                            

Investment in Associates 9 -                            -                            

Investments 10 24,044,189,056       19,079,801,107       

Loans 11 1,048,986,533         810,518,362            

Reinsurance Assets 12 432,000                    2,630,000                

Current Tax Assets 21 587,858,013            460,553,651            

Insurance Receivables 13 35,773,123              32,737,814              

Other Assets 14 707,554,110            10,089,478              

Other Financial Assets 15 383,204,331            319,181,447            

Cash and Cash Equivalent 16 416,320,296            412,303,295            

Total Assets 27,737,613,443       22,039,972,212       

Equity & Liabilities:

Equity:

Share Capital 17 (a) 5,000,000,000         3,937,500,000         

Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17 (b) -                            -                            

Share Premium 17 (c) 449,688,265            1,512,188,265         

Catastrophe Reserves 17 (d) 230,372,633            175,447,465            

Retained Earnings 17 (e) 1,150,524,559         722,126,406            

Other Equity 17 (f) 368,959,638            714,822,955            

Total Equity 7,199,545,095         7,062,085,091         

Liabilities:

Provisions 18 35,765,961              28,506,080              

Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 19,863,000,632       14,422,683,859       

Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 -                            -                            

Insurance Payable 20 20,720,981              2,164,487                

Current Tax Liabilities 21 -                            -                            

Borrowings 22 -                            -                            

Other Liabilities 23 208,633,999            254,381,866            

Other Financial Liabilities 24 409,946,775            270,150,828            

Total Liabilities 20,538,068,348       14,977,887,121       
Total Equity and Liabilities 27,737,613,443       22,039,972,212       

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position

As At Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Gopal Pangeni
Chief Financial Officer

Poshak Raj Paudel
Chief Executive Officer

Pradeep Jung Pandey
Chairman

Sumit Kumar Agrawal
Director

Manoj Karki
Director

Mahesh Swar
Director

Dawa Futi Sherpa
Director

Bhej Prasad Timilsina
Director

As per our attached report of 
even date

CA Aman Uprety
Partner

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu
Date: 2082/08/24

Devraj Adhikari
Independent Director
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Fig. in NPR

Particulars Notes  Current Year  Previous Year 

Income:

Gross Earned Premiums 25 7,548,190,424          6,215,338,761          

Premiums Ceded 26 (416,047,876)            (373,589,845)            

Net Earned Premiums 7,132,142,548          5,841,748,916          

Commission Income 27 42,564,789               32,877,165               

Other Direct Income 28 20,511,710               17,344,331               

Interest Income on Loan to Policyholders 11 111,095,303             85,998,744               

Income from Investments and Loans 29 1,890,454,049          1,596,503,774          

Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes 30 -                            -                            

Net Realised Gains/(Losses) 31 -                            -                            

Other Income 32 1,945,115                 1,635,770                 

Total Income 9,198,713,513          7,576,108,700          

Expenses:

Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 33 1,912,311,944          1,828,060,112          

Claims Ceded 33 (313,052,666)            (305,895,629)            

Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 34 5,378,643,248          4,208,801,538          

Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 34 2,198,000                 (2,536,893)                

Net Benefits and  Claims Paid 6,980,100,526          5,728,429,129          

Commission Expenses 35 725,410,311             645,546,135             

Service Fees 36 53,491,069               43,813,117               

Other Direct expenses 37 -                            -                            

Employee Benefits Expenses 38 374,317,738             327,522,375             

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 62,548,134               56,580,790               

Impairment Losses 40 849,214                    223,485                    

Other Operating Expenses 41 444,899,563             382,991,294             

Finance Cost 42 7,845,284                 9,029,627                 

Total Expenses 8,649,461,839          7,194,135,953          
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net Profits of Associates 
Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax 549,251,674             381,972,748             

Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method 9 -                            -                            

Profit Before Tax 549,251,674             381,972,748             

Income Tax Expense 43 360,115,377             (48,044,516)              

Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 189,136,297             430,017,264             

Earning Per Share: 51 

Basic EPS 3.78 10.92                        

Diluted EPS 3.78 10.92                        

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss

For Period from Shrawan 01, 2081 to Ashadh, 2082 (July 16, 2024 to July 16, 2025)

Gopal Pangeni
Chief Financial Officer

Poshak Raj Paudel
Chief Executive Officer

Pradeep Jung Pandey
Chairman

Sumit Kumar Agrawal
Director

Manoj Karki
Director

Mahesh Swar
Director

Dawa Futi Sherpa
Director

Bhej Prasad Timilsina
Director

As per our attached report of 
even date

CA Aman Uprety
Partner

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu
Date: 2082/08/24

Devraj Adhikari
Independent Director
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Fig. in NPR

Particulars Notes  Current Year  Previous Year 

Net Profit/(Loss) For the Year 189,136,297            430,017,264            

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments -                           -                           

Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value -                           -                           

Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation -                           -                           
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for 
using the equity method 9 -                           -                           

Income Tax Relating to Above Items -                           -                           

Reclassified to Profit or Loss -                           -                           

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments 91,368,185              22,938,496              

Revaluation of Property and Equipment/ Goodwill & Intangible Assets -                           -                           

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations -                           -                           
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for 
using the equity method 9 -                           -                           

Income Tax Relating to Above Items (22,842,046)             (5,734,624)               

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 68,526,139              17,203,872              

Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 257,662,436            447,221,136            

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For Period from Shrawan 01, 2081 to Ashadh, 2082 (July 16, 2024 to July 16, 2025)

Gopal Pangeni
Chief Financial Officer

Poshak Raj Paudel
Chief Executive Officer

Pradeep Jung Pandey
Chairman

Sumit Kumar Agrawal
Director

Manoj Karki
Director

Mahesh Swar
Director

Dawa Futi Sherpa
Director

Bhej Prasad Timilsina
Director

As per our attached report of 
even date

CA Aman Uprety
Partner

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu
Date: 2082/08/24

Devraj Adhikari
Independent Director
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Fig. in NPR
Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities:

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received 7,548,190,424         6,215,338,761         

Commission Received 42,564,789              32,877,165              

Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers 313,052,666            305,895,629            

Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents -                           -                           

Other Direct Income 20,511,710              17,344,331              

Others (to be specified) (771,962,732)           (151,800,873)           

Cash Paid -                           -                           

Gross Benefits and Claims Paid (1,912,311,944)        (1,828,060,112)        

Reinsurance Premium Paid (416,047,876)           (373,589,845)           

Commission Paid (725,410,311)           (645,546,135)           

Service Fees Paid (53,491,069)             (43,813,117)             

Employee Benefits Expenses Paid (374,317,738)           (327,522,375)           

Other Expenses Paid (456,587,918)           (393,722,869)           

Others (to be specified) -                           -                           

Income Tax Paid -                           -                           

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1] 3,214,190,000         2,807,400,559         

Cash Flow From Investing Activities:

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets (1,617,860)               (888,609)                  

Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets -                           -                           

Acquisitions of Investment Properties -                           -                           

Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties -                           -                           

Rental Income Received -                           -                           

Acquisitions of Property and Equipment (46,096,738)             (51,661,989)             

Proceeds From Sale of Property and Equipment 1,070,117                45,002                     

Investment in Subsidiaries -                           -                           

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries -                           -                           

Investment in Associates -                           -                           

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates -                           -                           

Purchase of Equity Instruments (1,695,129,485)        (361,810,529)           

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments 530,373,465            -                           

Purchase of Mutual Funds (301,110,810)           (89,264,020)             

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds 2,017,664                -                           

Purchase of Preference Shares -                           -                           

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares -                           -                           

Purchase of Debentures (518,922,954)           (1,021,338,474)        

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures 10,502,355              -                           

Purchase of Bonds -                           -                           

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds -                           -                           

Investments in Deposits (5,665,000,000)        (6,505,000,000)        

Maturity of Deposits 2,770,000,001         1,047,700,000         

Loans Paid (239,317,385)           (176,170,226)           

Proceeds from Loans -                           -                           

 Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
 Statement of Cash Flows 

As At Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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Fig. in NPR
Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
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Cash Received

Gross Premium Received 7,548,190,424         6,215,338,761         

Commission Received 42,564,789              32,877,165              
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Commission Paid (725,410,311)           (645,546,135)           
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Proceeds from Sale of Debentures 10,502,355              -                           
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Proceeds from Sale of Bonds -                           -                           

Investments in Deposits (5,665,000,000)        (6,505,000,000)        

Maturity of Deposits 2,770,000,001         1,047,700,000         
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 Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
 Statement of Cash Flows 

As At Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

 Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
 Statement of Cash Flows 

As At Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Rental Income Received -                           -                           
Proceeds from Finance Lease -                           -                           

Interest Income Received 1,985,245,587         1,680,515,091         

Dividend Received 16,303,765              1,987,427                

Other Income Received 1,945,115                1,609,603                

Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2] (3,149,737,163)        (5,474,276,721)        

Cash Flow From Financing Activities:

Interest Paid -                           -                           

Proceeds From Borrowings -                           -                           

Repayment of Borrowings -                           -                           
Payment of Finance Lease -                           -                           

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital -                           2,664,000,000         

Share Issuance Cost Paid (4,514,784)               (39,849,172)             

Dividend Paid -                           -                           

Dividend Distribution Tax Paid (55,921,053)             (9,868,421)               

Others (to be specified) -                           -                           

Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3] (60,435,837)             2,614,282,407         

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3] 4,017,000                (52,593,754)             

Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period 412,303,295            464,897,050            

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents -                           -                           

Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period 416,320,295            412,303,295            

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents:

Cash In Hand 6,328,547                8,631,035                

Cheuqe in Hand -                           -                           

Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months) -                           -                           

Balance With Banks 409,991,749            403,672,260            

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
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Pradeep Jung Pandey
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Director
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Fig. in NPR

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Opening Balance in Retained Earnings 722,126,406            579,539,081            

Transfer from OCI reserves to retained earning in current year -                           -                           

Net profit or (loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 189,136,297            430,017,264            

Appropriations:

 i)Transfer to Insurance Fund -                           -                           

 ii)Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve (54,925,167)             (38,197,275)             

iii)Transfer to Capital Reserve -                           -                           

iv)Transfer to CSR Reserve (5,492,517)               (3,819,727)               

v)Transfer to/from Regulatory Reserve -                           -                           

vi)Transfer to Fair Value Reserve -                           -                           

vii)Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserve 360,115,377            (48,044,516)             

viii)Transfer to OCI reserves due to change in classification -                           -                           

ix)Reversal previous year investment provision as per Sec 16 of Financial Directive -                           -                           

Deductions:

i) Accumulated Fair Value Gain on each Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

a) Equity Instruments -                           -                           

b) Mutual Fund -                           -                           

c) Others (if any) -                           -                           

ii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Investment Properties -                           -                           

iii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges -                           -                           

iv) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges -                           -                           

v) Accumulated Fair value gain of  Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges -                           -                           

vi)) Goodwill Recognised -                           -                           

vii) Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency -                           -                           
viii) Accumulated Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method included 
in Investment Account -                           -                           

ix) Overdue Loans -                           -                           

x) Fair value gain recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss -                           -                           

xi) Investment in unlisted shares as per sec 16 of Financial Directive (5,750,000)               -                           

xii) Delisted share investment or mutual fund investment -                           -                           

xiii) Bonus Share/Dividend Paid (55,921,053)             (197,368,421)           

xiv) Deduction as per Sec 17 of Financial Directive -                           -                           

xiv) Deduction as per Sec 18 of Financial Directive (37,320)                    (37,320)                    

xv) Others (Share Issue Expenses) (4,514,784)               -                           

Adjusted Retained Earning 1,144,737,239         722,089,086            

Add: Transfer from Share Premium Account -                           1,062,500,000         

Less: Amount apportioned for Assigned Capital -                           -                           

Less: Deduction as per Sec 15(1) of Financial Directive -                           -                           

Add/Less: Others (Future Profit Embedded in Technical Provision) (103,569,020)           -                           

Total Distributable Profit/(Loss) 1,041,168,219         1,784,589,086         

 Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
 Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss 

As At Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements  

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025) 

 

1. General Information: 

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the 'Company') is a Public 
Limited Company, incorporated on Ashad 12, 2064 (June 26, 2007) and operated as Life Insurance 
Company after obtaining license on Bhadra 07, 2074 (August 23, 2017) under the Insurance Act 
2079.  

The registered office of the Company is located at Thapathali, Kathmandu. The Company's shares 
are listed on NEPSE as ‘CLI’. 

The principal activities of the Company are to provide various life insurance products including 
participating and non-participating products through its province offices, branches, sub-branches, 
and network of agents. 

2. Basis of Preparation: 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise 
stated.  

a. Statement of Compliance: 

The Financial Statements of the Company comprises of Statement of Financial Position, 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown as two 
separate statements, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to 
the Financial Statements which have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial 
Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and in 
compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2006, Insurance Act 2079, directives 
issued by Nepal Insurance Authority and required disclosures as per Securities Board of Nepal. 
The format used in the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements and disclosures 
made therein also complies with the specified formats prescribed in the directives of Nepal 
Insurance Authority. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS, 
includes all the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used. 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on Mangsir 
24, 2082 (December 10, 2025). 

b. Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements: 

The Company reporting period is from Shrawan 1, 2081 (July 16, 2024) to Ashad 32, 2082 (July 
16, 2025) with the corresponding previous year from Shrawan 1, 2080 (July 17, 2023) to Ashad 
31, 2081 (July 15, 2024). These financial statements have been approved by the Board of 
Directors on Mangsir 24, 2082 (December 10, 2025). 
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements  

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025) 
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stated.  
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24, 2082 (December 10, 2025). 

b. Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements: 
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c. Basis of Measurement: 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following 
Assets & Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:  

i. Investments on Equity Shares and Mutual Funds, 

ii. Defined Employee Benefits, and 

iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial 
valuation for Liability Adequacy Test (LAT). 

Historical Cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and 
services. 

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether 
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into 
Level 1, or 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are 
observable & the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurements in its entirety, which 
are described as follows: 

 Level 1 – Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or 
Liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date. 

 Level 2 – Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable 
for the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

 Level 3 – Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability. 

d. Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to 
make estimates, judgments, and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions 
affect the reported balance of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as 
at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the 
year presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the 
Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are 
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

e. Functional and Presentation Currency: 

These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company's 
functional currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest 
rupee except if indicated otherwise. 

f. Going Concern: 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have 
considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future 
projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern 
basis. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant 
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doubt upon Company's ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to 
liquidate or to cease operation of it. 

g. Change in Accounting Policies: 

Accounting Policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied 
by the Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to 
change an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or 
results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the 
effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial 
performance, or cash flow.  

h. Recent Accounting Pronouncements: 

Standards Issued and Effective: Issued June 25, 2020 and Effective from July 16, 2020. 

i. Carve-Outs: 

The Company has not applied any carve outs provided by the Accounting Standard Board (ASB). 

j. Presentation of Financial Statements: 

The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are 
grouped by nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity pattern. 
The figures of corresponding previous year have been reclassified/restated to show the 
comparative figures as per the Financial Statement Directive, 2080 issued by Nepal Insurance 
Authority. 

k. Off-Setting: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the Statement 
of Financial Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
unless required or permitted by Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued 
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard 
Interpretations Committee (SIC) and as specifically disclosed in the Significant Accounting 
Policies of the Company. 

l. Materiality and Aggregation: 

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items 
of dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial as permitted 
by the Nepal Accounting Standard-NAS 1 on 'Presentation of Financial Statements'. 

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the 
understandability and comparability of the Financial Statements of the Company. 
Understandability of the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring material 
information with immaterial information or by aggregating material items that have different 
natures or functions. 
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3. Significant Accounting Policies: 

a. Goodwill and Intangible Assets: 

i. Recognition: Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, 
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is 
reflected in Statement of profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. 

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is 
expensed as incurred. 

Goodwill on business combination is recognized on the acquisition date at the excess of (a) 
over (b) below: 

a) The aggregate of: 

i. The consideration transferred measured in accordance with the NFRS 3, which 
generally requires acquisition-date fair value. 

ii. The amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree measured in accordance 
with the NFRS 3, and 

iii. In a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the 
acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree. 

b) The net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities 
assumed. 

ii. Amortization: The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. 
An intangible asset shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an 
analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the 
asset is expected to generate net cash inflow for the entity. 

Amortization is recognized in statement of profit of loss on Straight Line Method (SLM) over 
the estimated useful life of the intangible assets/ Diminishing Balance Method (DBM), from 
the date that is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The amortization period 
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at 
least at the end of each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to 
modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in 
accounting estimates, The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorized as stated below: 

Assets Categories  Useful Life (In Years) for SLM 
Software 10 Years 
Licenses License Period 
Others (to be specified) Not Applicable 
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iii. Derecognition: An Intangible Asset is derecognized when no Future Economic Benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the 
derecognition is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

iv. Impairment of Assets: The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is 
any indication that Intangible Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An 
impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair 
value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future 
cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. 

b. Property and Equipment (P&E): 

i. Recognition: Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and 
equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation 
when, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and it can be used for more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The 
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when 
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting 
period in which they are incurred. 

ii. Revaluation: After recognition as an assets, lands and buildings whose fair value can be 
measured reliably, have been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. 
Valuations are being performed to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not 
materially differ from it ‘s carrying amount as at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and 
buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified valuers.  

An increase in the carrying amount, as a result of revaluation, is recognized in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. 
However, the increase is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 
decrease of the same asset previously recognized in profit and loss. A decrease in the 
carrying amount, as a result of revaluation, is recognized in profit or loss. However, the 
decrease is recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance 
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. 

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the 
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of 
the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is 
transferred directly to retained earnings.  

The difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and 
depreciation based on the asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings.  

iii. Depreciation: Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment other than the Freehold Land 
i.e. the Company's Freehold Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided 
on "Straight Line Method (SLM)/ Diminishing Balance Method (DBM)" based on Useful Life 
estimated by technical expert of the management. 
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The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the 
Reporting date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective 
basis. 

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorized as stated below: 

Assets Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM 
Land Not Applicable 
Buildings** Lease Term 
Leasehold Improvement 5 Years 
Furniture & Fixture 10 Years 
Computers and IT Equipment 8 Years 
Office Equipment 8 Years 
Vehicles 5 Years 
Other Assets Not Applicable 

** The amount shown in building represents Right to use assets as per NFRS 16 – Leases. 

iv. Derecognition: An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized up to disposal or 
when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

v. Impairment of Assets: Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss 
is recognized for the amount by which the Asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and 
value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 
present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed 
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. In case of such 
reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss. 

vi. Capital Work-In-Progress: These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the 
construction of buildings, major plant and machinery and system development which are to 
be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is 
available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses. 

c. Investment Properties: 

Cost Model: 

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as 
investment property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related 
transaction cost. It is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent 
expenditure is capitalized to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. 

Land is carried at historical cost; however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful 
lives as mentioned above. 
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Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the 
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is 
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment 
property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal. 

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a 
transfer from investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with 
the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use. 

OR 

Fair Value Model: 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market condition 
at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment 
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise, including 
the corresponding tax effect. 

The fair value of investment property is determined by an external, independent property valuer, 
having appropriate recognized professional qualification and recent experience in the location 
and category by property being valued.  

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the 
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is 
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment 
property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal. 

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a 
transfer from investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with 
the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.  

d. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities: 

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible Temporary difference and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary Difference. 

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all 
or part of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized. 

e. Financial Assets: 

i. Initial Recognition & Measurement: Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, 
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The 
Company determines the classification of its Financial Assets at initial recognition. 

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the 
case of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
attributable to the acquisition of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets 
carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

ii. Subsequent Measurement: 
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a. Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC): A Financial Asset is measured at amortized 
cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved is to hold the asset in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding, Interest income in these financial assets is measured using 
effective interest rate method.   

b. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI): A Financial 
Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual 
terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are 
measured at fair value and changes are taken to the statement of other comprehensive 
income. 

c. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): A Financial Asset which is not 
classified in any of the above categories is measured at FVTPL. 

iii. De-Recognition: A Financial Assets is derecognized only when the Company has transferred 
the rights to receive cash flows from Financial Assets. Where the Company has transferred 
an Asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards 
of ownership of the Financial Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. 
Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of 
the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized. Where the Company retains 
control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of 
continuing involvement in the Financial Asset. 

iv. Impairment of Financial Assets: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial 
asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of 
the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. 
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or 
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the 
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate 
with defaults. 

f. Reinsurance Assets: 

Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the 
amount which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the reinsurer's 
share of insurance contract liabilities. 

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred 
after the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all 
amounts due to it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact 
on the amount that the company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is 
impaired, the company reduces the carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement 
of profit or loss.  

g. Current Tax Assets: 

Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses 
relate. Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income 
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after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the 
applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws. 

h. Cash & Cash Equivalent: 

Cash & Cash Equivalents include Cash in Hand, Cheque in Hand, Bank Balances, and Short-
Term Deposits with an initial maturity of three months or less. 

i. Financial Liabilities: 

i. Initial Recognition & Measurement: Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, 
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The 
Company determines the classification of its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition. 

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial 
Liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the 
issue of the Financial Liability. 

ii. Subsequent Measurement: After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Method. 

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial 
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair Value due to short maturity of these 
instruments. 

iii. De-Recognition: A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability 
is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by 
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in 
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

j. Off-Setting Financial Instruments: 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Statement of 
Financial Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must 
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or 
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 

k. Equity: 

Financial Instruments issued by the company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they 
do not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset. 

l. Reserves and Funds: 

i. Share Application Money Pending Allotment: If the company has issued share and part of 
such shares are not fully paid up then such pending amount are called share application 
money pending allotment. 

ii. Share Premium: The face value of the shares of the company is NPR 100 per share. The 
company has issued 1,12,50,000 unit shares through Initial Public Offering (IPO) at NPR 244 
per share. The amount balance in share premium account is the remaining balance after 
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distribution of bonus shares to meet the regulatory capital requirement of 5 billion by life 
insurance companies.  

iii. Catastrophe Reserve: The company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which 
is 10% of the profit before tax for the year as per Regulator's Directive. 

iv. Fair Value Reserve: The company has a policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the 
amount of Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per 
regulator’s directive. 

v. Actuarial Reserves: Reserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit 
obligation resulting from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the 
previous actuarial assumptions and what has occurred); and the effects of changes in 
actuarial assumptions. 

vi. Corporate Social Responsibility Reserves: The company has allocated a corporate social 
responsibility reserve for the amount which is 1% of the profit for the year as per Regulator's 
Directive. 

vii. Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & 
equipment & intangible assets, other than the reversal or earlier revaluation losses charged 
to profit or loss. 

viii. Other Reserve: Reserves other than the above reserves.  

m. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities: 

Liability adequacy 

At each reporting date, the company reviews its unexpired risk, and a liability adequacy test is 
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred 
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future 
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets 
relating to the relevant life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the 
carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability. In addition, the company has 
appointed a professional actuary to assess the sufficiency of its liabilities in accordance with the 
Nepal Insurance Authority's Actuarial Valuation Directives for Life Insurances. 

Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR: 

At each reporting date, the company assesses its outstanding claim liabilities which the company 
is eligible to pay but have not been paid at the end of the reporting period. These claims only 
include claims that have been eligible for payment after all the due processes have been carried 
out and only payment is outstanding. The outstanding claim for partial maturity claim are those 
claims which are related to policies that are in-force during the reporting date as the nature of 
these claims are such that they are deducted from the next due premium first and only the 
remaining balance, if any, is paid back to the policy holder.  

n. Employee Benefits: 

i. Short Term Obligations: Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits 
that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which 
the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees' services 
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit 
obligation in the Statement of Financial Position. 
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ii. Post-Employment Benefits: 

Defined Contribution Plan: The company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly 
administered Provident Funds as per local regulations. The company has no further payment 
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as 
defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as Employee Benefit 
Expenses when they are due. 

Defined Benefit Plan: For the Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined 
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each 
Statement of Financial Position. Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other 
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognized 
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized on 
a Straight-Line Basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement 
benefit obligation recognized in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as 
reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this calculation is 
limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future 
contributions to the plan.  

iii. Long Term Employee Benefits: The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected 
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render 
the related service. Leave Encashment has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and 
these are measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect 
of services provided by employees up to the end of the year using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the year that have 
terms approximating to the terms of assumptions. 

iv. Termination: Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the 
Company before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary 
retirement in exchange of these benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefits at 
the earlier of the following dates: 

a. When the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and  

b. When the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and 
involves the payment of termination benefits. The termination benefits are measured based 
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer in the case of voluntary retirement 
scheme. 

o. Revenue Recognition: 

i. Gross Premium: Gross Premiums are recognized as soon as the amount of the premiums 
can be reliably measured. Such premiums are recognized on cash basis. 

ii. Unearned Premium Reserves: Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written 
in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are 
calculated on a pro rate basis. The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred 
as a provision for unearned premiums. 

iii. Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted: Premiums on reinsurance accepted comprise the total 
premiums payable for the whole cover provided by contracts entered into the period and are 
recognized on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising 
in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting 
periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year 
that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.  
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Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been 
presented as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, 
because this is consistent with how the business is managed.  

iv. Commission Income: Commission Income is recognized on an accrual basis. If the income is 
for future periods, then they are deferred and recognized over those future periods. 

v. Interest on employee loan: Interest on employee loan has been recognized in accrual basis. 
The company has not recognized differential revenue from providing loan to employees as 
the interest rate on such loans are similar to those prevailing in the market. 

vi. Investment Income: Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it 
accrues. Fees and commission are recognized when the company has received the right to 
receive such fees and commission. Interest on policy loans is recognized on accrual basis 
whereas fine and late income are only recognized on cash basis.  

vii. Net realized gains and losses: Net realized gains and losses recorded in the statement or 
profit or loss include gains and losses on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses 
on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and 
the original or amortized cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.  

p. Benefit, Claims and Expenses: 

i. Gross Benefits and Claims: Benefits and claims include the cost of all claims arising during 
the year, including external claims handling costs that are directly related to processing and 
settlement of claims. Benefits and claims that are incurred during the financial year are 
recognized when a claimable event occurs and/or the insurer is notified. Death, surrender and 
other benefits without due dates are treated as claims payable, after all the due process 
regarding claim settlement is completed and the company determines the claim is eligible for 
payment as per prevailing laws and policy of the company. 

ii. Reinsurance Claims: Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance 
claim is recognized according to the term of the relevant contracts. 

iii. Commission Expenses: Commission expenses are recognized on accrual basis. If the 
expense is for future periods, then they are deferred and recognized over those future periods. 

iv. Service Fees: Service fees are recognized on accrual basis as per the rates mentioned in 
Insurance act, 2079. 

v. Finance Cost: Finance costs are recognized for the period relating to unwinding of discount 
and interest expenses due to re-measurement of liabilities. 

q. Product Classification: 

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant 
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the 
policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the 
policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant 
insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. 
Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk. 

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business: 

i. Endowment: This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured 
in event of his early death and also assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs 
moderate premiums, has high liquidity and in savings oriented. This plan is opted for people 
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of all ages and social groups who wish to protect their families from a financial setback that 
may occur owing to their demise.  

ii. Anticipated Endowment: This scheme provides for specific periodic payments or partial 
survival benefits during the term of the policy itself so long as the policy holder is alive. It is 
therefore suitable to meet specified financial requirements needed for occasions like Brata 
Bandha, Academic Graduations etc. An important feature of plan is that in the event of death 
at any time within the policy term, the death claim comprises full sum assured without 
deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which have already been paid. It is also with 
profit plan.  

iii. Endowment Cum Whole Life: This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole 
Life with profit plan. It provided financial protection against death throughout the lifetime of the 
life assured with the provision of payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy to the 
assured in case of his survival. 

iv. Whole Life: Whole life is a type of life insurance contract that provides insurance coverage of 
the contract holder for his or her entire life. Upon the inevitable death of the contract holder, 
the insurance payout is made to the contract's beneficiaries. These policies also include a 
savings component, which accumulates cash value. This cash value is one of the key 
elements of whole life insurance.  

v. Foreign Employment Term: The main objective of foreign employment term is providing 
insurance for financial assistance if there is death or elimination of any insured due to work or 
staying abroad. 

vi. Other Term: Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that 
guarantees payment of a stated death benefit during a specified term. Once the term expires, 
the policyholder can renew it for another term, convert the policy to permanent coverage, or 
allow the policy to terminate.  

vii. Special Term: Special Term insurance is a modified version of term insurance with added 
benefits. 

viii. Others to be Specified – (Citizen Saving Growth Plan): This Citizen Saving Growth Plan is a 
Universal Life Insurance Plan that provides an opportunity of saving and accumulating funds 
for the future. It is a type of permanent life insurance that has an account value element and 
offers lifetime coverage as long as the premiums are paid. 

r. Borrowing Costs: 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. 

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which 
they are incurred. 

s. Cash Flow Statement: 

Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and 
cash payments are disclosed as cash flows. 
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t. Leases: 

The lease liability has been accounted for under NFRS 16 “Leases”. The Company has various 
operating leases ranging from 1 year to 9 years. These lease contracts do not contain non-
cancellable periods. The leases are renewable by mutual consent and contain an escalation 
clause. 

u. Income Taxes: 

Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax. 

i. Current Tax: Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue 
and expenses relate. Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable 
on Taxable Income after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined 
in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws. 

ii. Deferred Tax: Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary difference between the carrying 
amounts of Assets and Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. 
Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary 
differences arising between the tax base of Assets & Liability in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profit nor Loss at the time of 
the transaction.  

The company declared a 26.98512698% bonus share for FY 2080/81 and subsequently 
distributed bonus shares amounting to NPR 1,062,500,000 during FY 2081/82 out of the 
Share Premium account. This distribution has been recognized in the computation of taxable 
income for FY 2081/82. Consequently, the carryforward of unused tax loss was reduced and 
the inclusion of the distributed bonus share as income impacted the deferred tax assets, which 
has resulted in a tax expense of NPR 265,625,000 due to decrease in deferred tax assets. 

v. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets: 

i. Provisions: Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management’s best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The 
discount rate to determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in 
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expenses. 

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant 
precaution and conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, 
Management believes that the chances of these matters going against the company are 
remote and there will not be any probable cash outflow. 

ii. Contingent Liabilities: Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible 
obligation arising from past events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present 
obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable 
estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and 
only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for. 

iii. Contingent Assets: Contingent Assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will 
flow to the Company are not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements. 
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w. Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions: 

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which in the 
Company's Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, 
transactions in currencies other than the Company's Functional Currency i.e., Foreign Currencies 
are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 

x. Earnings Per Share: 

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company 
by the Weighted Average Number of equities shares outstanding during the Financial Year. 

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is 
adjusted to assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

y. Operating Segment: 

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 
the chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8,"Operating Segment". 

The company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable 
Income & Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company's Asset & 
Liabilities are considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to 
any business.  

z. Leased Assets: 

The Company has made use of leasing arrangements principally for the provision of the office 
spaces. The rental contracts for the offices are typically negotiated for terms of between 1 and 9 
years and some of these have extension terms. The Company has not entered into any sale and 
leaseback arrangements. All the leases are negotiated on an individual basis. The Company has 
assessed whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the company. The lease 
conveys the right to direct the use and obtain substantially all of the economic benefits of an 
identified assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration.  

At lease commencement date, the company has recognized a right-of-use lease asset and a 
lease liability in its Statement of Financial Position. The right of use assets is measured at cost. 
Which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred 
by the company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the 
lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date. 

The Company has depreciated the right of use asset on a straight-line basis from the lease 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end 
of the lease term. The company has also assessed the right of use asset for impairment when 
such indicator exists.  

At the commencement date, the company has measured the lease liability at the present value 
of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the company's incremental borrowing 
rate because as the lease contracts are negotiated with third parties it is not possible to determine 
the interest rate that is implicit in the lease. The incremental borrowing rate is the estimated rate 
that the company would have to pay to borrow the same amount over a similar term, and with 
similar security to obtain an asset of equivalent value.  
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4 Goodwill & Intangible Assets Fig. in NPR

Particulars Softwares  Goodwill  Others 
(to be specified)  Total 

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2080 5,288,250                -                           -                           5,288,250                

Additions during the year

     Acquisition 888,609                   -                           -                           888,609                   

     Internal Development -                           -                           -                           -                           

     Business Combination( to be Specified) -                           -                           -                           -                           

Disposals during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Revaluation/Adjustment -                           -                           -                           -                           

Balance as at Ashadh End, 2081 6,176,859                -                           -                           6,176,859                

Additions during the year

     Acquisition 1,617,860                -                           -                           1,617,860                

     Internal Development -                           -                           -                           -                           

     Business Combination( to be Specified) -                           -                           -                           -                           

Disposals during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Revaluation/Adjustment -                           -                           -                           -                           

Balance as at Ashadh End, 2082 7,794,719                -                           -                           7,794,719                

Accumulated amortization and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2080 2,783,165                -                           -                           2,783,165                

Additions during the year 570,885                   -                           -                           570,885                   

Disposals during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Impairment during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Balance as at Ashadh End, 2081 3,354,050                -                           -                           3,354,050                

Additions during the year 673,891                   -                           -                           673,891                   

Disposals during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Impairment during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Balance as at Ashadh End, 2082 4,027,941                -                           -                           4,027,941                

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2080

Additions during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Capitalisation during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Disposals during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Impairment during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Balance as on Ashadh End, 2081 -                           -                           -                           -                           

Additions during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Capitalisation during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Disposals during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Impairment during the year -                           -                           -                           -                           

Balance as on Ashadh End, 2082 -                           -                           -                           -                           

Net Carrying Amount

As on Ashadh End, 2081 2,822,809                -                           -                           2,822,809                

As on Ashadh End, 2082 3,766,778                -                           -                           3,766,778                

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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5 Property and Equipment Fig. in NPR

Particulars Land Buildings  Leasehold 
Improvement 

 Furniture & 
Fixtures 

 Computers 
and IT 

Equipments 

 Office 
Equipment  Vehicles  Other 

Assets  Total 

Gross carrying amount

As on Shrawan 1, 2080 -    147,939,272                       67,335,173    35,281,266       27,758,365     26,354,575    47,018,800    -             351,687,451  

Additions during the year

     Acquisition 6,659,686                           3,438,244      2,103,284         801,850          2,443,725      36,215,200    -             51,661,989    

     Capitalization -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Disposals during the year -    -                                      (113,000)        -                    -                  -                 -                 -             (113,000)        

Write-offs during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Revaluation during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Transfer/adjustments -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Balance as on Ashadh End, 2081 -    154,598,958                       70,660,417    37,384,549       28,560,215     28,798,300    83,234,000    -             403,236,440  

Additions during the year

     Acquisition 19,812,771                         5,009,912      3,406,815         1,205,275       2,107,814      14,554,150    -             46,096,738    

     Capitalization -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Disposals during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 (1,226,500)     -             (1,226,500)     

Write-offs during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Revaluation during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Transfer/ adjustments -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Balance as on Ashadh End, 2082 -    174,411,729                       75,670,330    40,791,364       29,765,490     30,906,114    96,561,650    -             448,106,677  

Accumulated Depreciation and 
impairment

As on Shrawan 1, 2080 -    25,436,035                         34,090,408    13,137,358       13,777,160     10,388,049    19,117,875    -             115,946,885  

Addition during the year -    24,781,226                         10,415,136    3,642,366         3,261,708       3,325,515      10,583,955    -             56,009,907    

Disposals during the year -    -                                      (94,166)          -                    -                  -                 -                 -             (94,166)          

Write-offs during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Impairment during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Transfer/ adjustments -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Balance as on Ashadh End, 2081 -    50,217,262                         44,411,378    16,779,724       17,038,868     13,713,564    29,701,830    -             171,862,626  

Addition during the year -    26,785,256                         8,812,871      3,909,887         2,860,495       3,181,981      16,323,753    -             61,874,243    

Disposals during the year -    0                                         -                 -                    -                  -                 (156,383)        -             (156,383)        

Write-offs during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Impairment during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Transfer/ adjustments -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Balance as on Ashadh End, 2082 -    77,002,518                         53,224,250    20,689,611       19,899,363     16,895,545    45,869,199    -             233,580,485  

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2080 -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Additions during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Capitalisation during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Disposals during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             

Impairment during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Balance as on Ashadh End, 2081 -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Additions during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Capitalisation during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Disposals during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Impairment during the year -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Balance as on Ashadh End, 2082 -    -                                      -                 -                    -                  -                 -                 -             -                 

Net Carrying Amount

As on Ashadh End, 2081 -    104,381,696                       26,249,039    20,604,825       11,521,347     15,084,736    53,532,170    -             231,373,813  
As on Ashadh End, 2082 -    97,409,211                         22,446,080    20,101,753       9,866,127       14,010,569    50,692,451    -             214,526,191  

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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6 Investment Properties Fig. in NPR

Investment Properties at Cost:

Particulars Land Building  Total 

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2080 -                         -                         -                         

Additions during the year -                         -                         -                         

Acquisition -                         -                         -                         

Subsequent Expenditure -                         -                         -                         

Assets classified as held for sales -                         -                         -                         

Disposals during the year -                         -                         -                         

Transfer/Adjustments -                         -                         -                         

Balance as at Ashadh End, 2081 -                         -                         -                         

Additions during the year -                         -                         -                         

Acquisition -                         -                         -                         

Subsequent Expenditure -                         -                         -                         

Assets classified as held for sales -                         -                         -                         

Disposals during the year -                         -                         -                         

Transfer/Adjustments -                         -                         -                         

Balance as at Ashadh End, 2082 -                         -                         -                         

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2080 -                         -                         -                         

Addition during the year -                         -                         -                         

Disposals during the year -                         -                         -                         

Impairment during the year -                         -                         -                         

Transfer/Adjustments -                         -                         -                         

Balance as at Ashadh End, 2081 -                         -                         -                         

Addition during the year -                         -                         -                         

Disposals during the year -                         -                         -                         

Impairment during the year -                         -                         -                         

Transfer/Adjustments -                         -                         -                         

Balance as at Ashadh End, 2082 -                         -                         -                         

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2080 -                         -                         -                         

Additions during the year -                         -                         -                         

Capitalisation during the year -                         -                         -                         

Disposals during the year -                         -                         -                         

Impairment during the year -                         -                         -                         

Balance as on Ashadh End, 2081 -                         -                         -                         

Additions during the year -                         -                         -                         

Capitalisation during the year -                         -                         -                         

Disposals during the year -                         -                         -                         

Impairment during the year -                         -                         -                         

Balance as on Ashadh End, 2082 -                         -                         -                         

Net Carrying Amount

Net Balance As At Ashad End, 2081 -                         -                         -                         

Net Balance As At Ashad End, 2082 -                         -                         -                         

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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7 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) Fig. in NPR

Through SOPL Through SOCI Total Through SOPL Through SOCI Total

Deferred Tax on Temporary Difference 

Goodwill & Intangible Assets (23,084)             -                    (23,084)             (447,869)           -                    (447,869)           

Property and Equipment 906,462            -                    906,462            (3,938,383)        -                    (3,938,383)        

Financial Assets at FVPTL -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Financial Assets at FVTOCI -                    (26,442,415)      (26,442,415)      -                    (3,600,368)        (3,600,368)        

Provision for Leave 8,941,490         -                    8,941,490         7,126,520         -                    7,126,520         

Provision for Gratuity -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Impairment Loss on Financial Assets 1,173,821         1,173,821         961,518            961,518            

Impairment Loss on Other Assets -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Carry forward of unused tax losses 286,094,432     -                    286,094,432     651,763,592     -                    651,763,592     

Changes in tax rate -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Rent Equilization 24,352,304       -                    24,352,304       26,095,424       -                    26,095,424       

Total 321,445,426     (26,442,415)      295,003,011     681,560,802     (3,600,368)        677,960,434     

Deferred Tax Asstes 321,445,426     (26,442,415)      295,003,011     681,560,802     (3,600,368)        677,960,434     

Deferred Tax Liabilities -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Movements in Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities):

SOPL SOCI Total SOPL SOCI Total

As at Shrawan 1, 2081 671,598,509     (3,600,368)        667,998,142     633,516,286     2,134,257         635,650,542     

Charged/(Credited) to Statement of Profit or Loss (360,115,376)    -                    (360,115,376)    38,082,223       -                    38,082,223       

Charged/(Credited) to Other Comprehensive Income -                    (22,842,047)      (22,842,047)      -                    (5,734,624)        (5,734,624)        

As at Ashadh End, 2082 311,483,133     (26,442,414)      285,040,719     671,598,509     (3,600,368)        667,998,142     

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
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8 Investment in Subsidiaries Fig. in NPR

Current Year Previous Year

-                      -                      

-                      -                      

-                      -                      

-                      -                      

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries:

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. -                      -                      -                      -                      

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. -                      -                      -                      -                      

Total -                      -                      -                      -                      

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries:

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. -                      -                      -                      -                      

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. -                      -                      -                      -                      

Total -                      -                      -                      -                      

Information Relating to Subsidiaries:

Current Year Previous Year

-                      -                      

-                      -                      

-                      -                      

-                      -                      

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Particulars

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries

Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd.

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd.

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd.

Particulars
Percentage of Ownership

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd.
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9 Investment in Associates Fig. in NPR

Current Year Previous Year

-                -                         

-                -                         

-                -                         

-                -                         

Investment in Quoted Associates

Cost Fair Value (or) Equit Method Cost Fair Value (or) Equit Method

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. -                -                -                         -                -                -                         

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. -                -                -                         -                -                -                         

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years -                -                -                         -                -                -                         

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year -                -                -                         -                -                -                         

Total -                -                -                         -                -                -                         

Investment in Unquoted Associates

Cost Fair Value (or) Equit Method Cost Fair Value (or) Equit Method

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. -                -                -                         -                -                -                         

........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd. -                -                -                         -                -                -                         

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years -                -                -                         -                -                -                         

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year -                -                -                         -                -                -                         

Total -                -                -                         -                -                -                         

Particulars

Investment in Quoted Associates

Investment in Unquoted Associates

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

Particulars

Particulars
Current Year Previous Year

Current Year Previous Year

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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10 Investments Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Investments measured at Amortised Cost 21,933,360,073       18,484,939,474     

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions -                          -                         
ii) Investment in Debentures 5,275,360,073         4,766,939,474       
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) -                          -                         
iv) Fixed Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions 14,220,000,000       12,095,000,000     
v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks 100,000,000            100,000,000          
vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions 2,143,000,000         1,373,000,000       
vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions -                          -                         
viii) Investment in Venture Fund 195,000,000            150,000,000          

Less: Impairment Losses -                          -                         

Investments at FVTOCI 2,110,828,984         594,861,634          
i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 1,373,580,509         306,603,684          
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 212,530,000            92,530,000            
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds 524,718,474            201,477,950          
iv) Investment in Debentures -                          -                         
v) Others - Impairment Losses -                          (5,750,000)             

Investments at FVTPL -                          -                         
i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) -                          -                         
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) -                          -                         
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds -                          -                         
iv) Investment in Debentures -                          -                         
v) Others ( to be Specified) -                          -                         

Total 24,044,189,056       19,079,801,107     

(a) Details of Impairment Losses:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions -                          -                         
Investment in Debentures -                          -                         
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government) -                          -                         
Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions -                          -                         
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks -                          -                         
Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions -                          -                         
Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions -                          -                         
Others (to be Specified) -                          -                         

Total -                          -                         

(b) Investments having expected maturies less than 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) -                          -                         
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) -                          -                         
Investment in Mutual Funds -                          -                         
Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions -                          -                         
Investment in Debentures 215,917,131            10,501,975            
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government) -                          -                         
Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions 4,510,000,000         1,885,000,000       
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks -                          -                         
Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions 1,230,000,000         410,000,000          
Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions -                          -                         
Others (to be Specified) -                          -                         

Total 5,955,917,131         2,305,501,975       

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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10 Investments Fig. in NPR
(c ) Information relating to investment in equity instruments:

Units Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) (Face Value of Rs. 100 Each) 1,283,778,683       1,373,580,509       284,022,663       306,603,684       

Kumari Bank Limited Promoter Share 575,018            54,684,857            63,826,998            54,684,857         59,801,872         

Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited Promoter Share 50,615              19,158,443            39,580,930            19,158,443         34,644,164         

Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited Promoter Share 4,910                665,228                 824,880                 665,228              681,999              

Prime Commercial Bank Limited Promoter Share 485,240            48,681,325            49,979,720            33,633,487         41,905,000         

Prabhu Bank Limited Promoter Share 111,382            11,226,502            12,252,020            11,226,502         11,138,200         

Laxmi Sunrise Bank Limited Promoter Share 81,258              7,760,981              8,125,800              -                      -                      

Global IME Bank Limited Promoter Share 105,539            10,580,837            12,031,446            10,580,837         10,553,900         

NMB Bank Limited Promoter Share 30,288              3,344,846              3,725,424              -                      -                      

Machhapuchhre Bank Limited Promotor Shares 357,175            35,810,337            35,717,500            -                      -                      

Everest Bank Limited 43,884              24,571,968            30,787,259            24,571,968         22,341,200         

Himalayan Bank Limited 109,699            21,645,452            26,031,572            19,765,178         20,915,185         

Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited 299,570            66,822,860            69,206,661            10,849,358         11,051,437         

Nepal SBI Bank Limited 86,019              38,931,656            37,846,640            121,057              101,680              

NMB Bank Limited 254,213            68,323,198            68,566,331            28,469,988         22,018,000         

Prime Commercial Bank Limited 111,712            29,185,079            30,867,143            4,055,639           4,436,000           

Nabil Bank Limited 23,000              10,249,779            12,451,510            9,979,748           12,052,000         

Citizen Bank International Limited 46,955              11,080,985            10,718,887            529,226              625,779              

Global IME Bank Limited 482,460            111,430,508          125,232,142          30,295,911         32,072,907         

GreenLife Hydropower Limited 7                       2,136                     1,908                     -                      -                      

Kumari Bank Limited 113,032            24,863,784            24,841,043            108,630              63,478                

Prabhu Bank Limited 39,993              9,289,631              8,874,047              -                      -                      

Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Limited 4,092                2,251,961              2,117,733              -                      -                      

Mahalaxmi Bikas Bank Limited 2,183                851,112                 898,676                 -                      -                      

Ngadi Group Power Limited 5,486                1,585,289              2,187,104              -                      -                      

Laxmi Sunrise Bank Limited 315,332            74,073,507            75,282,362            5,535,518           6,109,075           

Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 14,686              14,511,998            12,883,587            -                      -                      

Rasuwagadhi Hydropower Company Limited 29,969              13,711,160            10,080,073            -                      -                      

Madhya Bhotekoshi Jalavidyut Company Limited 30                     11,498                   9,482                     -                      -                      

Citizen Investment Trust 790                   1,574,523              1,560,819              -                      -                      

Sanima Bank Limited 163,181            57,291,099            61,155,343            -                      -                      

Siddhartha Bank Limited 137,854            46,018,979            52,904,230            -                      -                      

Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited 1,648                743,707                 711,887                 -                      -                      

Machhapuchhre Bank Limited 155,521            35,866,014            40,343,703            375,591              226,000              

Agriculture Development Bank Limited 74,362              26,462,785            24,326,041            -                      -                      

Arun Valley Hydro Development Company 20,000              6,151,647              5,833,800              -                      -                      

Jeevan Bikas Laghu Bitta Sanstha Limited 21,709              28,209,181            32,504,234            -                      -                      

Swarojgar Laghu Bitta Bikas Bank Limited 4,300                3,834,064              4,390,429              -                      -                      

NRN Infrastructure and Development Limited 15,000              31,974,332            34,187,850            -                      -                      

Arun Kabeli Power Limited 52,061              13,492,271            13,690,481            4,986,338           2,913,750           

NIC Asia Bank Limited 98,501              50,213,764            41,375,345            7,431,060           4,287,960           

Garima Bikas Bank Limited 55,398              25,148,934            23,730,287            -                      -                      

Api Power Company Limited 80,849              23,642,647            23,924,836            -                      -                      

Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited 12,190              5,946,718              7,642,033              -                      -                      

Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 39,787              21,384,100            21,224,375            -                      -                      

Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 4,670                4,246,793              4,120,108              913,042              610,566              

Jyoti Bikas Bank Limited 9,608                3,720,514              3,377,596              1,465                  2,512                  

Nerude Mirmire Microfinance Development Bank Limited 1                       981                        700                        11,774                8,642                  

NMB Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 5                       6,231                     3,726                     6,231                  3,800                  

Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Limited 38,312              32,036,859            33,883,516            176,683              152,812              

Shivam Cements Limited 7,759                5,978,379              4,151,375              2,657,405           860,440              

Soaltee Hotel Limited 14,227              6,437,391              8,217,231              38,667                85,306                

Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 16,931              12,979,572            14,923,661            3,192,831           6,940,020           

Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 12,154              10,415,692            12,591,301            -                      -                      

Nepal Bank Limited 12,127              3,349,078              3,534,293              -                      -                      

Eastern Hydropower Limited 2,582                1,390,912              1,488,807              -                      -                      

Himalayan Reinsurance Limited 12,818              10,771,339            11,828,194            -                      -                      

Standard Chartered Bank Limited 5,000                3,165,099              3,280,500              -                      -                      

Sahas Urja Limited 96,349              49,287,991            61,667,214            -                      -                      

CEDB Holdings Limited 1,591                4,075,205              4,203,406              -                      -                      

Dordi Khola Hydropower Company Limited 2,000                646,347                 674,300                 -                      -                      

Nepal Republic Media Limited 1,000                471,223                 454,490                 -                      -                      

Balephi Hydropower Limited 5,000                1,155,250              1,053,700              -                      -                      

Chandragiri Hills Limited 4,075                3,659,321              3,895,782              -                      -                      

City Hotel Limited 2,400                2,151,805              2,096,760              -                      -                      

Global IME Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 3,900                5,303,818              5,150,886              -                      -                      

Himalayan Distillery Limited 200                   236,622                 247,308                 -                      -                      

Hydroelectricity Investment and Development Company Limited Promoter Share 1,000                206,067                 210,560                 -                      -                      

Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Limited 4,381                2,026,643              2,193,523              -                      -                      

Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited 5,100                2,062,730              2,070,192              -                      -                      

Particulars
Previous YearCurrent Year

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

— 106 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



NIC Asia Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 5,157                3,919,167              3,528,419              -                      -                      

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 5,400                4,376,783              4,151,034              -                      -                      

RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 3,251                2,187,593              2,279,569              -                      -                      

Sarbottam Cement Limited 3,100                2,534,864              2,684,011              -                      -                      

Sonapur Minerals and Oil Limited 11,408              5,900,306              5,294,567              -                      -                      

Samling Power Company Limited 200                   108,094                 107,634                 -                      -                      

Mero Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited 4,699                3,607,277              3,977,844              -                      -                      

NESDO Sambridha Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1,039                2,101,055              1,783,734              -                      -                      

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 212,530,000          212,530,000          92,530,000         92,530,000         

Insurance Institute of Nepal Limited 47,800              4,780,000              4,780,000              4,780,000           4,780,000           

Macchapuchre Capital Limited 55,566              5,750,000              5,750,000              5,750,000           5,750,000           

White Lotus Power Limited 420,000            42,000,000            42,000,000            22,000,000         22,000,000         

Vision Lumbini Urja Company Limited 100,000            10,000,000            10,000,000            10,000,000         10,000,000         

Shreenagar Agritech Industries Limited 500,000            50,000,000            50,000,000            50,000,000         50,000,000         

Gorakshya Hydropower Limited 1,000,000         100,000,000          100,000,000          -                      -                      

Investment in Mutual Funds (Face Value Rs. 10 Each) 508,750,643          524,718,474          209,657,497       201,477,950       

Sanima Equity Fund -                    -                         -                         1,376,756           1,091,000           

Laxmi Equity Fund -                    -                         -                         169,536              142,050              

Global IME Balance Fund -1 1,728,450         17,424,132            18,857,390            5,000,000           4,550,000           

Kumari Dhanabriddhi Yojana 500,000            5,000,000              5,025,000              5,000,000           4,835,000           

Nabil Balanced Fund-2 50,700              563,542                 512,577                 563,542              456,300              

NIBL Samriddhi Fund -2 870,261            8,270,952              7,684,405              5,000,000           4,125,000           

NIC Asia Flexi Cap Fund 501,100            5,010,236              5,086,165              5,000,000           4,625,000           

NMB 50 453,083            5,572,985              4,843,457              5,047,663           4,041,100           

NMB Sulav Investment Fund-2 2,297,180         23,216,712            25,935,162            5,000,000           5,030,000           

Prabhu Select Fund 563,527            5,649,228              6,362,220              2,500,000           2,447,500           

Nabil Flexi Cap Fund 500,000            5,000,000              5,000,000              5,000,000           5,000,000           

NIBL Growth Fund 500,000            5,000,000              4,930,000              5,000,000           5,320,000           

Sunrise Focused Equity Fund 698,900            7,007,740              7,016,956              5,000,000           4,120,000           

Prabhu Smart Fund 6,381,532         64,162,645            73,196,172            50,000,000         48,050,000         

Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme 3 500,000            5,000,000              5,220,000              5,000,000           4,725,000           

Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund 1,000,000         10,000,000            10,080,000            10,000,000         10,000,000         

RBB Mutual Fund 2 958,050            9,255,376              9,657,144              5,000,000           4,750,000           

Himalayan 80-20 3,341,770         33,444,965            38,764,532            30,000,000         29,970,000         

NIC Asia Growth Fund - 2 1,900,000         17,614,932            18,088,000            10,000,000         8,200,000           

NIBL Stable Fund 4,000,000         40,000,000            39,560,000            40,000,000         40,000,000         

Kumari Sabal Yojana 1,000,000         10,000,000            10,000,000            10,000,000         10,000,000         

Muktinath Mutual Fund - 1 3,103,686         31,036,860            30,726,491            -                      -                      

Garima Samriddhi Yojana 3,152,390         31,523,900            31,366,281            -                      -                      

NMB Hybrid Fund L-II 3,000,000         30,000,000            27,180,000            -                      -                      

Sanima Flexi Fund 1,500,000         15,000,000            15,000,000            -                      -                      

MBL Equity Fund 2,000,000         20,000,000            19,860,000            -                      -                      

Reliable Samriddhi Yojana 5,000,000         50,000,000            49,650,000            -                      -                      

Sunrise Bluechip Fund 2,081,200         21,035,716            20,812,000            -                      -                      

Prabhu Samriddhi Yojana 1,000,000         10,000,000            10,000,000            -                      -                      

Citizens Mutual Fund 2 300                   2,908                     3,204                     -                      -                      

RBB Mutual Fund 1 85,510              821,491                 851,680                 -                      -                      

Siddhartha Equity Fund 72,160              703,150                 742,526                 -                      -                      

Laxmi Unnati Kosh 2,003,800         19,663,091            20,819,482            -                      -                      

Mega Mutual Fund -1 58,450              508,437                 559,951                 -                      -                      

Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme - 2 125,000            1,246,478              1,312,500              -                      -                      

Laxmi Value Fund-II 1,500                15,167                   15,180                   -                      -                      

(d) The company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR 18,733,000,000 to Nepal Insurance Authority.
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11 Loans Fig. in NPR

Current Year Previous Year

34,599,605         42,245,419      
9,793,769           17,125,767      

1,009,288,444    754,993,247    
-                     -                   

(4,695,285)         (3,846,071)       

1,048,986,533    810,518,362    

(a) Loans to Policyholders:

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
530,196,697       321,993,697    53,750,834         34,691,339      
72,914,747         73,689,541      9,754,888           9,808,609        

406,177,000       359,310,009    47,589,581         41,498,796      
-                      -                   -                     -                   
-                      -                   -                     -                   
-                      -                   -                     -                   
-                      -                   -                     -                   
-                      -                   -                     -                   
-                      -                   -                     -                   

1,009,288,444    754,993,247    111,095,303       85,998,744      

(b) Expected repayment of loan within 12 months:
Current Year Previous Year

1,949,889           6,336,813        
4,728,102           2,568,865        

-                     -                   
-                     -                   

6,677,991           8,905,678        

12 Reinsurance Assets

 Current year  Previous Year  Current year  Previous 
Year  Current year  Previous Year  Current year  Previous Year 

Endowment -                      -                     208,000         2,090,000     -                      -                   208,000              2,090,000        
Anticipated Endowment -                      -                     -                 510,000        -                      -                   -                     510,000           
Endowment cum Whole Life -                      -                     -                 30,000          -                      -                   -                     30,000             
Whole Life -                      -                     -                 -               -                      -                   -                     -                   
Foreign Employment Term -                      -                     224,000         -               -                      -                   224,000              -                   
Micro Term -                      -                     -                 -               -                      -                   -                     -                   
Special Term -                      -                     -                 -               -                      -                   -                     -                   
Others ( to be Specified) -                      -                     -                 -               -                      -                   -                     -                   
- Citizen Savings Growth Plan -                      -                     -                 -               -                      -                   -                     -                   

Total -                      -                     432,000         2,630,000     -                      -                   432,000              2,630,000        

13 Insurance Receivables
Current Year Previous Year

26,389,242         21,246,678      
9,383,881           11,491,137      

-                     -                   
-                     -                   

35,773,123         32,737,814      

(a) Expected receivable within 12 months:
Current Year Previous Year

26,389,242         21,246,678      
9,383,881           11,491,137      

-                     -                   

35,773,123         32,737,814      Total

Receivable from Reinsurer
Receivable from other Insurance Companies
Others( to be Specified)
Less: Impairment Losses

Receivable from Reinsurer
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies
Others( to be Specified)

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Loan to Employees

Loan to Employees

Special Term
Others ( to be Specified)

Whole Life
Foreign Employment Term

Loan amount

Loan to Agents
Loan to Policyholders
Others (to be Specified)
Less: Impairment Losses

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Description

 Technical Provisions Excluding 
Claim Payment Reserve 

 Claim Payment Reserve 
including IBNR and IBNER 

Interest Income

 Impairment Losses 

Total

 Net Reinsurance Assets 

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Loans measured at Amortised Cost

Micro Term

Loan to Agents
Loan to Policyholders
Others ( to be Specified)

Endowment 
Anticipated Endowment
Endowment cum Whole Life

- Citizen Savings Growth Plan
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Fig. in NPR
14 Other Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

 Capital Advances -                           -                           

 Prepaid Expenses 2,689,724                1,785,501                

 Claim Advances -                           -                           

 Advance To Suppliers -                           -                           

 Staff Advances 4,864,386                8,303,978                

 Printing and Stationary Stocks -                           -                           

 Stamp Stocks -                           -                           

Deferred Expenses -                           -                           

 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses -                           -                           

 Deferred Agent Commission Expenses -                           -                           

 Lease Receivables -                           -                           

Others (Investment Application Money Pending Allotment) 700,000,000            -                           

 Less: Impairment Losses -                           -                           

 Total 707,554,110            10,089,478              

(a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

 Capital Advances -                           -                           

 Prepaid Expenses 2,689,724                1,785,501                

 Claim Advances -                           -                           

 Advance To Suppliers -                           -                           

 Staff Advances 4,864,386                8,303,978                

 Printing and Stationary Stocks -                           -                           

 Stamp Stocks -                           -                           

 Deferred Expenses -                           -                           

 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses -                           -                           

 Deferred Agent Commission Expenses -                           -                           

 Lease Receivables -                           -                           

Others (Investment Application Money Pending Allotment) 700,000,000            -                           

Total 707,554,110            10,089,478              

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Fig. in NPR

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Other Financial Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Security Deposits 5,676,235                5,675,255                

Accured Interest 243,730,389            198,136,969            

Interest Receivable from Loan to Policyholders 116,550,845            99,821,775              

Other Receivables -                           -                           

Other Deposits -                           -                           

Sundry Debtors 17,246,862              15,547,448              

Others (to be Specified) -                           -                           

Less: Impairment Losses -                           -                           

Total 383,204,331            319,181,447            

(a) Expected maturies within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Security Deposits -                           -                           

Accured Interest 243,730,389            198,136,969            

Interest Receivable from Loan to Policyholders 116,550,845            99,821,775              

Other Receivables -                           -                           

Other Deposits -                           -                           

Sundry Debtors 17,246,862              15,547,448              

Other ( to be Specified) -                           -                           

Total 377,528,096            313,506,192            

16 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Cash in Hand 6,328,547                8,631,035                

Cheque in Hand -                           -                           

Bank Balances

i) Balance With"A" Class Financial Institutions 364,831,278            356,175,568            

ii) Balance With Infrastructure Banks -                           -                           

iii) Balance With"B" Class Financial Institutions 45,142,332              47,446,671              

iv) Balance With"C" Class Financial Institutions 18,139                     50,021                     

Less: Impairment Losses -                           -                           

Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months -                           -                           

Others (to be Specified) -                           -                           

Less: Impairment Losses -                           -                           

Total 416,320,296            412,303,295            
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17 (a) Share Capital Fig. in NPR

 Current Year  Previous Year 
 Ordinary Shares 
 As at Shrawan 1, 2081 3,937,500,000         2,625,000,000         

                              -   -                            
          1,062,500,000 187,500,000            
                              -   1,125,000,000         

 iii) Share Issue (Right Share Issue)                               -   -                            
                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            

5,000,000,000         3,937,500,000         

(i) Ordinary Shares

 Current Year  Previous Year 

          5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000         

          5,000,000,000 3,937,500,000         

          5,000,000,000 3,937,500,000         
5,000,000,000         3,937,500,000         

(ii) Preference Share Capital

 Current Year  Previous Year 

                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            

                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            

                              -   -                            
                              -   -                            

-                            -                            

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital:

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Promoters
Government of Nepal
Nepali Organized Institutions 8,483,333                6,838,125                17% 25%
Nepali Citizens 26,516,667              20,724,375              53% 75%
Foreigners
Others ( to be Specified)

Total (A) 35,000,000              27,562,500              70% 100%
Other than Promoters

General Public 15,000,000              11,812,500              30% 0%
Others (to be Specified)

Total (B) 15,000,000              11,812,500              30% -                            
Total(A+B) 50,000,000              39,375,000              100% 100%

 As at Shrawan 1, 2081 
 Additions during the year 
 As at Ashadh End, 2082 
 Total 

Particulars

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Number of Shares Percentage
Particulars

Particulars

 Additions during the year 
 i) Bonus Share Issue 
 ii) Share Issue (IPO Share Issue) 

 As at Ashadh End, 2082 
 Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component only) 
 As at Shrawan 1, 2081 
 Additions during the year 
 As at Ashadh End, 2082 
 Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component only) 

50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each.
Total

Particulars
Authorised Capital:
…..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

Authorised Capital:
50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each.
Issued Capital:
50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each.
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

…..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each
….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each
Total

….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each
Issued Capital:
…..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each
….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

17 (a) Share Capital )Continue ….....)

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Air Dynasty Heli Services Pvt. Ltd. 1,070,000                842,625                    2.14% 2.14%
Bikash J.B. Rana 1,800,000                1,417,500                3.60% 3.60%
Goodwill Finance Ltd. 600,000                    472,500                    1.20% 1.20%
Jyoti Prakash Pandey 800,000                    630,000                    1.60% 1.60%
Kantipur Publications Pvt. Ltd. 2,600,000                2,047,500                5.20% 5.20%
Lalita Agrawal 800,000                    630,000                    1.60% 1.60%
Pradeep Jung Pandey 1,833,333                1,443,750                3.67% 3.67%
Premier Wires Pvt. Ltd. 600,000                    472,500                    1.20% 1.20%
Rajendra Prasad Shrestha 700,000                    551,250                    1.40% 1.40%
Ram Agrawal 660,000                    519,750                    1.32% 1.32%
Sumit Kumar Agrawal 2,600,000                2,047,500                5.20% 5.20%
Sushma Rana 1,800,000                1,417,500                3.60% 3.60%
Urmila Panday 800,000                    630,000                    1.60% 1.60%
Yeti World Investment Pvt. Ltd. 1,800,000                1,417,500                3.60% 3.60%

17 (b)

 Current Year  Previous Year 
                              -                                 -   

-                            -                            

17 (c)

 Current Year  Previous Year 
          1,512,188,265           13,037,437.00 
                              -             1,539,000,000 
        (1,062,500,000)                               -   
                              -                (39,849,172)
                              -                                 -   

449,688,265            1,512,188,265         As on Ashadh End, 2082

 Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company: 

Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Particulars
Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Total

Share Premium

Particulars
As on Shrawan 1, 2081
Increase due to issue of shares at premium
Decrease due to issue of bonus shares
Transaction costs on issue of share
Increase due to auction of right shares

Number of Shares PercentageParticulars
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17 (d)

Current Year Previous Year
175,447,465            137,250,191            

54,925,167              38,197,275              
-                            -                            

230,372,633            175,447,465            

17 (e) Retained Earnings

Current Year Previous Year
722,126,406            579,539,081            
189,136,297            430,017,264            

-                            -                            
-                            -                            
-                            -                            
-                            -                            
-                            -                            

(54,925,167)             (38,197,275)             
(5,492,517)               (3,819,727)               

-                            -                            
-                            -                            
-                            -                            

360,115,377            (48,044,516)             
-                            -                            
-                            -                            
-                            -                            
-                            -                            
-                            -                            
-                            (187,500,000)           

(4,514,784)               -                            
-                            -                            

(55,921,053)             (9,868,421)               
-                            -                            
-                            -                            

1,150,524,559         722,126,406            

17 (f) Other Equity

 Current Year  Previous Year 
-                            -                            
-                            -                            

6,335,879                4,686,433                
-                            -                            

7,932,724                1,080,110                
-                            -                            

321,445,424            681,560,801            
33,245,610              27,495,610              

368,959,638            714,822,955            Total

As on Ashadh End, 2082

Particulars

Capital Reserves

Transfer of Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI
Issue of Bonus Shares
Transaction costs on issue of Shares
Dividend Paid

Transfer to reserves

Insurance Fund
Fair Value Reserves
Actuarial Reserves

Capital Reserves

Insurance Fund
Fair Value Reserves
Actuarial Reserves

Other Reserve(to be specified)

Catastrophe Reserves

Dividend Distribution Tax
Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability

Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property and Equipment
Transfer of Disposal of Revalued Property and Equipment

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserve

Revaluation Reserves

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserve

Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars
As on Shrawan 1, 2081
Additions

Particulars

Utilizations

As on Ashadh End, 2082

As on Shrawan 1, 2081
Net Profit or Loss

Other Reserve (Regulatory Reserve)

Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations

Regulatory Reserve

Others

Revaluation Reserves
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18 Fig. in NPR

 Current Year  Previous Year 

35,765,961   28,506,080      

-                -                   

-                -                   

-                -                   

-                -                   

-                -                   

-                -                   

35,765,961   28,506,080      

(a) 

Description  Opening 
Balance 

 Additions 
During the 

Year 

 Utilised 
During the 

Year 

 Reversed 
During the 

Year 

 Unwinding of 
Discount 

 Closing 
Balance 

Provision for Employee Benefits
  i) Provision for Leave 28,506,080   7,259,881     -                -              -                35,765,961      
  ii) Provision for Gratuity -                -                -                -              -                -                   
  iii)Termination Benefits -                -                -                -              -                -                   
  iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations (to be Specified) -                -                -                -              -                -                   
Provision for tax related legal cases -                -                -                -              -                -                   
Provision for non-tax related legal cases -                -                -                -              -                -                   
Others( to be Specified) -                -                -                -              -                -                   

(b)
Current Year Previous Year

-                -                   
-                -                   
-                -                   
-                -                   
-                -                   
-                -                   
-                -                   

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Provisions

Particulars

Provision for Employee Benefits

  i) Provision for Leave

Provision for employee benefits

  ii) Provision for Gratuity

  iii)Termination Benefits

  iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations (to be Specified)

Provision for non-tax related legal cases
Others (to be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others (to be Specified)

  i) Provision for Leave

Provision for tax related legal cases

Total

Movement of Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provision with expected payouts within 12 months:
Particulars

  ii) Provision for Gratuity
  iii) Termination Benefits
  iv) Other employee benefit obligations( to be Specified)

19 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities Fig. in NPR

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Life Insurance Fund as per Actuary Report (19.1)         19,738,157,762         14,281,741,325 

Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR (19.2)              124,842,870              140,942,534 

Transfer from:

  Fair Value Reserve -                           -                           

  Actuarial Reserve -                           -                           

  Revaluation Reserve -                           -                           

  Other Reserve -                           -                           

  Net gain on fair value changes on FVTPL instruments -                           -                           

  Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties -                           -                           

  Share of Profit of Associates accounted as per Equity Method -                           -                           

  Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associates Accounted for using the Equity Method -                           -                           

Total 19,863,000,632       14,422,683,859       

(i)

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes on the cash-flows considered for valuation of liabilities:

Notes on valuation methods and assumptions:

NFRS 4 requires the insurance company to determine their business liabilities using the actuaries. A Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) as
prescribed in NFRS 4 is similar to Actuary Valuation as per existing valuation framework under the Insurance Act 2079 and was performed by
Mr. Navin Vishwanath Iyer, a professional actuary as required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts in order to assess the adequacy of the carrying
amount of the provision for unexpired risk, outstanding claim, appropriation for shareholders and Life Fund. The valuation is based on actuarial
methods prescribed in Insurance Act and directives. 
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and carrying amount of Insurance Fund and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. This
calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets
relevant to life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the Life Fund and unearned premiums is
inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability adequacy.

The long-term liabilities for all the individual base products have been determined at a policy level prospectively using a Gross Premium
Valuation (GPV) methodology, as required by Nepal Insurance Authority's Regulations.
These liabilities are computed at policy level using the internally developed spreadsheet models using Python software.
All Individual products are modelled in these programs which project the cash flows at monthly intervals till the end of their policy terms.
For Group term life the UPR approach was adopted to estimate the reserves. For Group Affinity Gross Premium Valuation (GPV) methodology
was used.
The valuation assumptions are also given in Note 46 of this financial statements.

Reserves are adequate to meet the policyholder liabilities with adequate prudence, and the Company is sufficiently solvent on the statutory

basis as on the date of valuation viz. July 16, 2025 with Solvency Ratio of 173% as per the Risk Based Capital and Solvency Directive, 2025.

It may be noted that the reserves are computed separately for each policy. The results are then presented by product, policy status etc.

The valuation rate of interest used for the computation of liabilities is as per the Risk Free Rate curve, which is as prescribed by the Nepal

Insurance Authority guidelines.

Any other disclosures as required:

Notes on the discounting policy:

Notes on aggregation practises:

— 114 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



19 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities Fig. in NPR

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Life Insurance Fund as per Actuary Report (19.1)         19,738,157,762         14,281,741,325 

Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR (19.2)              124,842,870              140,942,534 

Transfer from:

  Fair Value Reserve -                           -                           

  Actuarial Reserve -                           -                           

  Revaluation Reserve -                           -                           

  Other Reserve -                           -                           

  Net gain on fair value changes on FVTPL instruments -                           -                           

  Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties -                           -                           

  Share of Profit of Associates accounted as per Equity Method -                           -                           

  Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associates Accounted for using the Equity Method -                           -                           

Total 19,863,000,632       14,422,683,859       

(i)

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes on the cash-flows considered for valuation of liabilities:

Notes on valuation methods and assumptions:

NFRS 4 requires the insurance company to determine their business liabilities using the actuaries. A Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) as
prescribed in NFRS 4 is similar to Actuary Valuation as per existing valuation framework under the Insurance Act 2079 and was performed by
Mr. Navin Vishwanath Iyer, a professional actuary as required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts in order to assess the adequacy of the carrying
amount of the provision for unexpired risk, outstanding claim, appropriation for shareholders and Life Fund. The valuation is based on actuarial
methods prescribed in Insurance Act and directives. 
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and carrying amount of Insurance Fund and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. This
calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets
relevant to life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the Life Fund and unearned premiums is
inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability adequacy.

The long-term liabilities for all the individual base products have been determined at a policy level prospectively using a Gross Premium
Valuation (GPV) methodology, as required by Nepal Insurance Authority's Regulations.
These liabilities are computed at policy level using the internally developed spreadsheet models using Python software.
All Individual products are modelled in these programs which project the cash flows at monthly intervals till the end of their policy terms.
For Group term life the UPR approach was adopted to estimate the reserves. For Group Affinity Gross Premium Valuation (GPV) methodology
was used.
The valuation assumptions are also given in Note 46 of this financial statements.

Reserves are adequate to meet the policyholder liabilities with adequate prudence, and the Company is sufficiently solvent on the statutory

basis as on the date of valuation viz. July 16, 2025 with Solvency Ratio of 173% as per the Risk Based Capital and Solvency Directive, 2025.

It may be noted that the reserves are computed separately for each policy. The results are then presented by product, policy status etc.

The valuation rate of interest used for the computation of liabilities is as per the Risk Free Rate curve, which is as prescribed by the Nepal

Insurance Authority guidelines.

Any other disclosures as required:

Notes on the discounting policy:

Notes on aggregation practises:
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20 Insurance Payable Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurer -                           2,164,487                

Payable to other Insurance Companies 20,720,981              -                           

Others (to be Specified) -                           -                           

Total 20,720,981              2,164,487                

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurer -                           2,164,487                

Payable to other Insurance Companies 20,720,981              -                           

Others (to be Specified) -                           -                           

Total 20,720,981              2,164,487                

21 Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Income Tax Liabilities -                           -                           

Income Tax Assets 587,858,013            460,553,651            

Total 587,858,013            460,553,651            

22

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Bonds -                           -                           

Debentures -                           -                           

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution -                           -                           

Bank Overdrafts -                           -                           

Others (to be Specified) -                           -                           

Total -                           -                           

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Bonds -                           -                           

Debentures -                           -                           

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution -                           -                           

Bank Overdrafts -                           -                           

Others (to be Specified) -                           -                           

Total -                           -                           

Borrowings

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Other Liabilities Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

TDS Payable 38,970,620              27,846,974              

Unidentified deposits 21,705,687              24,731,568              

Advance Premiums 19,141,627              34,933,088              

Insurance Service Fee Payable 18,411,428              46,615,042              

Lease Liability 110,404,636            120,255,194            

Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income -                           -                           

Deferred Income -                           -                           

Others(to be specified) -                           -                           

Total 208,633,999            254,381,866            

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

TDS Payable 38,970,620              27,846,974              

Unidentified deposits 21,705,687              24,731,568              

Advance Premiums 19,141,627              34,933,088              

Insurance Service Fee Payable 18,411,428              46,615,042              

Lease Liability 110,404,636            120,255,194            

Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income -                           -                           

Deferred Income -                           -                           

Others(to be specified) -                           -                           

Total 208,633,999            254,381,865            

24 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares -                           -                           

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares -                           -                           

Refundable Share Application Money -                           -                           

Payable to Agents 192,537,372            159,677,621            

Sundry Creditors 130,907,134            52,959,888              

Retention and deposits -                           -                           

Short-term employee benefits payable -                           -                           

i) Salary Payables 17,688,068              5,417,993                

ii) Bonus Payables 61,027,964              42,441,416              

iii) Other employee benefits -                           -                           

Audit Fees Payable 1,045,313                724,750                   

Actuarial Fees Payable 4,524,238                5,789,338                

Dividend Payable -                           -                           

Others (to be specified) -                           -                           

Payable to Staffs 633,736                   2,153,307                

House Rent Payable 1,372,435                775,999                   

Agent License Fee Payable 210,516                   210,516                   

Total 409,946,775            270,150,828            

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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23 Other Liabilities Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

TDS Payable 38,970,620              27,846,974              

Unidentified deposits 21,705,687              24,731,568              

Advance Premiums 19,141,627              34,933,088              

Insurance Service Fee Payable 18,411,428              46,615,042              

Lease Liability 110,404,636            120,255,194            

Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income -                           -                           

Deferred Income -                           -                           

Others(to be specified) -                           -                           

Total 208,633,999            254,381,866            

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

TDS Payable 38,970,620              27,846,974              

Unidentified deposits 21,705,687              24,731,568              

Advance Premiums 19,141,627              34,933,088              

Insurance Service Fee Payable 18,411,428              46,615,042              

Lease Liability 110,404,636            120,255,194            

Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income -                           -                           

Deferred Income -                           -                           

Others(to be specified) -                           -                           

Total 208,633,999            254,381,865            

24 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares -                           -                           

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares -                           -                           

Refundable Share Application Money -                           -                           

Payable to Agents 192,537,372            159,677,621            

Sundry Creditors 130,907,134            52,959,888              

Retention and deposits -                           -                           

Short-term employee benefits payable -                           -                           

i) Salary Payables 17,688,068              5,417,993                

ii) Bonus Payables 61,027,964              42,441,416              

iii) Other employee benefits -                           -                           

Audit Fees Payable 1,045,313                724,750                   

Actuarial Fees Payable 4,524,238                5,789,338                

Dividend Payable -                           -                           

Others (to be specified) -                           -                           

Payable to Staffs 633,736                   2,153,307                

House Rent Payable 1,372,435                775,999                   

Agent License Fee Payable 210,516                   210,516                   

Total 409,946,775            270,150,828            

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares -                           -                           

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares -                           -                           

Refundable Share Application Money -                           -                           

Payable to Agents 192,537,372            159,677,621            

Sundry Creditors 130,907,134            52,959,888              

Retention and deposits -                           -                           

Short-term employee benefits payable -                           -                           

i) Salary Payables 17,688,068              5,417,993                

ii) Bonus Payables 61,027,964              42,441,416              

iii) Other employee benefit payable ( to be Specified) -                           -                           

Audit Fees Payable 1,045,313                724,750                   

Actuarial Fees Payable 4,524,238                5,789,338                

Dividend Payable -                           -                           

Others (to be specified) -                           -                           

Payable to Staffs 633,736                   2,153,307                

House Rent Payable 1,372,435                775,999                   

Agent License Fee Payable 210,516                   210,516                   

Total 409,946,775            270,150,828            
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27 Commission Income Fig.in NPR

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Endowment -                  -                    29,778,195     15,568,047       29,778,195            15,568,047          
Anticipated Endowment -                  -                    10,319,929     13,496,069       10,319,929            13,496,069          
Endowment Cum Whole Life -                  -                    6,157,754       5,115,819         6,157,754              5,115,819            
Whole Life -                  -                    -                  -                    -                         -                       
Foreign Employment Term -                  -                    -                  572,182            -                         572,182               
Micro Term -                  -                    (3,920,900)      (1,917,464)        (3,920,900)            (1,917,464)          
Special Term -                  -                    -                  -                    -                         -                       
Othes( to be Specified) -                  -                    -                  -                    -                         -                       
- Citizen Savings Growth Plan -                  -                    229,810          42,511              229,810                 42,511                 
Total -                  -                    42,564,789     32,877,165       42,564,789            32,877,165          

28 Other Direct Income

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Endowment -                  -                    12,496,955     9,832,378         12,496,955            9,832,378            
Anticipated Endowment -                  -                    3,242,077       2,913,116         3,242,077              2,913,116            
Endowment Cum Whole Life -                  -                    4,772,678       4,545,665         4,772,678              4,545,665            
Whole Life -                  -                    -                  -                    -                         -                       
Foreign Employment Term -                  53,172              -                  -                    -                         53,172                 
Micro Term -                  -                    -                  -                    -                         -                       
Special Term -                  -                    -                  -                    -                         -                       
Othes( to be Specified) -                  -                    -                  -                    -                         -                       
- Citizen Savings Growth Plan -                  -                    -                  -                    -                         -                       
Total -                  53,172              20,511,710     17,291,159       20,511,710            17,344,331          

29 Income from Investments and Loans

Current Year Previous Year

1,151,186,510      1,015,233,509    
10,679,177            10,649,999          

160,462,452          126,300,968       
-                         723,123               

479,809,970          430,449,552       
-                         -                       

6,325,180              6,346,503            
726,458                 1,665,276            

3,061,646              3,375,317            
-                         -                       

-                         -                       
16,303,765            1,987,427            
61,898,890            (227,900)             

-                         -                       
-                         -                       
-                         -                       
-                         -                       
-                         -                       

1,890,454,049      1,596,503,774    

  iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Institutions
  v) Debentures 
  vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

  x) Other Interest Income (to be Specified)

Total

  iii) Profit on sale of investment
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

  ii) Dividend Income
  iii) Other Interest Income (to be specified)
Rental Income
Others (to be Specified)

Particulars
 Other Direct Income  Late Fees  Total Other Direct Income 

  i) Interest Income on Debentures

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI
  i) Interest Income on Debentures

  ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Particulars
Interest Income from Financial Assets Designated at Amortised Costs
   i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

  vii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit
  viii) Agent Loans
  ix) Employee Loans

  ii) Dividend Income

  iii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions

 Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 

Particulars
 Reinsurance Commission  Profit Commission  Total Commission Income 
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30 Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL -                           -                           

  i) Equity Instruments -                           -                           

  ii) Mutual Fund -                           -                           

  iii) Others (to be specified) -                           -                           

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties -                           -                           

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges -                           -                           

Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges -                           -                           

Other (to be Specified) -                           -                           

Total -                           -                           

31 Net Realised Gains/(Losses)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL -                           -                           

  i) Equity Instruments -                           -                           

  ii) Mutual Fund -                           -                           

  iii) Debentures -                           -                           

  iv) Others (to be specified) -                           -                           

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at Amortised Costs -                           -                           

  i) Debentures -                           -                           

  ii) Bonds -                           -                           

  iii) Others (to be specified) -                           -                           

Total -                           -                           

32 Other Income

 Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost -                           -                           

  i) Employee Loan -                           -                           

  ii) Bonds -                           -                           

  iii) Others (to be Specified) -                           -                           

Foreign Exchange Income -                           -                           

Interest Income from Finance Lease -                           -                           

Amortization of Deferred Income -                           -                           

Profit from disposal of Property and Equipment -                           26,167                     

Amortization of Deferred Income -                           -                           

Stamp Income -                           -                           

Other Income 1,945,115                1,609,603                

Total 1,945,115                1,635,770                

 Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
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38 Employee Benefits Expenses Fig.in NPR

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
Salaries 122,549,535            113,534,873            
Allowances 92,178,845              82,624,923              
Festival Allowances 14,932,700              14,515,565              
Defined Benefit Plans -                           -                           
   i) Gratuity 10,187,495              9,457,459                
   ii) Others -Leave Encashment 16,844,301              11,839,750              
Defined Contribution Plans -                           -                           
   i) Provident Fund/ Social Security Fund 14,272,132              13,249,635              
   ii) Others ( to be specified) -                           -                           
Leave Encashments -                           -                           
Termination Benefits -                           -                           
Training Expenses 7,965,298                7,450,964                
Uniform Expenses -                           -                           
Medical Expenses -                           -                           
Insurance Expenses 3,700,647                3,344,792                
Welfare -                           -                           
Refreshment Expenses 2,162,734                1,835,226                
Amortization of Deferred Employee Expenses -                           -                           
Overtime -                           -                           
Outsource and Support Facilities 28,496,087              27,227,771              

Sub-Total 313,289,774            285,080,958            
Employees Bonus 61,027,964              42,441,416              

Total 374,317,738            327,522,375            

39 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
Amortization of Goodwill & Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4) 673,891                   570,885                   
Depreciation on Property and Equipment (Refer Note.5) 61,874,243              56,009,905              
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note. 6) -                           -                           

Total 62,548,134              56,580,790              

40 Impairment Losses

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 
 Impairment Losses on Property and Equipment, Investment Properties, Goodwill & 
Intangible Assets -                           -                           

i) Property and Equipment -                           -                           
ii) Investment properties -                           -                           
iii) Goodwill & Intangible Assets -                           -                           

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets 849,214                   223,485                   
 i) Investments -                           -                           
ii) Loans 849,214                   223,485                   
iii) Other Financial Assets -                           -                           
iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents -                           -                           
v) Others ( to be Specified) -                           -                           

Impairment Losses on Other Assets -                           -                           
i) Reinsurance Assets -                           -                           
ii) Insurance Receivables -                           -                           
iii) Lease Receivables -                           -                           
iv) Others (to be Specified) -                           -                           

Total 849,214                   223,485                   

 Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
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41 Other Operating Expenses Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Rent Expenses 28,464,105              37,854,074              
Electricity and Water 3,992,697                3,643,237                
Repair & Maintenance -                           -                           
i) Building -                           -                           
ii) Vehicle 2,256,567                1,957,101                
iii) Office Equipments 967,176                   712,206                   
iv) Others(to be Specified) 1,521,107                109,776                   
Telephone & Communication 5,501,596                6,382,392                
Printing & Stationary 11,324,983              8,394,427                
Office Consumable Expenses 393,927                   389,427                   
Travelling Expenses -                           -                           
i) Domestic 6,222,944                5,543,832                
ii) Foreign 75,000                     317,309                   
Transportation Expenses 11,296,379              12,445,827              
Agents Training 13,245                     959,191                   
Agents Others 284,432,518            218,985,645            
Insurance Premium 1,547,743                1,431,485                
Security and Outsourcing Expenses 2,358,488                2,311,799                
Legal and Consulting Expenses 984,657                   1,072,105                
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals -                           79,480                     
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 19,344,529              7,892,441                
Business Promotion 13,714,034              29,118,888              
Guest Entertainment -                           -                           
Gift and Donations -                           -                           
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses -                           -                           
i) Meeting Allowances 925,000                   1,680,000                
ii) Other Allowances 333,071                   147,084                   
Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses -                           -                           
i) Meeting Allowances 1,390,000                1,262,500                
ii) Other Allowances -                           -                           
General Meeting Expenses 777,246                   2,203,686                
Actuarial Service Fee 4,869,767                5,429,000                
Other Actuarial Expenses -                           -                           
Audit Related Expenses -                           -                           
i) Statutory Audit 847,500                   502,850                   
ii) Tax Audit -                           -                           
iii) Long Form Audit Report -                           -                           
iv) Other Fees 591,580                   1,180,315                
v) Internal Audit 847,500                   339,000                   
vi) Others (to be Specified) -                           -                           
Bank Charges 4,263,445                1,786,772                
Fee and Charges 8,220,347                7,072,740                
Postage Charges 2,772,286                2,142,247                
Foreign Exchange Losses -                           -                           
Tea/Canteen Expenses 8,430,509                6,404,153                
Office Running Costs 9,168,875                8,068,972                
Writeoff Expenses -                           -                           
Anniversary Expenses 330,478                   278,460                   
FE Management Expenses 368,658                   -                           
Others -                           -                           

Sub-Total 438,547,957            378,098,423            
Medical Examination Fee 5,483,544                4,887,871                
Fines, Interest, Late Fees and Penalties 868,062                   5,000                       

Total 444,899,563            382,991,294            

 Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
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42 Finance Cost Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Unwinding of discount on Provisions -                           -                           
Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs -                           -                           
Interest Expenses - Bonds -                           -                           
Interest Expenses - Debentures -                           -                           
Interest Expenses - Term Loans -                           -                           
Interest Expenses - Leases 7,845,284                8,995,487                
Interest Expenses - Overdraft Loans -                           -                           
Premium on Debenture -                           34,140                     
Others (to be Specified) -                           -                           

Total 7,845,284                9,029,627                

43 Income Tax Expense

(a) Income Tax Expense:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current Tax -                           -                           
i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year -                           -                           
ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods -                           -                           

Deferred Tax For The Year 360,115,377            (48,044,516)             
i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences 451,532,667            (53,669,012)             
ii) Changes in tax rate -                           -                           
iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (91,417,290)             5,624,496                
iv) Write-down or reversal -                           -                           
v) Others ( to be Specified) -                           -                           

Income Tax Expense 360,115,377            (48,044,516)             

(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & the Accounting Profit:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Accounting Profit Before Tax 549,251,674            381,972,748            
Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 137,312,918            95,493,187              
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 2,109,850,064         1,410,296,987         

Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction (1,887,047,606)        (1,553,834,690)        

Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods -                           -                           

Add/ (Less): Others -                           -                           

Income Tax Expense 360,115,377            (48,044,516)             
Effective Tax Rate 65.56% -12.58%

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Fig. in NPR
44

(a) 

(b)

(c )

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Service Cost 16,844,301       11,839,750       -                    -                    
Past Service Cost -                    -                    -                    -                    
Net Interest Cost (a-b) -                    -                    -                    -                    
a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) -                    -                    -                    -                    
b. Interest (income) on plan assets -                    -                    -                    -                    

Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 16,844,301       11,839,750       -                    -                    

(d)

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption changes in DBO -                    -                    -                    -                    
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO -                    -                    -                    -                    
c. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total actuarial (gain)/ loss  included in OCI                        -                          -                          -                          -   

(e ) 

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 16,844,301       11,839,750       -                    -                    
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income         16,844,301         11,839,750                        -                          -   

(f)

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 28,506,080       22,689,111       -                                           -   
Service cost 16,844,301       11,839,750       -                                           -   
Interest cost -                    -                    -                                           -   
Benefit payments from plan assets (9,584,420)        (6,022,781)        -                                           -   
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions -                    -                    -                                           -   
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience -                    -                    -                                           -   

Defined Benefit Obligation as at Year End         35,765,961         28,506,080                        -                          -   

(g)

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year -                    -                    -                    -                    
Interest Income -                    -                    -                    -                    
Expected return on plan assets -                    -                    -                    -                    
Employer contributions -                    -                    -                    -                    
Participant contributions -                    -                    -                    -                    
Benefit payments from plan assets -                    -                    -                    -                    
Transfer in/ transfer out -                    -                    -                    -                    
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets -                    -                    -                    -                    

Fair value of Plan Assets as at Year End                        -                          -                          -                          -   

For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being 
carried out.

Employee Retirement Benefits:

Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans:
For the year ended Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16th, 2025) the company has recognised an amount of NPR. 14,272,132 as an expenses under the
defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans:

Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI):

Particulars
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation:

Particulars
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income:

Particulars
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets:

Particulars
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Fig. in NPR
44 Employee Retirement Benefits:

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

44. Employee Retirement Benefits (Contin …..)
(h) 

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Defined Benefit Obligation 35,765,961       28,506,080       -                                           -   
Fair Value of Plan Assets -                    -                    -                                           -   

Liability/ (Asset) Recognised in Statement of Financial Position         35,765,961         28,506,080                        -                          -   

(i) 

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Expected company contributions for the next year -                    -                    -                    -                    

(j)

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 28,506,080       22,689,111       -                    -                    
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 16,844,301       11,839,750       -                    -                    
Total remeasurements included in OCI -                        -                        -                    -                    
Acquisition/ divestment (9,584,420)        (6,022,781)        -                    -                    
Employer contributions -                        -                        -                    -                    

Net defined benefit liability/(asset)         35,765,961         28,506,080                        -                          -   

(k)

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total remeasurements included in OCI -                    -                    -                    -                    

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss                        -                          -                          -                          -   

(l)

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Current Liability 2,387,126         2,172,022         -                        -                        
Non - Current Liability 33,378,833       26,334,058       -                        -                        

Total         35,765,959         28,506,080                        -                          -   

(m)

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 

Within 1 year 2,387,126         2,172,022         -                        -                        
Between 1-2 years -                        -                        -                        -                        
Between 2-5 years 9,530,531         8,668,648         -                        -                        
From 6 to 10 13,620,694       11,553,736       -                        -                        

Total         25,538,351         22,394,406                        -                          -   

Current/Non - Current Liability:

Expected Future Benefit Payments:

Particulars
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income:

Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position:

Particulars
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year:

Particulars
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability):

Particulars

Particulars
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
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Fig. in NPR
44 Employee Retirement Benefits:

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

44. Employee Retirement Benefits (Contin …..)
(n)  

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
 (% Invested)  (% Invested)  (% Invested)  (% Invested) 

Government Securities (Central and State) -                        -                        -                        -                        
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds) -                        -                        -                        -                        
Mutual Funds -                        -                        -                        -                        
Deposits -                        -                        -                        -                        
Cash and bank balances -                        -                        -                        -                        
Others (to be Specified) -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total                        -                          -                          -                          -   

(o)

 Current Year  Previous Year  Current Year  Previous Year 
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in Discount Rate 32,175,418       25,848,273       -                        -                        
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Decrease in Discount Rate 40,093,540       31,681,281       -                        -                        

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in Salary Escalation 
Rate 40,127,071       31,746,886       -                        -                        

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Decrease in Salary 
Escalation Rate 32,088,838       25,754,779       -                        -                        

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 25% Increase in Attrition Rate 36,666,908       29,725,949       -                        -                        
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 25% Decrease in Attrition Rate 34,676,164       27,041,604       -                        -                        

(p)

Employee 
Benefit Plan

 Any Other 
Funded Liability 

6.75% 0.00%
5.00% 0.00%
5.00% 0.00%

NALM 2009 0.00%

Representative mortality rates taken for current actuarial valuation as per the chosen mortality table are given below:

Age Rate Age Rate
15 0.000777 45 0.003365
20 0.001030 50 0.005724
25 0.001177 55 0.009447
30 0.001219 60 0.014381
35 0.001459 65 0.023827
40 0.002196 70 0.040058

Assumptions:

Mortality Rates:

Plan assets:

Sensitivity Analysis:

Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels)
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover)
Mortality Rate During Employment

Particulars

Discount Rate

Employee Benefit Plan
Particulars

Particulars
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Any Other Funded Liability
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Fig. in NPR
45
(i)

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost

Investments
i) Investment in Equity Instruments

Investment in Equity (Quoted) 1 -                  1,373,580,509  -                      -                      306,603,684       -                     
Investment in Equity (Unquoted) 3 -                  212,530,000     -                      -                      92,530,000         -                     

ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1 -                  524,718,474     -                      -                      201,477,950       -                     

iii) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank 
and Financial Institutions -                  -                   -                      -                      -                      -                     
iv) Investment in Debentures 3 -                  -                   5,275,360,073    -                      -                      4,766,939,474   

v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ 
NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) 3 -                  -                   -                      -                      -                      -                     
vi) Fixed Deposits 3 -                  -                   16,463,000,000  -                      -                      13,568,000,000 
vii) Others (to be specified) -                  -                   -                      -                      -                      -                     

Loans 3 -                  -                   1,048,986,533    -                      -                      810,518,362      
Other Financial Assets 3 -                  -                   383,204,331       -                      -                      319,181,447      
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 -                  -                   416,320,296       -                      -                      412,303,295      

 Total Financial Assets                     -     2,110,828,984   23,586,871,232                         -          600,611,634  19,876,942,578 
Borrowings -                  -                   -                      -                      -                      -                     
Other Financial Liabilities 3 -                  -                   409,946,775       -                      -                      270,150,828      

 Total Financial Liabilities                     -                         -          409,946,775                         -                           -         270,150,828 

(ii)
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii)

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes.
Discussion on valuation processes and results are held at least once in a year.
The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.
b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is material

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fair Value Measurements:
Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy:

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value 
and (b) measured at Amortised Cost and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into Three Levels 
prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Particulars
Current Year Previous Year

Level

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable 
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value:

Valuation Process:
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

45. 'Fair Value Measurements (Continue ….......)
(iv)

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

-                      -                      -                      -                     

5,275,360,073    5,275,360,073    4,766,939,474    4,766,939,474   

-                      -                      -                      -                     

16,463,000,000  16,463,000,000  13,568,000,000  13,568,000,000 

-                      -                      -                      -                     

-                      -                     

-                      -                      -                      -                     

34,599,605         34,599,605         42,245,419         42,245,419        

5,098,484           5,098,484           13,279,696         13,279,696        

1,009,288,444    1,009,288,444    754,993,247       754,993,247      

-                      -                     

383,204,331       383,204,331       319,181,447       319,181,447      

23,170,550,937  23,170,550,937  19,464,639,283  19,464,639,283 

-                      -                      -                      -                     

-                      -                      -                      -                     

-                      -                      -                      -                     

-                      -                      -                      -                     

-                      -                      -                      -                     

409,946,775       409,946,775       270,150,828       270,150,828      

409,946,775       409,946,775       270,150,828       270,150,828      

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash flows discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term nature.

Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Borrowings

ii) Investment in Debentures

iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

v) Others (to be Specified)

i) Loan to Associates

ii) Loan to Employees

Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Loans

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost:

Particulars
 Current Year  Previous Year 

iv) Fixed Deposit

Investments

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

iii) Loan to Agent

Other Financial Liabilities

i) Bonds

ii) Debentures

iii) Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution

iv) Bank Overdrafts

v) Others (to be Specified)

iv) Loan to Policyholders

v) Others (to be Specified)
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Fig. in NPR

52. Operating Segment (Cont ….......)
(c ) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segmental Profit 211,346,201            175,145,360            

Less: Employee Benefits expenses (92,356,941)             (70,949,512)             

Less: Depreciation and Amortization (6,254,813)               (5,658,079)               

Less: Other operating expenses (44,685,992)             (37,814,842)             

Less: Impairment losses (849,214)                  (223,485)                  

Less: Finance Cost (784,528)                  (902,963)                  

Add: Unallocable Other Income 482,836,962            322,376,269            

Profit Before Tax 549,251,674            381,972,748            

(d) Reconciliation of Assets:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Assets 20,377,984,897       14,544,586,344       

Goodwill & Intangible Assets 1,006,733                933,990                   

Property and Equipment 57,335,661              76,555,231              

Investment Properties -                           -                           

Deferred Tax Assets 295,003,011            677,960,434            

Investment in Subsidiaries -                           -                           

Investment in Associates -                           -                           

Investments 6,426,205,839         6,312,981,390         

Loans 10,609,969              18,371,733              

Current Tax Assets 157,114,744            152,384,535            

Insurance Receivables 9,560,957                10,832,042              

Other Assets 189,105,498            3,338,331                

Other Financial Assets 102,417,674            105,608,362            

Cash and Cash Equivalents 111,268,461            136,419,820            

Total Assets 27,737,613,443       22,039,972,212       

(e) Reconciliation of Liabilities:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Liabilities 20,357,645,374       14,794,359,113       

Provisions 9,559,043                9,422,971                

Deferred Tax Liabilities -                           -                           

Current Tax Liabilities -                           -                           

Insurance Payables 5,538,024                715,493                   

Other Financial Liabilities 55,760,875              84,088,478              

Other Liabilities 109,565,033            89,301,066              

Total Liabilities 20,538,068,348       14,977,887,121       

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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(a) Identify Related Parties:
Holding Company:
There are no holding company for this fiscal year.
Subsidiaries:
There are no subsidiary company for this fiscal year.
Associates:
There are no associate company for this fiscal year.
Fellow Subsidiaries:
There are no fellow subsidiaries company for this fiscal year.
Key Management Personnel:

Fig. in NPR
(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Current Year Previous Year
29,453,080          23,844,568          
2,331,924            2,263,630            

-                      -                      
-                      -                      

31,785,004          26,108,198          

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Current Year Previous Year

8,581,008            8,476,600            
-                      -                      

1,637,614            559,791               
-                      -                      

3,875,000            -                      
-                      -                      
-                      -                      

27,016                 25,391                 
6,700                   6,750                   

14,127,338          9,068,532            

(c ) Related Party Transactions:

Particulars Holding 
Company Subsidiaries Associates Fellow 

Subsidiaries
Key Managerial 

Personnel Total

Premium Earned
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Commission Income
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Rental Income
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Interest Income
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits

Total

Annual salary and allowances
Performance based allowances

Total

Particulars

ii) Accident Insurance
iii) Health Insurance (including family members)

i) Employee Bonus
ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions
iii) Incentives

Insurance related benefits
i) Life Insurance

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

The company has identified its Board Of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief 
Marketing Officer as the key management personnel.

Particulars
Short-term employee benefits

Related Party Disclosure
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Related Party Disclosure

(c ) Related Party Transactions: Continue…...

Particulars Holding 
Company Subsidiaries Associates Fellow 

Subsidiaries
Key Managerial 

Personnel Total

Sale of Property & Equipment
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Purchase of Property & Equipment
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Premium Paid
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Commission Expenses
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Dividend
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Meeting Fees
Current Year -                -                -               -                2,315,000            2,315,000            
Previous Year -                -                -               -                2,942,500            2,942,500            

Allowances to Directors
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Others (to be specified)
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

(d) Related Party Balances:

Particulars Holding 
Company Subsidiaries Associates Fellow 

Subsidiaries
Key Managerial 

Personnel Total

Receivables including Reinsurance
Receivables

Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Other Receivables (to be Specified)
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Payables including Reinsurance Payables
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      

Other Payables (to be Specified)
Current Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
Previous Year -                -                -               -                -                      -                      
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Fig. in NPR

2081/82 2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78

A. Equity:
1 Net worth NPR     7,199,545,095     7,052,122,798     4,012,004,492     3,017,605,741     2,659,010,664 

2 Net Profit NPR        189,136,297        420,054,971        102,596,173        376,071,909        300,506,291 

3 Number of Shares No.          50,000,000          39,375,000          26,250,000          17,500,000          17,500,000 

4 Earning per Shares (EPS) NPR                      3.78                    10.67                      4.33                    21.49                    17.17 

5 Book value per shares NPR                  143.99                  179.10                  152.84                  172.43                  151.94 

6 Dividend per Shares (DPS) NPR                    20.00                    28.40                      5.26                          -                            -   

7 Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NPR                  474.24                  544.60                          -                            -                            -   

8 Price Earning Ratio (PE Ratio) Ratio                  125.37                    51.05                          -                            -                            -   

9 Changes in Equity % 1.95 75.78 32.95 13.49 12.91

10 Return on Equity % 2.65 7.59 2.92 13.25 11.99
11 Affiliate Ratio %                          -                            -                            -                            -                            -   

12 Market Share %                      4.14                      3.99                      4.25                      3.83                      2.91 

13 Net Earnings Ratio %                      2.65                      7.19                      1.87                      7.50                      8.79 

14 Solvency Margin %                      1.73                      3.42                      1.35                      3.49                      3.00 

B. Income:
15 Gross Earned Premium Growth Rate % 21.44 5.47 10.88 50.68 79.92

16 First Year Premium Growth Rate %

a  Endowment %                      4.21                    13.32                  (33.67)                    90.11                  113.10 

b  Anticipated Endowment %                    (7.81)                    20.64                  (80.03)                  (57.54)                    60.62 

c  Endowment Cum Whole Life %                      1.52                  (11.02)                  (36.16)                    30.79                  (13.91)

d  Whole Life %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

e  Foreign Employment Term %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

f  Micro Term %                      1.18                  (23.33)                      0.19                  168.56                  348.61 

g  Special Term %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

h  - Citizen Savings Growth Plan %                  185.66                            -                            -                            -                            - 

17 Renewal Premium Growth Rate %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

a  Endowment %                    33.62                    25.70                  103.09                    95.16                  128.50 

b  Anticipated Endowment %                      4.14                  (11.47)                    27.03                  124.42                  353.25 

c  Endowment Cum Whole Life %                    14.09                      5.00                    31.02                      7.75                    68.56 

d  Whole Life %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

e  Foreign Employment Term %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

f  Micro Term %                (100.00)                  (84.25)                    25.93                    (7.74)                  144.80 

g  Special Term %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

h  - Citizen Savings Growth Plan %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

18 Single Premium Growth Rate %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

a  Endowment %                  106.78                  138.65                  (27.89)                    16.54                    37.99 

b  Anticipated Endowment %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

c  Endowment Cum Whole Life %                    60.10                  210.77                  (82.29)                  (48.13)                  (56.85)

d  Whole Life %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

e  Foreign Employment Term %                  107.85                  (50.15)                    18.00                  240.90                  (61.51)

f  Micro Term %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

g  Special Term %                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 

h  - Citizen Savings Growth Plan %                  223.95                            -                            -                            -                            - 

19 Reinsurance Ratio % 5.51 6.01 6.98 5.66 3.96

20 Retention Ratio % 94.49 93.99 93.02 94.34 96.88

21 Net Reinsurance Inflow / (Outflow) In Cr.                    (6.04)                    (3.48)                    (5.34)                      2.07                    (6.58)

22 RI Commission Income / Premium Ceded % 10.26 8.83 0.00 0.00 13.92

23 Gross Earned Premium / Equity % 105.85 112.35 167.67 187.25 140.70

24 Net Earned Premium / Equity % 100.02 105.60 155.97 176.66 136.30

25 Gross Earned Premium / Total Assets % 30.33 33.82 47.12 61.12 59.52

26 Yield on Investments and Loan % 8.92 10.31 10.35 10.17 11.02

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Major Financial Indicators

S. No. Particular Indicators Fiscal Year
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Fig. in NPR

2081/82 2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Major Financial Indicators

S. No. Particular Indicators Fiscal Year

C. Expenses:

27 Regulatory Expense Ratio % 17.50 17.97 21.72 20.42 19.37

28 Management Expense Ratio % 10.89 11.73 11.61 14.52 18.39

29 Commission Ratio % 9.61 10.39 12.20 15.56 17.83

30 Direct Business Acquisition Ratio % 27.39 29.21 28.56 44.65 47.00

31 Agent Related Expenses to Other Operating Expenses % 36.28 34.17 35.70 51.60 53.24

32 Agent Related Expenses to Gross Earned Premium % 3.95 4.01 4.15 7.49 9.79

33 Employee expenses to Total Expenses excluding 
claims & benefits and direct expenses. % 45.55 44.94 39.12 30.55 29.98

D. Assets:
34 Increment in Investment %                    26.02                    57.33                    43.40                    60.39                    40.58 

35 Increment in Loan %                    29.42                    27.73                    62.50                    27.34                  114.43 

36 Liquidity Ratio %                      9.97                      5.16                      2.98                      2.21                      4.48 

37 Return on Assets %                      0.76                      2.29                      0.82                      4.32                      5.07 

38 Long term Investments/Total Investments %                    75.23                    87.92                    91.81                    90.95                    78.76 

39 Short term Investments/Total Investments %                    24.77                    12.08                      8.19                      9.05                    21.24 

40 Total Investment & Loan/Gross Insurance Contract 
Liabilities %                  125.80                  137.81                  125.06                  130.79                  137.92 

41 Investment in Unlisted Shares to Total Assets %                      0.77                      0.42                      0.23                      0.26                      0.29 

E. Liabilities:
42 Increment in Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities %                    37.72                    41.34                    45.22                    73.70                    96.62 

Increment in Life Insurance Fund                    38.21                    42.32                    47.99                    74.21                    91.21 

Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR                  (11.42)                  (16.82)                  (31.07)                    60.80                  601.36 

43 Gross Technical Provision to Gross Earned Premium %                  263.15                  232.05                  173.15                  127.28                  114.69 

44 Gross Technical Provisions to Total Equity %                  278.55                  260.71                  290.32                  238.33                  161.36 

45 Insurance Debt/ Total Equity %                          -                            -                            -                            -                            -   

46 Loss Ratio %                    25.12                    28.95                    31.03                    25.96                    20.44 

47 Persistency Ratio %                    95.25                    93.40                    92.20                    92.63                    91.01 

48 Lapse Ratio %                      4.75                      6.60                      7.80                      7.37                      8.91 

49 No. of Outstanding Claim/ No. of Intimated Claims %                      0.01                      0.01                      0.05                      3.48                    10.36 

50 Total Number of Inforce Policies No.s                207,935                219,853                178,319                115,826                124,767 

51 Number of Renewed Policy/ Last Year's Total Number 
of In Force Policies %                    76.17                    93.91                    92.20                    92.63                    91.01 

Others:
52 Declared Bonus Rate Per '000  25-80  25-80  25-77  25-75  25-73 

53 Interim Bonus Rate Per '000  25-80  25-80  25-77  25-75  25-73 

54 Number of Offices No.s                       136                       136                       141                       141                       126 

55 Number of Agents No.s                  35,114                  29,906                  22,258                  17,493                  14,124 

56 Number of Employees No.s                       383                       391                       362                       339                       261 

57 Employee expenses/ Number of Employees Amt.                977,331                837,653                739,502                695,289                744,966 
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 
Board of Director’s Report 

 

A. Information related to the company: 

1. Date of Establishment: Ashad 12, 2064 (June 26, 2007) 

2. Insurer License Date: Bhadra 07, 2074 (August 23, 2017) 

3. Insurance Business Type, Nature: Endowment, Money Back, Endowment Cum Whole Life, 
Foreign Employment Term, Micro Term and Savings Growth Plan products of Life Insurance 
Business. 

4. Date of Commencement of Business: Kartik 02, 2074 (October 19, 2017) 

5. Other matters which Insurer wish to include: None 

B. Other disclosures as approved by the Board of Directors: 

1. Tax, Service Charges, Fine and Penalties to be paid under Laws & Regulation have been 
paid.  

2. The Shareholding Pattern is available in Schedule 17(a) of Financial Statement. 

3. The actual Solvency Margin is 1.73 which is above 1.3 Supervisory Target Level as required 
by Nepal Insurance Authority. 

4.  

a. The financial amounts contained in SOFP are not overstated compared to its fair value. 

b.  Measurement basis of the Assets: Historical Cost, Amortized Cost and Fair Value 
wherever applicable. 

5. All investments made are in line with Investment Directives issued by Nepal Insurance 
Authority. 

6. Number of Claims settled within the year and outstanding Claim Number and time frame to 
settle the Outstanding Claim: The Company has settled 7911 Claims, and 91 Claims are 
outstanding as of the financial year ending Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025). The outstanding 
claims will be settled in the following financial year after receipt of complete documents. 

7. The applicable provisions of the Insurance Act 2079, Insurance Regulation 2081, Company 
Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing Laws and Regulation have been duly complied with. 

8. The Financial Statement of the Company has been prepared in accordance with the 
applicable Accounting Standards, Principles, and Policies. Further, the Accounting Policies 
have been applied consistently, and judgements and estimates have been made wherever 
necessary. 

9. The Financial Statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statements that might be misleading, and they present a true and fair view of 
the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable 
laws and regulations. 
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10. Adequate Policies and Procedures have been formulated by the Board of Directors to 
safeguard the assets and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, 
embezzlement, and irregularities. 

11. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a Going Concern Basis. 

12. The management has ensured that the internal control system is commensurate with the size, 
nature & volume of the insurer's business. 

13. The Company has not conducted any transactions contrary to the Insurance Act, 2079, 
Company Act, 2063, and other related Regulations and Directions. 

14. The company has paid a fine amounting to NPR 868,062 to Inland Revenue Office and Office 
of Company Registrar during this fiscal year. 

15. Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by Board of Directors/Management: None. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Date: Mangsir 24, 2082 (December 10, 2025) 

Pradeep Jung Pandey 
Chairman 

Sumit Kumar Agrawal 
Director 

Manoj Karki 
Director 

Mahesh Swar 
Director 

Dawa Futi Sherpa 
Director 

Bhej Prasad Timilsina 
Director 

Devraj Adhikari 
Independent Director 
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The company has no holding company, subsidiaries, associates and fellow subsidiaries. The 
company has identified its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Marketing Officer as the key management personnel 
and there are no related party transactions other than meeting allowance to the Board and 
remuneration to the Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer and Chief Marketing Officer. The information of the transaction has been detailed in the 
financial statement of this annual report. 

QUALITY OF ASSETS 

The quality of the company’s assets is assessed based on credit quality, liquidity, diversification 
and regulatory compliance. The quality of the company’s assets is characterized by a strong 
emphasis on investments, which are carefully managed to balance potential risk and expected 
return. The composition of the total assets of the company are as shown in the following table. 

 Amount in ' 000 NPR 
S. No. Particulars Amount  

1. Goodwill & Intangible Assets 3,767 
2. Property and Equipment 214,526 
3. Deferred Tax Assets 295,003 
4. Investments 24,044,189 
5. Loans 1,048,987 
6. Reinsurance Assets 432 
7. Current Tax Assets 587,858 
8. Insurance Receivables 35,773 
9. Other Assets 707,554 
10. Other Financial Assets 383,204 
11. Cash and Cash Equivalent 416,320 
 Total Assets 27,737,613 

The company's asset portfolio predominantly comprises of investments, which account for 87% 
of total assets. This high proportion of investments indicates a proactive approach to asset 
management, aimed at supporting policyholder obligations and enhancing shareholder value, 
the details of which are shown below: 

    Amount in ' 000 NPR 

S. No. Particulars Amount Percentage  
Regulatory 

Limit 
(%) 

1. Fixed Deposit - Com/ 
Infrastructure Development Bank 14,320,000 59.82% Min 30% 

2. Fixed Deposit - Development Bank 2,143,000 8.95% Max 10% 
3. Bond / Debenture of BFIs 5,275,360 22.04% Max 30% 
4. Shares of Listed Co. 1,294,309 5.41% Max 10% 
5. Units of CIT & Mutual Fund 508,750 2.13% Max 5% 
6. Infrastructure Sector 202,000 0.84% Max 10% 

7. Venture Capital / Private Equity 
Fund 195,000 0.81% Max 1.5% 

 Total 23,938,419 100.00%  

— 158 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



All the investments comply with regulatory limits as stated in the above table. The above amount 
represents the investment at cost. A significant portion of investments in fixed deposits provide 
stability. The loan portfolio of the company accounts for 4% of total assets, which is primarily 
comprised of loans to policyholders, which are secured against their policies. This not only 
enhances customer relationships by addressing their financial needs but also manages risk 
effectively. These loans are considered high-quality assets because they are extended to a 
maximum of 90% of the policy's cash surrender value. Additionally, these loans are reassessed 
if the amount recovered exceeds 90% of the surrender value, and they are forfeited if the loan 
plus interest surpasses this threshold, ensuring that the risk exposure remains controlled. 

With 2% of assets held in cash and cash equivalents, Citizen Life maintains sufficient liquidity 
to meet short-term obligations and capitalize on investment opportunities as they arise. At 1% 
of total assets, deferred tax assets represent an important component of the company’s asset 
base which can provide future tax benefits, contributing positively to the company’s financial 
performance. 

The asset quality of the company is robust, with a strategic focus on investments that drive 
financial performance while maintaining a prudent risk profile. This asset composition positions 
the company well to meet policyholder obligations, support business growth, and deliver value 
to shareholders. 
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l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld ]̂* 
 

sDkgLsf] cfly{s jif{ 2081÷082 sf] ljQLo ljj/)f gjf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;ef k|of]hgsf] nflu k|sfzg 
ug{ g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ :jLs[lt k|bfg ubf{ tf]lsPsf zt{x?sf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltaf^ 
b]xfo adf]lhdsf] hjfkm kfl/t ul/Psf] % . 

1. sDkgLn] NFRS-17 Insurance Contract nfu' ug]{ ;DaGwdf sfo{of]hgf tof/ u/L ;f]xL adf]lhd 
sfo{ k|f/De ul/;s]sfn] NFRS-17 Insurance Contract nfu' ug{ sDkgL sl^j$ /x]sf] a]xf]/f 
cg"/f]w ub{%f+} .   

2. sDkgLn] ljQLo ljj/)FdF b]lvPsF] Unidentified Deposit /sdnFO{ klxrFg u/L n]vF°g ug{] ;+oGq 
/x]sf], ;f]xL adf]lhd lgoldt lx;fa ldnFg ug]{ sFo{ eO/x]sF] cg"/f]w ub}{ tL /sdnFO{ GoúgLs/)F 
ub}{ eljiodF To:tF /sd pTkGg gxÚg] ;ÚlglZrt ug{] k|lta$tF JoQm ub{%f+} . 

3. sDkgLn] k"gaL{ds;+usf] n]gfb]gf lx;fa /fkm;fkm ug{ k"gaL{ds;+u kqfrf/ u/L n]gfb]gf lx;fa 
/fkm;fkm ug{ cg"/f]w ul/Psf] a]xf]/f ;fb/ cg"/f]w ub{%f}+ . 

4. sDkgLsf] cfly{s jif{sf] rf}yf] q}dfl;s cjlwsf] q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/)f / jflif{s ljQLo ljj/)fsf] 
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss tyf Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income sf] ljleGg lzif{sx?df bz k|ltzt eGbf a(L /sdn] km/s ePsf] ljj/)f jflif{s ljj/)fdf 
;dfj]z ul/Psf] / cfufdL jif{b]lv ;f] km/s Go'gLs/)f ul/g]] k|lta$tf JoQm ub{%f}+ .  

5. sDkgLn] hf]lvdf°g tyf bfaL e"QmfgL nufot cGo ljefu tyf sfo{ ;DaGwL !fg, sfo{bIftf 
tyf pTkfbsTj clej[l$ ug{ lg/Gt/ ?kdf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ cfGtl/s tyf afx\o tflnd tyf k|lzIf)f 
k|bfg ug"{sf ;fy} pNn]lvt ljefu tyf zfvf÷pkzfvf sfof{nox?df sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ qmda$ 
?kdf clVtof/L k|Tofof]hg ug]{ ul/Psf] / sDkgLsf] hf]lvdf°g tyf bfaL e"QmfgL k|lqmofnfO{ cem 
k|efjsf/L agfO{ sfof{Gjog ug{ k|lta$ /x]sf] a]xf]/f cg"/f]w ub{%f}+ . 

6. sDkgLn] jflif{s ljj/)f tof/ ubf{ k|flws/)faf^ ldlt 2081÷07÷13 ut] hF/L kl/kq -g]=aL=k|F= 
95 -2081÷082_ r=g+= 2040 - lj=lj=zF= 1_ adF]lhdsF aÚ+bFx? ;dFj]z ug]{ a]xf]/f ;fb/ 
cg"/f]w ub{%f}+ . 

7. sDkgLn] n]vfk/LIf)f ;ldltnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfO{ cfGtl/s lgoGq)f k|)ffnLnfO{ ;"b[( agfpg, 
n]vfk/LIf)fsf qmddf b]lvPsf s}lkmotx? ;"wf/ ug{ tyf pQm s}lkmotx? k"gM bf]xf]l/g glbg 
cfjZos of]hgf agfP/ sfo{ ug]{ k|lta$tf JoQm ub{%f}+ 

8. g]kfn aLdf k|flws/)faf^ ljQLo ljj/)f :jLs[t ePsf] 60 lbg leq ;fwf/)f ;ef ;DkGg ug]{ 
Joj:yf -;fwf/)f ;ef x"g] ldlt 2082÷08÷18 ut]_ ldnfOPsf] a]xf]/f cg"/f]w ub{%f}+ . 
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COMPARISON OF SOLVENCY BALANCE SHEET AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

Particulars Audited Financial 
Statement 

Solvency Balance 
Sheet 

Assets   
Investment and loan assets  25,453,456,823   28,085,000,807  
Reinsurance receivable and assets  35,773,123   35,696,098  
Deferred tax assets  295,003,011   -   
Current assets  587,858,013   587,858,013  
Other assets  1,365,522,473   1,599,726,245  
Total assets  27,737,613,443   30,308,281,162  
Liabilities   

Technical provision  19,738,157,762   21,895,149,078  
Deferred tax liability  -    362,882,985  
Other liabilities  799,910,586   702,501,374  
Total liabilities  20,538,068,347   22,960,533,437  
Excess of assets over liabilities  7,199,545,096   7,347,747,725  

 

SOLVENCY CALCULATION 

Solvency Situation and Minimum Capital Requirement 
Particulars Amount 
Risk-Based Capital requirement 3,914,231,519  
Total Solvency Available Capital Resources 6,762,299,469  
Solvency surplus/deficit 2,848,067,951  
Solvency ratio 172.8% 

Supervisory Target Capital level 
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) 1,304,743,840  
Tier 1 covering MCR 6,629,838,696  
Tier 2 covering MCR  132,460,773  
MCR surplus/deficit 5,457,555,630  
MCR ratio 518.3% 

 
Statement of Risk Based Capital (RBC) 

Particulars Amount 
Market Risk 3,183,203,111  
Counterparty Default Risk  91,582,077  
Life Insurance Risk 1,033,188,451  
Sum of capital charges 4,307,973,639  
Aggregation with correlations 3,611,944,766  
Diversification benefits  696,028,873  
Operational risk before floor/cap  302,286,753  
Operational risk after floor/cap  302,286,753  
Total Risk-Based Capital 3,914,231,519  
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STATEMENT OF AVAILABLE CAPITAL 

Statement of Available Capital Resources (ACR) 
Tier 1 Capital 
 (capital resources that absorb losses on a going-concern basis and in 
winding-up basis) 

Solvency 
Balance Sheet 

Excess of assets over liability as per Solvency Balance Sheet  7,347,747,725  
Add:  Paid-in (paid-up) subordinated debts qualified as tier 1 Available 
Capital Resources 

 -   

Less: Revaluation reserve  -   
Less: CSR Reserve  (6,335,879) 
Less: Fair value reserve  (7,932,724) 
Less: Actuarial reserve  -   
Less: Excess of deferred tax reserve shown in equity of 02.01 BS over 
deferred tax assets as per Financial Statement 

 (26,442,413) 

Less: Assets pledged by the insurer when the facility guaranteed is not in 
the liability side of the solvency balance sheet 

 -   

Less: Credit Facilities granted by the insurer and secured by its own shares 
when the facility is not in the liability side 

 -   

Less: Direct and indirect investments, reciprocal cross holdings, arranged 
either directly or indirectly between financial institutions 

 -   

Less: Assets not valued at nil whose valuation in the solvency balance 
sheet should not increase the Available Capital Resources 

 (544,737,239) 

Less: Deduction as per para 66(6) of Risk-Based Capital and Solvency 
Directive if not valued at nil in solvency balance sheet 

 -   

Less: Deduction as per para 66(7) of Risk-Based Capital and Solvency 
Directive if not valued at nil in solvency balance sheet 

 -   

Less: Embedded profit if already included in surplus i.e. excess of assets 
over liability as per 02.01 BS 

 (132,460,773) 

Tier 1 - Total before limits 6,629,838,696 
  

Tier 2 Capital 
(capital resources that absorb losses only in winding-up basis) 

Solvency 
Balance Sheet 

Cumulative irredeemable preference shares qualified as tier 2 Available 
Capital Resources - 

Irredeemable subordinated debts qualified as tier 2 Available Capital 
Resources - 

Other capital resources qualified as Tier 2, including unpaid preference 
shares, unpaid subordinated debt, letters of credit, guarantees and mutual 
member calls 

- 

Future profits embedded in the valuation of technical provisions (reserves) 132,460,773 
Tier 2 - Total before limits 132,460,773 
Total Solvency Available Capital Resources 6,762,299,469 
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COMMUNICATION MECHANISM WITH THE STAKEHOLDERS 

Citizen Life has established a structured and proactive communication framework to ensure that 
accurate, timely, and relevant information is shared consistently. Through multiple formal and 
informal channels, we strive to foster trust, accountability, and long-term relationships with 
policyholders, employees, agents, regulators, investors, and the broader public. The following 
outlines the key mechanisms adopted by the Company to facilitate open and effective stakeholder 
communication. 

 We maintain open, timely, and accessible channels with our key stakeholder groups, including 
policyholders, employees, agents, regulators, investors, and other relevant parties. 

 Our website serves as the central repository for public disclosures, including annual reports, 
quarterly financial statements, bonus rates, statutory notices, and other material information. 

 We have appointed a dedicated Information Officer (name and contact details published on our 
website) responsible for managing stakeholder queries and coordinating regulatory 
disclosures. 

 In the event of business changes or significant events that may influence stakeholder decisions, 
we ensure prompt submission of required information to regulatory bodies and make it available 
to the public through appropriate communication channels. 

 Stakeholders can reach us via multiple direct channels: phone, e-mail, WhatsApp, formal letter, 
or our social media pages. 

 We also issue press releases to announce important corporate developments, business 
updates, or other material information to the public and media, ensuring timely and transparent 
communication. 

GRIEVANCE HANDLING MECHANISMS 

Citizen Life has designated a manager level employee as the Grievance Officer / Nodal Officer in 
compliance with the circular issued by NIA regarding grievance management, whose contact 
information is easily available on the company’s website, enabling customers to connect with the 
officer for a seamless grievance resolution process.  

The grievance resolution process at Citizen Life begins when a policyholder, shareholder, investor, 
or any other relevant stakeholders file a complaint through various available channels, such as 
email, phone, or physical submission of an application. Upon receipt of a complaint, the grievance 
handling officer records the details of the issue and forwards it to the relevant department or 
representative within the company for further action. The grievance officer, in collaboration with 
the concerned parties, thoroughly investigates the matter to fully comprehend the situation. Once 
the issue has been assessed, the grievance officer, upon the severity of the case, communicates 
the matter to the senior management, if required along with the appropriate solutions to resolve 
the matter and communi0cates those solutions to the complainant. Throughout the process, the 
company strives to ensure that each grievance is handled in a timely and effective manner, 
fostering a strong relationship with its stakeholders and maintaining a high level of customer trust 
and satisfaction.  

The grievance handling mechanism of the company does not just end upon a settlement of a 
particular grievance because the company believes in continuous improvement by identifying 
areas for improvement. 

INFORMATION ABOUT CREDIT RATING 

Based on the key financial indicators, strengths, challenges, management and other factors, credit 
rating agency ICRA Nepal Limited on August 21, 2025 has given the company a moderately safe 
rating of “[ICRANP-IR] BBB+ (Pronounced as ICRA NP Issuer Rating Triple B plus)” indicating 
moderate degree of safety in the timely servicing of financial obligations. The affirmed rating has 
been based on the good ownership and management profile and good quality of investment and 
satisfactory reinsurance arrangement. 
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’s major promoters 

Amounts in NPR million FY2021 
(Audited)

FY2022 
(Audited)

FY2023 
(Audited)

FY2024 
(Audited)

9MFY2025 
(Provisional)

FY2025 
(Provisional)

Number of months in operation 12 12 12 12 9 12
First year premium (FYP) 1,863 2,425 1,651 1,627 1,129 -
Renewal premium (RP) 1,464 2,577 3,948 4,254 3,574 -
Single premium (SP) 200 313 295 334 379 -
Total gross premium (TGP) 3,527 5,315 5,893 6,215 5,083 7,548
Net premium 3,420 5,014 5,482 5,842 4,816 7,132
Premium on endowment policies  3,242 4,522 5,067 5,615 4,554 -
% share of endowment in total premium 92% 85% 86% 90% 90% -
Premium on term policies 285 793 826 577 482 -
% share in total premium 8% 15% 14% 10% 10% -
Total management expenses 649 772 578 656 494 -
Management expenses as a % of gross premium 18% 15% 10% 11% 10% -
Total investment (including policy loans) 5,996 8,847 12,762 19,890 23,733 25,093
Yield on investment 10.7% 10.1% 10.5% 10.4% 9.2% 9.0%
Life fund 3,517 6,765 10,204 14,423 18,103 19,998
Profit after tax 305 376 103 430 357 425
Return on equity 12.2% 13.3% 2.9% 7.8% 6.6% 5.9%
Solvency margin 2.29 2.50 1.35* 3.42 NA NA

while CLI’s IPO was concluded after the deadline.

— 172 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷)*@ — 173 —



— 174 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



— 175 —



— 176 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷)*@ — 177 —



— 178 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷)*@ — 179 —



— 180 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



11 lljj//ff^̂gguu// 22 ssff&&ddff**ff}}
lj/f^gu/ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, dx]Gb| rf]s, df]/ª  sf&df*f} dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++= 11, yfkfynL, sf&df*f}
;Dks{ g+= 021–572639, 9852077277 ;Dks{ g+= 01–5970217, 9857017200
ladn s'df/ jfUn] ;'lgn kf]v/]n
bimal.wagle@citizenlifenepal.com sunil.pokharel@citizenlifenepal.com 

33 gg]]kkffnnuu++hh 44 xx]]̂̂ ff}}**ff
g]kfnu+h pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++= 02, sf/sf+bf] rf]s, af+s] x]̂ f}+*f pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++= 10, ^L=;L=Pg= /f]*, a;kfs{, dsjfgk'/
;Dks{ g+= 081–590287, 9858042140 ;Dks{ g+= 057–521596, 9855087696
wf]h axfb'/ v*\sf lzj s'df/ sfsL{
dhoj.khadka@citizenlifenepal.com shiva.karki@citizenlifenepal.com

11 ssff]]zzLL  kk||bb]]zz 22 ddww]]zz  kk||bb]]zz
k|fb]lzs sfof{no–O^x/L k|fb]lzs sfof{no–ldr}{of
O^x/L pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, w/fg :^of)*, ;'g;/L     ldr}{of gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, s^f/L rf]s, l;/xf 
;Dks{ g+= 025–583241, 9852060614  ;Dks{ g+= 033–550112, 9852077277
/fd axfb'/ vqL ladn s'df/ jfUn]
ram.khatry@citizenlifenepal.com bimal.wagle@citizenlifenepal.com

33 aaffuuddttLL  kk||bb]]zz 44 uu))**ssLL  kk||bb]]zz
k|fb]lzs sfof{no–x]̂ f+}*f k|fb]lzs sfof{no–kf]v/f
x]̂ f}+*f pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++= 10, ^L=;L=Pg= /f]*, a;kfs{, dsjfgk'/ kf]v/f n]vgfy dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, gof+ahf/, sf:sL 
;Dks{ g+= 057–521596, 9855087696 ;Dks{ g+= 061–552048, 9856088543
lzj s'df/ sfsL{ %ljnfn kf}*]n
shiva.karki@citizenlifenepal.com chhabi.poudel@citizenlifenepal.com

55 nn''llDDaaggLL  kk||bb]]zz 66 ss))ffff{{nnLL  kk||bb]]zz  
k|fb]lzs sfof{no–a'̂ jn k|fb]lzs sfof{no–lj/]Gb|gu/
a'̂ jn pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++ 06, xl:k^n nfO{g, ?kGb]xL lj/]Gb|gu/ gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 06, lj/]Gb|gu/, ;'v]{t 
;Dks{ g+= 071–539604, 9857017200 ;Dks{ g+= 083–520571, 9857017307
;'lgn kf]v/]n nId)f d/fl;gL
sunil.pokharel@citizenlifenepal.com laxman.marasini@citizenlifenepal.com

77 ;;''bb''//kkllZZrrdd  kk||bb]]zz  
k|fb]lzs sfof{no–wgu(L
wgu(L pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++= 02, a;kfs{, s}nfnL
;Dks{ g+= 091–417399, 9858042140
wf]h axfb'/ v*\sf
dhoj.khadka@citizenlifenepal.com

11 llaattff{{ddff]]**                  22 OO^̂xx//LL
latf{df]* gu/kflnsf j*f g+=05, /fd afa' dfu{, emfkf O^x/L pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, w/fg :^of)*, ;'g;/L     
;Dks{ g+= 023–533742, 9852656226 ;Dks{ g+= 025–583241, 9852060614  
pQd sf]O/fnf /fd axfb'/ vqL 
uttam.koirala@citizenlifenepal.com ram.khatry@citizenlifenepal.com

33 aallbb{{aaff;; 44 hhggsskk''//
alb{af; gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, l;Gw'nL /f]*, dxf]Q/L hgsk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 02, efg'rf]s, wg'iff
;Dks{ g+= 044–550726, 9854029539  ;Dks{ g+= 041–590870, 9854029762
;/f]h bfxfn cfsfz kf)*]
saroj.dahal@citizenlifenepal.com akash.pandey@citizenlifenepal.com

55 aaffnnffhh''  66 aaffgg]]ZZjj//
sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 16, afnfh' rf]s, sf&df*f}+ sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 31 z+vd'n, sf&df*f}+  
;Dks{ g+= 4982863, 9851246982 ;Dks{ g+= 4796828, 9851248847
lji)f' k|;fb ;fksf]̂ f lbk]Gb| zdf{ nD;fn
bishnu.sapkota@citizenlifenepal.com dipendra.lamsal@citizenlifenepal.com

77 ssffllGGttkkyy 88 kkff]]vv//ff
sf&df*f}+ dxfu/kflnsf j*f g+= 27, sflGtky, sf&df*f}+ kf]v/f n]vgfy dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, gof+ahf/, sf:sL 
;Dks{ g+= 5354992, 9851417179 ;Dks{ g+= 061–552048, 9856088543
d'/nL e)*f/L %ljnfn kf}*]n
murali.bhandari@citizenlifenepal.com chhabi.poudel@citizenlifenepal.com

99 aa''̂̂ jjnn 1100 ee}}//xxjjff
a'̂ jn pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++= 06, xl:k^n nfO{g, ?kGb]xL l;$fy{gu/ gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 09, e}/xjf, ?kGb]xL
;Dks{ g+= 071–539604, 9857017400 ;Dks{ g+= 071–570126, 9857017300   
b'uf{ /fh (sfn g/]z l;Ub]n
durgaraj.dhakal@citizenlifenepal.com naresh.sigdel@citizenlifenepal.com

ssDDkkggLLssff  ssffooff{{nnoo  ttyyff  ;;DDkkss{{  JJoollQQmmxx??
IIff]]qqLLoo  ssffooff{{nnooxx??

IIff]]qqLLoo  zzffvvff  ssffooff{{nnooxx??

kk||ffbb]]llzzss  ssffooff{{nnooxx??

1111 wwgguu((LL 1122 lljj//]]GGbb||gguu//        
wgu(L pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++= 02, a;kfs{, s}nfnL lj/]Gb|gu/ gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 06, lj/]Gb|gu/, ;'v]{t 
;Dks{ g+= 091–417399, 9858480688 ;Dks{ g+= 083–520571, 9857017307 
u+uf /fd hf]zL nId)f d/fl;gL
ganga.joshi@citizenlifenepal.com laxman.marasini@citizenlifenepal.com

1133 ll^̂ssffkk''//
l^sfk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, l;¢fy{{ rf]s, s}nfnL
;Dks{ g+= 091–560715, 9858428428
;'/h sfk\mn] 
suraj.kafle@citizenlifenepal.com
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11 ttffKKnn]]hh''ªª 22 vvff++bbjjff//LL
km'ªlnª gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, la/]Gb| rf]s, tfKn]h'ª vf+bjf/L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, ;hs ^f]n, ;+v'jf;ef
;Dks{ g+= 024–460542, 9852660351 ;Dks{ g+= 029–562829, 9852099966
zld{nf e)*f/L cd[t /fO{
sarmila.bhandari@citizenlifenepal.com amrit.rai@citizenlifenepal.com

33 ;;ff]]nn''vv''DDaa'' 44 ccff]]vvnn((''''''ªª\\uuff  
;f]n' b'ws')* gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, ;f]n'v'Da' l;l$r/)f gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, /dfO{nf]*f+*f, cf]vn('ª\uf
;Dks{ g+= 038–520187, 9852885050 ;Dks{ g+= 037–520698, 9852840698  
g/]Gb| s'n'ª nf]s]Gb| sfsL{
narendra.khulung@citizenlifenepal.com lokendra.karkee@citizenlifenepal.com

55 eeff]]hhkk''//  66 wwggss''̂̂ ff      
ef]hk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, a}+s/f]*, ef]hk'/  wgs'̂ f gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, lqj])fL ljBfno ;fO*, wgs'̂ f
;Dks{ g+= 029–420686, 9852088885 ;Dks{ g+= 026–523808, 9852072172 
ch'{g tfdfª afn s'df/ km+'ofn
arjun.tamang@citizenlifenepal.com bal.phuyal@citizenlifenepal.com

77 llkkmmllbbdd                        88 OOnnffdd        
lkmlbd gu/kflnsf j*F g+= 01, a'$dfu{, kf+ry/ ;"of]{bo gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, dfnfky, Onfd
;Dks{ g+= 024–522021, 9852656226 ;Dks{ g+= 027–524585, 9852685900 
pQd sf]O/fnf ;'zfGt rfkfufO{
uttam.koirala@citizenlifenepal.com sushanta.chapagain@citizenlifenepal.com

99 bbddss                  1100 rrGGbb||uu((LL
bds gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, bds rf]s, emfkf eb|k'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, rGb|u(L, emfkf 
;Dks{ g+= 023–572258, 9852660700 ;Dks{ g+= 023–452230, 9852621986
/f]zg a:g]t ljlkg /fO{ 
roshan.basnet@citizenlifenepal.com bipin.rai@citizenlifenepal.com 

1111 ww''nnffaaff//LL 1122 lljj//ff^̂gguu//                  
d]rLgu/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+ 10, w'nfaf/L, emfkf lj/f^gu/ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, dx]Gb| rf]s, df]/ª  
;Dks{ g+= 023–564314, 9852629980 ;Dks{ g+= 021–572639, 9852039339
lgtf b]jL clwsf/L s]bf/ k|;fb Gof}kfg]
nita.adhikari@citizenlifenepal.com kedar.nyoupane@citizenlifenepal.com 

1133 llaa//ff^̂rrff]]ss 1144 kkyy//LL
;'Gb/x/}rf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 10, la/f^rf]s, df]/Ñ ky/L zlg:r/] gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, ky/L ahf/, df]/ª
;Dks{ g+= 021–547172, 9852045483 ;Dks{ g+= 021–555455, 9852080235 
l/t]z uh'/]n ljho s'df/ ofvf
 ritesh.gajurel@citizenlifenepal.com bijay.yakha@citizenlifenepal.com

1155 llaattff{{ddff]]**              1166 OO^̂xx//LL
latf{df]* gu/kflnsf j*f g+=05, /fd afa' dfu{, emfkf O^x/L pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 09, c:ktfn nfOg, ;'g;/L     
;Dks{ g+= 023–533742, 9852644061 ;Dks{ g+= 025–583241, 9852075546
hd'gf b]jL s '̂jfn hfg'sf wdnf
jamuna.katuwal@citizenlifenepal.com januka.dhamala@citizenlifenepal.com

1177 OOgg??jjff                1188 rrqqmm##§§LL
Og?jf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, sdn ^flsh ejg, ;'g;/L a/fxIf]q gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, rqm#§L, ;'g;/L
;Dks{ g+= 025–566397, 9852043153 ;Dks{ g+= 025–551157, 9852086168
n'gf/fh lg/f}nf !fg]z >]i&
lunaraj.niraula@citizenlifenepal.com  gyanesh.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com 

1199 tt//xx//ff 2200 eemm''DDssff  
O^x/L pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 20, t/x/f ahf/, ;'g;/L /fdw'gL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, em'Dsf ahf/, ;'g;/L
;Dks{ g+= 025–475020, 9852044014 ;Dks{ g+= 025–562110, 9852061659  
;'hg >]i&  lnnf /fh (sfn
sujan.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com  lila.dhakal@citizenlifenepal.com 

zzffvvff÷÷ppkkzzffvvff  ssffooff{{nnooxx??

ssff]]ZZffLL  kk||bb]]zz

2211 ww//ffgg 2222 uuffOO{{##ff^̂              
w/fg pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 09, k'tnL nfOg, ;'g;/L lqo'uf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, ufO{#f^, pbok'/
;Dks{ g+= 025–ÑÑ570579, 9852060579 ;Dks{ g+= 035–422228, 9852832037
vu]Gb| tf]nfª d~h' s'df/L yfkf
khagendra.tolang@citizenlifenepal.com manju.thapa@citizenlifenepal.com

2233 ss^̂ff//LL  
s^f/L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, sfG%Lahf/, pbok'/  
;Dks{ g+= 035–450309, 9854077691
lrq axfb'/ yfkf du/
chitra.magar@citizenlifenepal.com 

2244 ss~~rrggkk''//  2255 //ffhhllaa//ffhh
s~rgk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, a]l/o/, ;Kt/L /fhla/fh gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, s~rgk'/ /f]*, ;Kt/L
;Dks{ g+= 031–560661, 9852860009   ;Dks{ g+= 031–531219, 9852821355 
;lrg /fpt >LsfGt ;fx
sachin.raut@citizenlifenepal.com shreekant.sah@citizenlifenepal.com

2266 llddrr{{}}ooff  2277 nnxxffgg          
ldr}{of gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, s^f/L rf]s, l;/xf nxfg gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 03, nxfg ahf/, l;/xf
;Dks{ g+= 033–550112, 9852823241 ;Dks{ g+= 033–563389, 9852831002  
wd{ b]j bf; u+uf /fd ofba 
dharam.das@citizenlifenepal.com gangaram.yadav@citizenlifenepal.com

2288 ll;;//xxffaahhff//  2299 uuff]]nnaahhff//
l;/xf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, l;/xfahf/, l;/xf uf]nahf/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, uf]nahf/, l;/xf
;Dks{ g+= 033–520800, 9852834835 ;Dks{ g+= 033–540618, 9852833379
cdf]b uf]lxaf/ ;'o{ gf/fo)f rf}w/L
amod.gohiwar@citizenlifenepal.com surya.chaudhary@citizenlifenepal.com

3300 ddxx]]GGbb||gguu//  --wwgg''iiffff__ 3311 hhnn]]ZZjj//        
lIf/]Zj/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, dx]Gb|gu/, wg'iff hn]Zj/gfy gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, hn]Zj/, dxf]Q/L
;Dks{ g+= 9854029762 ;Dks{ g+= 044–520736, 9854029738 
cfsfz kf)*] /Tg]z s'df/ s)f{
akash.pandey@citizenlifenepal.com ratnesh.karn@citizenlifenepal.com

3322 aallbb{{aaff;;        3333 ddnn++uujjff
alb{af; gu/kflnsf j*f g+ 01, l;Gw'nL /f]*, dxf]Q/L dn+ujf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 10, dn+ujf, ;nf{xL
;Dks{ g+= 044–550726, 9854026351  ;Dks{ g+= 046–521778, 9854044451
/f]lxt k|;fb e§/fO{ ;f}/e s'df/ l;+x
rohit.bhattarai@citizenlifenepal.com saurav.singh@citizenlifenepal.com

3344 aa//xxyyjjff 3355 nnffnnaaGGbbLL
a/xyjf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, a/xyjf, ;nf{xL nfnaGbL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, nfnaGbL, ;nf{xL
;Dks{ g+= 046–540521, 9854044450 ;Dks{ g+= 046–501741, 9854042506 
lw/]Gb| s'df/ l;+x cldt s'df/ &fs'/
dhirendra.singh@citizenlifenepal.com amit.thakur@citizenlifenepal.com

3366 hhggsskk''//        3377 rrGGbb||llgguuffxxkk''//        
hgsk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, efg'rf]s, wg'iff rGb|k'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, rGb|lgufxk'/, /f}tx^
;Dks{ g+= 041–590870, 9854025901 ;Dks{ g+= 055–540419, 9855041738
c/ljGb s'df/ emf cd/]Gb| s'df/ ofbj
arbind.jha@citizenlifenepal.com amendra.yadav@citizenlifenepal.com

3388 ssnn}}ooff 3399 aaLL//uu++hh      
sn}of pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, sn}of, af/f aL/u+h dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, lns/f]*, k;f{
;Dks{ g+= 053–550326, 9855049495  ;Dks{ g+= 051–534056, 9855037846
;+ho s'df/ /]UdL lg/h s'df/ pkfWofo a|fDx)f
sanjay.regmi@citizenlifenepal.com niraj.upadhyay@citizenlifenepal.com

ddww]]zz  kk||bb]]zz  
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2211 ww//ffgg 2222 uuffOO{{##ff^̂              
w/fg pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 09, k'tnL nfOg, ;'g;/L lqo'uf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, ufO{#f^, pbok'/
;Dks{ g+= 025–ÑÑ570579, 9852060579 ;Dks{ g+= 035–422228, 9852832037
vu]Gb| tf]nfª d~h' s'df/L yfkf
khagendra.tolang@citizenlifenepal.com manju.thapa@citizenlifenepal.com

2233 ss^̂ff//LL  
s^f/L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, sfG%Lahf/, pbok'/  
;Dks{ g+= 035–450309, 9854077691
lrq axfb'/ yfkf du/
chitra.magar@citizenlifenepal.com 

2244 ss~~rrggkk''//  2255 //ffhhllaa//ffhh
s~rgk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, a]l/o/, ;Kt/L /fhla/fh gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, s~rgk'/ /f]*, ;Kt/L
;Dks{ g+= 031–560661, 9852860009   ;Dks{ g+= 031–531219, 9852821355 
;lrg /fpt >LsfGt ;fx
sachin.raut@citizenlifenepal.com shreekant.sah@citizenlifenepal.com

2266 llddrr{{}}ooff  2277 nnxxffgg          
ldr}{of gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, s^f/L rf]s, l;/xf nxfg gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 03, nxfg ahf/, l;/xf
;Dks{ g+= 033–550112, 9852823241 ;Dks{ g+= 033–563389, 9852831002  
wd{ b]j bf; u+uf /fd ofba 
dharam.das@citizenlifenepal.com gangaram.yadav@citizenlifenepal.com

2288 ll;;//xxffaahhff//  2299 uuff]]nnaahhff//
l;/xf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, l;/xfahf/, l;/xf uf]nahf/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, uf]nahf/, l;/xf
;Dks{ g+= 033–520800, 9852834835 ;Dks{ g+= 033–540618, 9852833379
cdf]b uf]lxaf/ ;'o{ gf/fo)f rf}w/L
amod.gohiwar@citizenlifenepal.com surya.chaudhary@citizenlifenepal.com

3300 ddxx]]GGbb||gguu//  --wwgg''iiffff__ 3311 hhnn]]ZZjj//        
lIf/]Zj/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, dx]Gb|gu/, wg'iff hn]Zj/gfy gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, hn]Zj/, dxf]Q/L
;Dks{ g+= 9854029762 ;Dks{ g+= 044–520736, 9854029738 
cfsfz kf)*] /Tg]z s'df/ s)f{
akash.pandey@citizenlifenepal.com ratnesh.karn@citizenlifenepal.com

3322 aallbb{{aaff;;        3333 ddnn++uujjff
alb{af; gu/kflnsf j*f g+ 01, l;Gw'nL /f]*, dxf]Q/L dn+ujf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 10, dn+ujf, ;nf{xL
;Dks{ g+= 044–550726, 9854026351  ;Dks{ g+= 046–521778, 9854044451
/f]lxt k|;fb e§/fO{ ;f}/e s'df/ l;+x
rohit.bhattarai@citizenlifenepal.com saurav.singh@citizenlifenepal.com

3344 aa//xxyyjjff 3355 nnffnnaaGGbbLL
a/xyjf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, a/xyjf, ;nf{xL nfnaGbL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, nfnaGbL, ;nf{xL
;Dks{ g+= 046–540521, 9854044450 ;Dks{ g+= 046–501741, 9854042506 
lw/]Gb| s'df/ l;+x cldt s'df/ &fs'/
dhirendra.singh@citizenlifenepal.com amit.thakur@citizenlifenepal.com

3366 hhggsskk''//        3377 rrGGbb||llgguuffxxkk''//        
hgsk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, efg'rf]s, wg'iff rGb|k'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, rGb|lgufxk'/, /f}tx^
;Dks{ g+= 041–590870, 9854025901 ;Dks{ g+= 055–540419, 9855041738
c/ljGb s'df/ emf cd/]Gb| s'df/ ofbj
arbind.jha@citizenlifenepal.com amendra.yadav@citizenlifenepal.com

3388 ssnn}}ooff 3399 aaLL//uu++hh      
sn}of pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, sn}of, af/f aL/u+h dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, lns/f]*, k;f{
;Dks{ g+= 053–550326, 9855049495  ;Dks{ g+= 051–534056, 9855037846
;+ho s'df/ /]UdL lg/h s'df/ pkfWofo a|fDx)f
sanjay.regmi@citizenlifenepal.com niraj.upadhyay@citizenlifenepal.com

ddww]]zz  kk||bb]]zz  

4400 rrll//ssff]]̂̂   4411 dd]]nnDDrrLL  
eLd]Zj/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, ;ftbf]af^f] rf]s, rl/sf]̂ , bf]nvf d]nDrL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, d]nDrL ahf/, l;Gw'kfNrf]s
;Dks{ g+= 049–421418, 9854022688 ;Dks{ g+= 011–401153, 9851211359
ladn >]i& las]z >]i& 
bimal.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com bikesh.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com 

4422 wwffllbbéé 4433 gg''jjffssff]]̂̂
lgns)& gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 03, zfGtahf/, wflbéa];L lab'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, a§F/, g'jfsf]̂
;Dks{ g+= 010–520410, 9851160410 ;Dks{ g+= 010–561974, 9851227915 
?ks tfdfª sljtf >]i&
rupak.tamang@citizenlifenepal.com kabita.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com

4444 aaffgg]]ZZjj//        4455 ssffllGGttkkyy
sf&df*f}+ dxfu/kflnsf j*f g+= 31, z+vd'n, sf&df*f}+  sf&df*f}+ dxfu/kflnsf j*f g+= 27, sflGtky, sf&df*f}+
;Dks{ g+= 4796828, 9851314755 ;Dks{ g+= 5354992, 9851247178
e/t clwsf/L  k|sfz s'df/ >]i&
bharat.adhikari@citizenlifenepal.com prakash.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com

4466 rrffjjllxxnn        4477 ssnn++ssLL        
sf&df*f}+ dxfu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, s]=Pn= ^fj/, rfjlxn, sf&df*f}+ sf&df*f}+ dxfu/kflnsf j*f g+= 14, sn+sL, sf&df*f}+
;Dks{ g+= 4583896, 9851227312 ;Dks{ g+= 5234647, 9851204099  
lzjxl/ >]i& ?k]z /fh sf]O/fnf 
shiva.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com rupesh.koirala@citizenlifenepal.com 

4488 aaffnnffhh''        4499 ^̂ff]]vvff  
sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 16, afnfh' rf]s, sf&df*f}+ ^f]vf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, vl/af]̂  rf]s, sf&df*f}+ 
;Dks{ g+= 4982863, 9851255400 ;Dks{ g+= 5110408, 9851254967
dlgiff tfdfÑ /fh s'df/ Gof}kfg]   
manisha.tamang@citizenlifenepal.com raj.neupane@citizenlifenepal.com 

5500 ddxxff//ffhhuu++hh  5511 hh//++vv''  
sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 03, dxf/fhu+h, sf&df*f}+ tf/s]Zj/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, h/+v', sf&df*f}+
;Dks{ g+= 4720784, 9851322012 ;Dks{ g+= 4025768, 9851214680 
lbks kf]v/]n /fh]Gb| l#ld/]
dipak.pokharel@citizenlifenepal.com rajendra.ghimire@citizenlifenepal.com 

5522 ssLLlltt{{kk''// 5533 yynnLL
sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 14, s'df/L Sna, aNv', sf&df*f}+  sfu]Zj/L dgx/f gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, ynL, sf&df*f}+
;Dks{ g+= 5904909, 9851311357 ;Dks{ g+= 5917559, 9851339109
klaqf l;Njfn ;'lag s'Os]n 
pabitra.silwal@citizenlifenepal.com subin.kuickel@citizenlifenepal.com

5544 dd}}llttbb]]jjLL 5555 ::jjooDDee''
sf&df*f} dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 29, d}ltb]jL, sf&df*f}  gfufh'{g gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, ;LtfkfO{nf, sf&df*f}  
;Dks{ g+= 4534050, 9851254059 ;Dks{ g+= 5314546, 9851325099
dR%] gf/fo)f >]i& sNkgf sfsL{ e)*f/L
machhe.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com kalpana.bhandari@citizenlifenepal.com

5566 ssff]]̂̂ ]]ZZjj//  5577 ;;tt''éénn  
sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 32, sf]̂ ]Zj/, sf&df*f}+ rGb|flu/L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, ;t'én, sF&df*f}+ 
;Dks{ g+= 5199591, 9851185231 ;Dks{ g+= 5108440, 9851253967  
x/L s'df/ sfsL{ ho l;+x ef^
hari.karki@citizenlifenepal.com jaya.bhat@citizenlifenepal.com

5588 ;;''oo{{lljjggffooss 5599 kk]]KK;;LLssff]]nnff  
dWok'/ lydL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, ;"o{ljgfos, eQmk'/ sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 32, k]K;Lsf]nf, sf&df*f}+
;Dks{ g+= 5092085, 9851247176 ;Dks{ g+= 5907605, 9851277914
k|ldnf k|hfklt /f]zg /fpt
pramila.prajapati@citizenlifenepal.com roshan.raut@citizenlifenepal.com

aaffuuddttLL  kk||bb]]zz
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6600 uu¶¶ff##// 6611 kkff^̂gg  
dWok'/ lydL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 03, u¶f#/, eQmk'/  nlntk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 12, nugv]n, nlntk'/
;Dks{ g+= 5911335, 9851318961 ;Dks{ g+= 5451226, 9851247181
eujtL yfkf cfzf e§
bhagawati.thapa@citizenlifenepal.com asha.bhatta@citizenlifenepal.com 

6622 yy}}aa  6633 OOddff**ff]]nn  
uf]bfj/L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 14, y}a, nlntk'/ dxfnIdL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, dxfnIdL, nlntk'/          
;Dks{ g+= 5907810, 9851255801 ;Dks{ g+= 5204822, 9851326675
;Hjn cfrfo{ t]h]Gb| ;'j]bL
sajjwol.acharya@citizenlifenepal.com tejendra.subedi@citizenlifenepal.com

6644 ee++}};;]]kkff^̂LL  6655 rrffkkffuuffpp++  bbff]]aaff^̂ff]]
nlntk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf j*F g+= 25, e+};]kf^L, nlntk'/ nlntk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf j*F g+= 15, rfkfufp+ bf]af^f], nlntk'/
;Dks{ g+= 5910223, 9851184914 ;Dks{ g+= 5151700, 9851118561
;lagf clwsf/L rGbg adf{
sabina.adhikari@citizenlifenepal.com chandan.verma@citizenlifenepal.com

6666 //ffdd]]%%ffkk 6677 aagg]]kkff  
dGynL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, b]jsf]̂ f rf]s, /fd]%fk ag]kf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, tLg bf]af^f], sfe|]knf~rf]s
;Dks{ g+= 048–540588,  9854022488 ;Dks{ g+= 011–664561, 9851248847  
/ldnf sfsL{ lbk]Gb| zdf{ nD;fn
ramila.karki@citizenlifenepal.com dipendra.lamsal@citizenlifenepal.com

6688 xx]]̂̂ ff}}++**ff        6699 ll;;GGww''nnLL
x]̂ f}+*f pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 10, ^L=;L=Pg= /f]*, a;kfs{, dsjfgk'/ sdnfdfO{ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, df*Lahf/, l;Gw'nL
;Dks{ g+= 057–521596, 9855027334 ;Dks{ g+= 047–521205,  9854042505
/fw]Zofd cfrfo{ s'df/L ;l/tf yfkf
radhe.acharya@citizenlifenepal.com kumari.thapa@citizenlifenepal.com

7700 ggff//ffoo))ffuu((        7711 ee))**ff//ff  
e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, zlxb rf]s, lrtjg /fKtL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, e)*f/f, lrtjg  
;Dks{ g+= 056–598105, 9855088228  ;Dks{ g+= 056-550149, 9855073501
uf]s)f{ axfb'/ sfsL{ If]qL lbj; l;njfn
gokarna.karki@citizenlifenepal.com diwas.silwal@citizenlifenepal.com

7722 ^̂ff++**LL 7733 rrggff}}nnLL  
/Tggu/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, ^f+*L, lrtjg  e/tk'/ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 18, rgf}nL, lrtjg
;Dks{ g+= 056–593257, 9855025132 ;Dks{ g+= 056-591352, 9855046452
pk]Gb| kf}*]n af;'b]j e)*f/L
upendra.paudel@citizenlifenepal.com basudev.bhandari@citizenlifenepal.com

7744 uuff]]//vvff  7755 DDooffUUbbLL
uf]/vsfnL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, x/fd^f/L, uf]/vf a]gL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, x'nfs rf]s, DofUbL 
;Dks{ g+= 064–420520, 9856043170 ;Dks{ g+= 069–521313, 9857661100  
xl/x/ cfrfo{ efjgf kf}*]n ;'j]bL 
harihar.acharya@citizenlifenepal.com bhawana.subedi@citizenlifenepal.com

7766 kkff]]vv//ff        7777 nn]]vvggffyy  
kf]v/f dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, gof+ahf/, sf:sL kf]v/f dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 27, n]vgfy, sf:sL
;Dks{ g+= 061–552048, 9856088544 ;Dks{ g+= 061–564949, 9856081213 
;l/tf kf]v/]n e§/fO{ ;la{Gb| Gof}kfg] 
sarita.bhattrai@citizenlifenepal.com sarbindra.neupane@citizenlifenepal.com

7788 xx]]DDhhff  7799 nnddhh''ªª
kf]v/f dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 25, x]Dhf, sf:sL a];Lzx/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, z]/f rf]s, ndh'ª
;Dks{ g+= 061–590449, 9856088542 ;Dks{ g+= 066–521386, 9856046800 
eujtL h};L lx/f #n]  
bhagwati.jaisi@citizenlifenepal.com hira.ghale@citizenlifenepal.com 

uu))**ssLL  kk||bb]]zz

4400 rrll//ssff]]̂̂   4411 dd]]nnDDrrLL  
eLd]Zj/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, ;ftbf]af^f] rf]s, rl/sf]̂ , bf]nvf d]nDrL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, d]nDrL ahf/, l;Gw'kfNrf]s
;Dks{ g+= 049–421418, 9854022688 ;Dks{ g+= 011–401153, 9851211359
ladn >]i& las]z >]i& 
bimal.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com bikesh.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com 

4422 wwffllbbéé 4433 gg''jjffssff]]̂̂
lgns)& gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 03, zfGtahf/, wflbéa];L lab'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, a§F/, g'jfsf]̂
;Dks{ g+= 010–520410, 9851160410 ;Dks{ g+= 010–561974, 9851227915 
?ks tfdfª sljtf >]i&
rupak.tamang@citizenlifenepal.com kabita.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com

4444 aaffgg]]ZZjj//        4455 ssffllGGttkkyy
sf&df*f}+ dxfu/kflnsf j*f g+= 31, z+vd'n, sf&df*f}+  sf&df*f}+ dxfu/kflnsf j*f g+= 27, sflGtky, sf&df*f}+
;Dks{ g+= 4796828, 9851314755 ;Dks{ g+= 5354992, 9851247178
e/t clwsf/L  k|sfz s'df/ >]i&
bharat.adhikari@citizenlifenepal.com prakash.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com

4466 rrffjjllxxnn        4477 ssnn++ssLL        
sf&df*f}+ dxfu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, s]=Pn= ^fj/, rfjlxn, sf&df*f}+ sf&df*f}+ dxfu/kflnsf j*f g+= 14, sn+sL, sf&df*f}+
;Dks{ g+= 4583896, 9851227312 ;Dks{ g+= 5234647, 9851204099  
lzjxl/ >]i& ?k]z /fh sf]O/fnf 
shiva.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com rupesh.koirala@citizenlifenepal.com 

4488 aaffnnffhh''        4499 ^̂ff]]vvff  
sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 16, afnfh' rf]s, sf&df*f}+ ^f]vf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, vl/af]̂  rf]s, sf&df*f}+ 
;Dks{ g+= 4982863, 9851255400 ;Dks{ g+= 5110408, 9851254967
dlgiff tfdfÑ /fh s'df/ Gof}kfg]   
manisha.tamang@citizenlifenepal.com raj.neupane@citizenlifenepal.com 

5500 ddxxff//ffhhuu++hh  5511 hh//++vv''  
sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 03, dxf/fhu+h, sf&df*f}+ tf/s]Zj/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, h/+v', sf&df*f}+
;Dks{ g+= 4720784, 9851322012 ;Dks{ g+= 4025768, 9851214680 
lbks kf]v/]n /fh]Gb| l#ld/]
dipak.pokharel@citizenlifenepal.com rajendra.ghimire@citizenlifenepal.com 

5522 ssLLlltt{{kk''// 5533 yynnLL
sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 14, s'df/L Sna, aNv', sf&df*f}+  sfu]Zj/L dgx/f gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, ynL, sf&df*f}+
;Dks{ g+= 5904909, 9851311357 ;Dks{ g+= 5917559, 9851339109
klaqf l;Njfn ;'lag s'Os]n 
pabitra.silwal@citizenlifenepal.com subin.kuickel@citizenlifenepal.com

5544 dd}}llttbb]]jjLL 5555 ::jjooDDee''
sf&df*f} dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 29, d}ltb]jL, sf&df*f}  gfufh'{g gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, ;LtfkfO{nf, sf&df*f}  
;Dks{ g+= 4534050, 9851254059 ;Dks{ g+= 5314546, 9851325099
dR%] gf/fo)f >]i& sNkgf sfsL{ e)*f/L
machhe.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com kalpana.bhandari@citizenlifenepal.com

5566 ssff]]̂̂ ]]ZZjj//  5577 ;;tt''éénn  
sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 32, sf]̂ ]Zj/, sf&df*f}+ rGb|flu/L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 11, ;t'én, sF&df*f}+ 
;Dks{ g+= 5199591, 9851185231 ;Dks{ g+= 5108440, 9851253967  
x/L s'df/ sfsL{ ho l;+x ef^
hari.karki@citizenlifenepal.com jaya.bhat@citizenlifenepal.com

5588 ;;''oo{{lljjggffooss 5599 kk]]KK;;LLssff]]nnff  
dWok'/ lydL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, ;"o{ljgfos, eQmk'/ sf&df*f}+ dxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 32, k]K;Lsf]nf, sf&df*f}+
;Dks{ g+= 5092085, 9851247176 ;Dks{ g+= 5907605, 9851277914
k|ldnf k|hfklt /f]zg /fpt
pramila.prajapati@citizenlifenepal.com roshan.raut@citizenlifenepal.com

aaffuuddttLL  kk||bb]]zz

8800 bb''nn]]uuff++}}**ff  8811 bbddff}}nnLL        
z'Snfu)*sL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, b'n]uf+}*f, tgx'+ Jof; gu/kflnsf j*f= g+= 02, bdf}nL, tgx'+
;Dks{ g+= 065–414471, 9856048280 ;Dks{ g+= 065–563985, 9856063985    
;'lgn ltldNl;gf /lj r/)f lu/L
 sunil.timilsina@citizenlifenepal.com rabi.giri@citizenlifenepal.com 

8822 lleeddffbb  8833 ssffjjff;;ff]]ttLL
ledfb gu/kflnsf j*f= g+= 06, ledfb, tgx'+ sfjf;f]tL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, OGb|rf]s, gjnk/f;L k"j{ 
;Dks{ g+= 065–572475,  9856088543 ;Dks{ g+= 078–540487, 9857017305  
dbg >]i& hut /fd (sfn   
madan.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com jagat.dhakal@citizenlifenepal.com 

8844 jjffllnnéé  8855 ss''ZZddff  
jflné gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, led^f/L, :oféhf s'Zdf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, wg]Zj/ rf]s, kj{t
;Dks{ g+=063–441059, 9856070059 ;Dks{ g+= 067–420653, 9857645653
;/f]h a:g]t   k'gd zdf{
saroj.basnet@citizenlifenepal.com punam.sharma@citizenlifenepal.com

8866 aaffUUnn''éé        8877 aa''lltt{{aaffªª
afUn'é gu/kflnsf j*f g+ 02, xNng rf]s, afUn'é (f]/kf^g gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, k|zF;g kmF+̂ , afUn'é
;Dks{ g+= 068–521297, 9857621800  ;Dks{ g+= 068–410275, 9857627275 
sdnf b]jL zdf{ rfkfufO{    %jLnfn kf)*]    
kamala.sharma@citizenlifenepal.com chhabi.pandey@citizenlifenepal.com

8888 //ff]]NNkkff  8899 llaahh''jjff//  
/f]Nkf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, lnjfª, /f]Nkf Ko"&fg gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, lah'jf/, Ko"&fg
;Dks{ g+= 086–440078, 9857886440 ;Dks{ g+= 086–460179, 9857886422
clgtf #lt{ du/ lbg]z sfsL{
anita.magar@citizenlifenepal.com dinesh.karki@citizenlifenepal.com

9900 ttDD##ff;;  9911 cc##ff{{vvff++rrLL        
/];'éf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, k'tnLahf/, u'NdL ;lGwvs{ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, zflGt au}+rf rf]s, c#f{vf+rL 
;Dks{ g+= 079–520860, 9857049888 ;Dks{ g+= 077–420422, 9857021052 
zld{nf kGy gf/fo)f #tL{
sharmila.pantha@citizenlifenepal.com narayan.gharti@citizenlifenepal.com

9922 kkffNNkkff        9933 //ffddkk''//  
tfg;]g gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, x'nfs rf]s, kfNkf /fdk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, x'nfs nfO{g, kfNkf 
;Dks{ g+= 075–522027, 9857017304 ;Dks{ g+= 075–400519, 9857076039   
ljho sfsL{   /fd axfb'/ nfjtL
vijay.karki@citizenlifenepal.com ram.lawati@citizenlifenepal.com

9944 aabb{{##ff^̂      9955 kk//ff;;LL
ab{#f^ gu/kflnsf j*f g+ 04, ab{#f^, gjnk/f;L /fdu|fd gu/kflnsf j*f g+ 05, k/f;L ahf/, gjnk/f;L
;Dks{ g+= 078–580506, 9857017301  ;Dks{ g+= 078–590618, 9857049618
laho d/fl;gL lbks yfkf If]qL
bijay.marasini@citizenlifenepal.com dipak.thapa@citizenlifenepal.com

9966 ee}}//xxjjff        9977 aa''̂̂ jjnn        
l;$fy{gu/ gu/kflnsf j*f g++ 09, e}/xjf, ?kGb]xL a'̂ jn pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++ 06, xl:k^n nfO{g, ?kGb]xL 
;Dks{ g+= 071–570126, 9857017426   ;Dks{ g+= 071–539604, 9857017303
lul/hf vgfn led k|;fb ;'j]bL
girija.khanal@citizenlifenepal.com bhim.subedi@citizenlifenepal.com

9988 bb]]jjbbxx  9999 dd''lluu{{ooff  
b]jbx gu/kflnsf j*f g++ 05, v}/]gL, ?kGb]xL ;}gfd}gf gu/kflnsf j*f g++ 04, d'lu{of, ?kGb]xL 
;Dks{ g+= 071–577384, 9857085170  ;Dks{ g+= 071–440409, 9857044409
rd]nL >Lif a'(fyf]sL Hof]lt cb}
chameli.budathoki@citizenlifenepal.com jyoti.adai@citizenlifenepal.com

110000 kkmm;;ff{{ll^̂ss//  110011 eennjjff//LL
z'$f]wg gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, km;f{l^s/, ?kGb]xL    ltnf]Qdf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, enjf/L, ?kGb]xL    
;Dks{ g+= 071–400014, 9857012218          ;Dks{ g+= 071–590550,  9857049051
pQd kl/of/ k")f{ rGb| ;'j]bL  
uttam.pariyar@citizenlifenepal.com purna.subedi@citizenlifenepal.com

nn''llDDaaggLL  kk||bb]]zz
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110022 llhhttkk''//        110033 rrGGbb||ff}}̂̂ ff  
af)fu+uf gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 04, xf]/fO{hg rf]s, slknj:t' s[i)fgu/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, rGb|f}̂ f, slknj:t'
;Dks{ g+= 076–550417, 9857017302  ;Dks{ g+= 076–540660, 9857014660  
;Demgf cfrfo{ ;Gtf]if kGt
samjhana.acharya@citizenlifenepal.com santosh.panta@citizenlifenepal.com

110044 ttff}}llnnxxjjff  110055 ##ff]]//ffxxLL        
slknj:t' gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, tf}lnxjf, slknj:t' #f]/fxL pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 15, #f]/fxL, bfé
;Dks{ g+= 076–590555, 9857017300 ;Dks{ g+= 082–563901, 9857844200  
g/]z l;Ub]n k'hf b'nfn
naresh.sigdel@citizenlifenepal.com puja.dulal@citizenlifenepal.com

110066 nnddxxLL  110077 tt''NN;;LLkk''//  
ndxL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, ndxL, bfé t'N;Lk'/ pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05 bfé
;Dks{ g+= 082-540929, 9858042140 ;Dks{ g+= 082–523527, 9857840598  
wf]h axfb'/ v*\sf ;'hg zfx 
dhoj.khadka@citizenlifenepal.com sujan.shah@citizenlifenepal.com

110088 gg]]kkffnnuu++hh        110099 ssff]]xxnnkk''//        
g]kfnu+h pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++= 02, sf/sf+bf] rf]s, af+s] sf]xnk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 11, sf]xnk'/, af+s]
;Dks{ g+= 081–590287, 9858042141 ;Dks{ g+= 081–541280, 9858042144
cGh' s'df/L jflgof eLd axfb'/ a'(f
anju.baniya@citizenlifenepal.com bhim.budha@citizenlifenepal.com

111100 vvhh''//ff  111111 uu''nnll//ooff
vh'/f uf+pkflnsf j*f g++= 05, vh'/f, af+s] u'nl/of gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, u'nl/of, alb{of 
;Dks{ g+= 081–560084, 9858042146 ;Dks{ g+= 084–420785, 9858048234
dbg /fh vqL ;'ldqf ;'a]bL
madan.khatri@citizenlifenepal.com sumitra.subedi@citizenlifenepal.com

111122 ee''//LLuuffpp++ 111133 aaff++;;uu((LL
&fs'/afaf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, e'/Lufp+, alb{of af+;u(L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, af+;u(L, alb{of 
;Dks{ g+= 084–403194, 9858064030 ;Dks{ g+= 084–400217, 9858042145
e'k]Gb| /fh vgfn clgn s'df/ yf?
bhupendra.khanal@citizenlifenepal.com anil.tharu@citizenlifenepal.com

111144 //ffhhffkk''//
/fhfk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, /fhfk'/, alb{of 
;Dks{ g+= 084–460308, 9858428428
;'/h sfk\mn] 
suraj.kafle@citizenlifenepal.com

111155 dd''uu''  111166 hh''DDnnff  
%f+ofgfy /f/f gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, d'u' rGbggfy gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, h'Dnf ahf/, h'Dnf 
;Dks{ g+= 087–460268, 9857017300  ;Dks{ g+= 087–520271, 9858366271 
nId)f d/fl;gL ;fg' zfx
laxman.marasini@citizenlifenepal.com sanu.shah@citizenlifenepal.com

111177 bb}}nn]]vv  111188 hhffhh//ssff]]̂̂         
gf/fo)f gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, b]jbxrf]s, b}n]v e]/L gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 04, vnéf, hfh/sf]̂  
;Dks{ g+= 089–420287, 9858022570 ;Dks{ g+= 089–430303, 9858086330  
kbd axfb'/ ;'gf/ uf]ljGb axfb'/ a'(f 
padam.sunar@citizenlifenepal.com gobinda.budha@citizenlifenepal.com

111199 vvnnééff 112200 >>LLgguu//
d';Lsf]̂  gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 01, vnéf, ?s'd zf/bf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, >Lgu/, ;Nofg 
;Dks{ g+= 088–530132, 9857871333  ;Dks{ g+= 088–400047, 9857017300  
sdf{ v*\sf uf}td nId)f d/fl;gL
karma.gautam@citizenlifenepal.com laxman.marasini@citizenlifenepal.com

ss))ffff{{nnLL  kk||bb]]zz

8800 bb''nn]]uuff++}}**ff  8811 bbddff}}nnLL        
z'Snfu)*sL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, b'n]uf+}*f, tgx'+ Jof; gu/kflnsf j*f= g+= 02, bdf}nL, tgx'+
;Dks{ g+= 065–414471, 9856048280 ;Dks{ g+= 065–563985, 9856063985    
;'lgn ltldNl;gf /lj r/)f lu/L
 sunil.timilsina@citizenlifenepal.com rabi.giri@citizenlifenepal.com 

8822 lleeddffbb  8833 ssffjjff;;ff]]ttLL
ledfb gu/kflnsf j*f= g+= 06, ledfb, tgx'+ sfjf;f]tL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, OGb|rf]s, gjnk/f;L k"j{ 
;Dks{ g+= 065–572475,  9856088543 ;Dks{ g+= 078–540487, 9857017305  
dbg >]i& hut /fd (sfn   
madan.shrestha@citizenlifenepal.com jagat.dhakal@citizenlifenepal.com 

8844 jjffllnnéé  8855 ss''ZZddff  
jflné gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 08, led^f/L, :oféhf s'Zdf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, wg]Zj/ rf]s, kj{t
;Dks{ g+=063–441059, 9856070059 ;Dks{ g+= 067–420653, 9857645653
;/f]h a:g]t   k'gd zdf{
saroj.basnet@citizenlifenepal.com punam.sharma@citizenlifenepal.com

8866 aaffUUnn''éé        8877 aa''lltt{{aaffªª
afUn'é gu/kflnsf j*f g+ 02, xNng rf]s, afUn'é (f]/kf^g gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, k|zF;g kmF+̂ , afUn'é
;Dks{ g+= 068–521297, 9857621800  ;Dks{ g+= 068–410275, 9857627275 
sdnf b]jL zdf{ rfkfufO{    %jLnfn kf)*]    
kamala.sharma@citizenlifenepal.com chhabi.pandey@citizenlifenepal.com

8888 //ff]]NNkkff  8899 llaahh''jjff//  
/f]Nkf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, lnjfª, /f]Nkf Ko"&fg gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, lah'jf/, Ko"&fg
;Dks{ g+= 086–440078, 9857886440 ;Dks{ g+= 086–460179, 9857886422
clgtf #lt{ du/ lbg]z sfsL{
anita.magar@citizenlifenepal.com dinesh.karki@citizenlifenepal.com

9900 ttDD##ff;;  9911 cc##ff{{vvff++rrLL        
/];'éf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, k'tnLahf/, u'NdL ;lGwvs{ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, zflGt au}+rf rf]s, c#f{vf+rL 
;Dks{ g+= 079–520860, 9857049888 ;Dks{ g+= 077–420422, 9857021052 
zld{nf kGy gf/fo)f #tL{
sharmila.pantha@citizenlifenepal.com narayan.gharti@citizenlifenepal.com

9922 kkffNNkkff        9933 //ffddkk''//  
tfg;]g gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, x'nfs rf]s, kfNkf /fdk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, x'nfs nfO{g, kfNkf 
;Dks{ g+= 075–522027, 9857017304 ;Dks{ g+= 075–400519, 9857076039   
ljho sfsL{   /fd axfb'/ nfjtL
vijay.karki@citizenlifenepal.com ram.lawati@citizenlifenepal.com

9944 aabb{{##ff^̂      9955 kk//ff;;LL
ab{#f^ gu/kflnsf j*f g+ 04, ab{#f^, gjnk/f;L /fdu|fd gu/kflnsf j*f g+ 05, k/f;L ahf/, gjnk/f;L
;Dks{ g+= 078–580506, 9857017301  ;Dks{ g+= 078–590618, 9857049618
laho d/fl;gL lbks yfkf If]qL
bijay.marasini@citizenlifenepal.com dipak.thapa@citizenlifenepal.com

9966 ee}}//xxjjff        9977 aa''̂̂ jjnn        
l;$fy{gu/ gu/kflnsf j*f g++ 09, e}/xjf, ?kGb]xL a'̂ jn pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++ 06, xl:k^n nfO{g, ?kGb]xL 
;Dks{ g+= 071–570126, 9857017426   ;Dks{ g+= 071–539604, 9857017303
lul/hf vgfn led k|;fb ;'j]bL
girija.khanal@citizenlifenepal.com bhim.subedi@citizenlifenepal.com

9988 bb]]jjbbxx  9999 dd''lluu{{ooff  
b]jbx gu/kflnsf j*f g++ 05, v}/]gL, ?kGb]xL ;}gfd}gf gu/kflnsf j*f g++ 04, d'lu{of, ?kGb]xL 
;Dks{ g+= 071–577384, 9857085170  ;Dks{ g+= 071–440409, 9857044409
rd]nL >Lif a'(fyf]sL Hof]lt cb}
chameli.budathoki@citizenlifenepal.com jyoti.adai@citizenlifenepal.com

110000 kkmm;;ff{{ll^̂ss//  110011 eennjjff//LL
z'$f]wg gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, km;f{l^s/, ?kGb]xL    ltnf]Qdf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 07, enjf/L, ?kGb]xL    
;Dks{ g+= 071–400014, 9857012218          ;Dks{ g+= 071–590550,  9857049051
pQd kl/of/ k")f{ rGb| ;'j]bL  
uttam.pariyar@citizenlifenepal.com purna.subedi@citizenlifenepal.com

nn''llDDaaggLL  kk||bb]]zz
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112211 ;;llNNnnaahhff//  112222 lljj//]]GGbb||gguu//        
aGuf* s'lkG*] gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, ;NnLahf/, ;Nofg lj/]Gb|gu/ gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 06, lj/]Gb|gu/, ;'v]{t 
;Dks{ g+= 088–411007, 9858042122 ;Dks{ g+= 083–520571, 9858058681
df]nfn ;fx' gd axfb'/ Yofot
molal.sahu@citizenlifenepal.com nam.thayat@citizenlifenepal.com

112233 aaeemmffªª 112244 ****]]nnww''//ff        
ho k[YjL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 10, r}gk'/, aemfª cd/u(L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, t'kmfg *f+*f, **]nw'/f 
;Dks{ g+= 092–421386, 9858488207  ;Dks{ g+= 096–410265, 9858745433
k|laGb| axfb'/ wfdL clgzf s'df/L /fjt 
prabindra.dhami@citizenlifenepal.com  anisha.rawat@citizenlifenepal.com

112255 llbbkkffoonn  112266 cc%%ffdd  
lbkfon l;nu(L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, lbkfon, *f]̂ L ;f+km]au/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 03, ;f+km] xf^ahf/, c%fd 
;Dks{ g+= 094–412290, 9858480688 ;Dks{ g+= 097–625213, 9858488229
u+uf /fd hf]zL an axfb'/ s&fot
ganga.joshi@citizenlifenepal.com bal.kadayat@citizenlifenepal.com

112277 aaff}}llggooff  112288 wwgguu((LL        
ab{uf]l/of ufp+kflnsf j*f g+= 01, af}lgof, s}nfnL wgu(L pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++= 02, a;kfs{, s}nfnL
;Dks{ g+= 091–404209, 9858482581 ;Dks{ g+= 091–417399, 9858477228
v*\u l;+ u*\l;nf alatf s'df/L rGb
khadga.gadsila@citizenlifenepal.com babita.chand@citizenlifenepal.com

112299 ll^̂ssffkk''//        113300 nnDDssLL  
l^sfk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, l;$fy{ rf]s, s}nfnL nDsLr'xf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, nDsL, s}nfnL
;Dks{ g+= 091–560715, 9858480810 ;Dks{ g+= 091–540375, 9858440475
df]xg s'df/ zfx k")f{ k|;fb h};L
mohan.shah@citizenlifenepal.com purna.jaisi@citizenlifenepal.com

113311 kkxxnnddffggkk''//  113322 ccQQ//LLooff        
#f]*f#f]*L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 10, kxndfgk'/, s}nfnL uf]bfj/L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, nf]̂ ; uNnL, s}nfnL 
;Dks{ g+= 091–400188, 9858478188 ;Dks{ g+= 091–550286, 9858423928
uLtf s'df/L wfdL ]̂s axfb'/ &s'Nnf
gita.dhami@citizenlifenepal.com tek.thakulla@citizenlifenepal.com

113333 ddxx]]GGbb||gguu//      113344 eemmnnff//LL
eLdbQ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, dx]Gb|gu/, s~rgk'/ z'Snfkmf+̂ f gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 10, emnf/L, s~rgk'/
;Dks{ g+= 099–520027, 9858745421 ;Dks{ g+= 099–540272, 9858784805
wg]Zj/L e§ af]s^L gj/fh hf]zL 
dhaneshwari.bokati@citizenlifenepal.com nabraj.joshi@citizenlifenepal.com

113355 aa]]nnff}}//LL  
a]nf}/L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, a]nf}/L, s~rgk'/
;Dks{ g+= 099–580349, 9858784507
k':s/ /fh ef^
puskar.bhatt@citizenlifenepal.com

;;''bb''//kkllZZrrdd  kk||bb]]zz

110022 llhhttkk''//        110033 rrGGbb||ff}}̂̂ ff  
af)fu+uf gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 04, xf]/fO{hg rf]s, slknj:t' s[i)fgu/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, rGb|f}̂ f, slknj:t'
;Dks{ g+= 076–550417, 9857017302  ;Dks{ g+= 076–540660, 9857014660  
;Demgf cfrfo{ ;Gtf]if kGt
samjhana.acharya@citizenlifenepal.com santosh.panta@citizenlifenepal.com

110044 ttff}}llnnxxjjff  110055 ##ff]]//ffxxLL        
slknj:t' gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, tf}lnxjf, slknj:t' #f]/fxL pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 15, #f]/fxL, bfé
;Dks{ g+= 076–590555, 9857017300 ;Dks{ g+= 082–563901, 9857844200  
g/]z l;Ub]n k'hf b'nfn
naresh.sigdel@citizenlifenepal.com puja.dulal@citizenlifenepal.com

110066 nnddxxLL  110077 tt''NN;;LLkk''//  
ndxL gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, ndxL, bfé t'N;Lk'/ pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05 bfé
;Dks{ g+= 082-540929, 9858042140 ;Dks{ g+= 082–523527, 9857840598  
wf]h axfb'/ v*\sf ;'hg zfx 
dhoj.khadka@citizenlifenepal.com sujan.shah@citizenlifenepal.com

110088 gg]]kkffnnuu++hh        110099 ssff]]xxnnkk''//        
g]kfnu+h pkdxfgu/kflnsf j*f g++= 02, sf/sf+bf] rf]s, af+s] sf]xnk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 11, sf]xnk'/, af+s]
;Dks{ g+= 081–590287, 9858042141 ;Dks{ g+= 081–541280, 9858042144
cGh' s'df/L jflgof eLd axfb'/ a'(f
anju.baniya@citizenlifenepal.com bhim.budha@citizenlifenepal.com

111100 vvhh''//ff  111111 uu''nnll//ooff
vh'/f uf+pkflnsf j*f g++= 05, vh'/f, af+s] u'nl/of gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 06, u'nl/of, alb{of 
;Dks{ g+= 081–560084, 9858042146 ;Dks{ g+= 084–420785, 9858048234
dbg /fh vqL ;'ldqf ;'a]bL
madan.khatri@citizenlifenepal.com sumitra.subedi@citizenlifenepal.com

111122 ee''//LLuuffpp++ 111133 aaff++;;uu((LL
&fs'/afaf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, e'/Lufp+, alb{of af+;u(L gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, af+;u(L, alb{of 
;Dks{ g+= 084–403194, 9858064030 ;Dks{ g+= 084–400217, 9858042145
e'k]Gb| /fh vgfn clgn s'df/ yf?
bhupendra.khanal@citizenlifenepal.com anil.tharu@citizenlifenepal.com

111144 //ffhhffkk''//
/fhfk'/ gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 04, /fhfk'/, alb{of 
;Dks{ g+= 084–460308, 9858428428
;'/h sfk\mn] 
suraj.kafle@citizenlifenepal.com

111155 dd''uu''  111166 hh''DDnnff  
%f+ofgfy /f/f gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 02, d'u' rGbggfy gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 05, h'Dnf ahf/, h'Dnf 
;Dks{ g+= 087–460268, 9857017300  ;Dks{ g+= 087–520271, 9858366271 
nId)f d/fl;gL ;fg' zfx
laxman.marasini@citizenlifenepal.com sanu.shah@citizenlifenepal.com

111177 bb}}nn]]vv  111188 hhffhh//ssff]]̂̂         
gf/fo)f gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, b]jbxrf]s, b}n]v e]/L gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 04, vnéf, hfh/sf]̂  
;Dks{ g+= 089–420287, 9858022570 ;Dks{ g+= 089–430303, 9858086330  
kbd axfb'/ ;'gf/ uf]ljGb axfb'/ a'(f 
padam.sunar@citizenlifenepal.com gobinda.budha@citizenlifenepal.com

111199 vvnnééff 112200 >>LLgguu//
d';Lsf]̂  gu/kflnsf j*f g++= 01, vnéf, ?s'd zf/bf gu/kflnsf j*f g+= 01, >Lgu/, ;Nofg 
;Dks{ g+= 088–530132, 9857871333  ;Dks{ g+= 088–400047, 9857017300  
sdf{ v*\sf uf}td nId)f d/fl;gL
karma.gautam@citizenlifenepal.com laxman.marasini@citizenlifenepal.com

ss))ffff{{nnLL  kk||bb]]zz

— 186 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



 
 

                                                ldltM 2082÷  ÷ 
>L ;~rfns ;ldlt, 
l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld^]*, 
yfkfynL, sf&df*f}+ . 
 
ljifoM k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo"Qm u/]sf] af/] . 
 
============================================== lhNnf ========================================== pk÷d=g=kf÷g=kf=÷uf=kf= 

j*f g+= ============== a:g] d÷xfdL ============================================ n] t+xf sDkgLsf] z]o/wgLsf] 

x}l;otn] 2082 ;fn kf}if 18 ut] z"qmaf/sf lbg x"g] gjf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/)f ;efdf d÷xfdL :jod\ 

pkl:yt eO{ %nkmn tyf lg)f{odf ;xefuL x"g g;Sg] ePsf]n] pQm ;efdf d]/f]÷xfd|f] tkm{af^ efu 

lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf nflu ========================================================= lhNnf ============================ 

pk÷d=g=kf÷g=kf=÷uf=kf=j*f g+= =========== a:g] >L =========================================================== nfO{ 

d]/f]÷xfd|f] k|ltlglw lgo"Qm u/L k&fPsf] %"÷%f}+ . 

 
k|ltlglw lgo"Qm JolQmsf] lgj]bs 

x:tfIF/sf] gd'gfM  b:tvtM 

z]o/wgL lxtu|fxL gDa/M gfdM 

z]o/wgL geP gful/stf gDa/M &]ufgfM 

ldltM lxtu|fxL gDa/M 

 z]o/ ;+VofM  

 
-k|ltlglw lgo"QmL ;DjGwL lgj]bg 2082 ;fn kf}if 16 ut] a"waf/ laxfg 11M00 ah] leq sDkgLsf] 
s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, Pn=P;= sDkn]S;, yfkfynL, sf&df*f}+df k]z u/L ;Sg" kg]{% ._ 
 
 
                 l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld^]* 

yfkfynL, sf&df)*f}+ . 
k|j]z–kq 

l;l^hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld^]*sf] 2082 ;fn kf}if 18 ut] z"qmaf/sf] lbg x"g] gjf}+ jflif{s 
;fwf/)F ;efdf pkl:yt x"g hf/L ul/Psf] k|j]z kqM 
 
z]o/wgLsf] gfdM ========================================================  

lxtu|fxL vftf gDa/M ================================================= 

s"n z]o/ ;+VofM ======================================================= 

z]o/wgLsf] b:tvtM ===================================================   

b|i^JoM vfnL :yfg z]o/wgL cfkm}n] eg{" x"g tyf ;efsIfdf k|j]z ug{ of] k|j]zkq clgjfo{ ?kdf 
lnO{ cfpg" x"g cg"/f]w % . 

 
sDkgL ;lrj 

jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷)*@ — 187 —



— 188 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



l6kf]6

jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷)*@ — 189 —



l6kf]6

— 190 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



l6kf]6

jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷)*@ — 191 —



l6kf]6

— 192 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷)*@ — 193 —



— 194 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷)*@ — 195 —



— 196 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8



jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷)*@ — 197 —



— 198 — l;l6hg nfOkm OG:of]/]G; sDkgL lnld6]8






